9260 E Stockton Blvd.
On e I Elk Grove, California 95624

Communications

February 27, 2014

Oregon Public Utility Commission
Attention: Filing Center

P.O. Box 2148

550 Capitol Street N.E., Suite 215
Salem, OR 97301-2551

Fax (503) 373-7752

RE: UM 1431 Compliance Letter — Order No. 10-067

Dear Commission:

In compliance with Appendix A, condition # 2 of the above referenced order, Frontier
Communications Northwest Inc is providing a copy of its Annual 10-K report filing and
inter-company receivables, payables and dividends report for the fourth quarter 2013.
The quarterly inter-company receivables, payables and dividends report is considered
confidential and should be treated as such. Pursuant to Order 09-197, the “Confidential”
document is being sent via US Mail in a sealed envelope with the proper labeling.

If you have any questions, please contact Renee Willer at (503) 629-2459 or
Renee.Willer@ftr.com or me.

Sincerely,

D

oseph D. Chicoine

Manager, Compliance and Reportlng
916-686-3588
joe.chicoine@ftr.com

Enclosures

cc: Renee Willer



Frontier Communications Northwest Inc.
Intercompany Receivables/Payables and Dividends
Fourth Quarter 2013

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amount)

Assets ( )=cr

Liabilities ( )=dr Balance
Intercompany Receivables/Payables Sep 30, 2013
Accounts Receivable - Affiliates

Notes Receivable - Affiliates

Interest Receivable - Affiliates

Accounts Payable - Affiliates

Notes Payable - Affiliates

Accrued Interest - Affiliates

Cash Dividends Declared 4Q13
Frontier Northwest to Parent

Parent to Shareholders (total)

Parent to Shareholders (per share)

Redacted

Activity
4Q13

Balance
Dec 31, 2013
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE

PART |

Item 1. Business

Frontier Communications Corporation (Frontier)hie targest communications company providing sesvizedominantly to rural areas and small and medilred towns and cities in the United States nfeo
and its subsidiaries are referred to as the “Compéwe,” “us” or “our” throughout this report. Bntier was incorporated in the state of Delawar#d85, originally under the name of Citizens Ugkt Company,
and was known as Citizens Communications Compamy #000 until July 31, 2008.

Our mission is to be the leader in providing comivations services to residential and business mest® in our markets. We are committed to deliygiimovative and reliable products and solutionthvain

emphasis on convenience, service and customefasdit®. We offer a variety of voice, data, aniévesion (TV) services and products, some thataeglable on a standalone basis, and others taaailable as
bundled or packaged solutions. We believe thalaeal engagement structure, 100% U.S.—based wakfand innovative product positioning will continto differentiate us from our competitors in tharkets

in which we compete.

Highlights for 2013

In 2013, we continued to improve our customer rostaind revenue tr ends while strengthening ounéiiz profile as follows:

BroadbandNet Additions

During 2013, we added approximately 112,2 5 0 neadband subscribers (an increase of approximétéh) , which exceed ed the total net additiongHerlast three years combined, bringing our total
number of broadband subscribers to 1,866,700 Beoémber 31, 2013. The net increase in broadhastebers contribute d to our improved revenuéoperance . We continue d to invest in network
speed and capacity to support our goal of attrgatifditional customers and increasing broadbanetpation. In 2013, our broadband availabilityréased by 167,000 new households, and we are now
able to offer broadband to over 6.4 million houdéa@s of December 31, 2013 . During 201 3 and20Erontier received a total of $71.9 milliontfiche first round of the Federal Communications
Commission’s (FCC) Connect America Fund (CAF) PHaaed $57.6 million related to the second roun@€Af Phase | to support broadband deployment ienvesl and underserved high-cost areas. In
January 2014, we received an additional $3.7 millige spent $32.7 million and $4.8 million of tadands on network expansion in 2013 and 2012ewsfely , enabling 64,4 00 new households with
broadband .

Improved Customer Metric

Our rate of residential customer loss improved £ 3during 2013 as compared to 7% for 2012. Wieethat this improvement in customer retentiompiincipally due to investments in our network,
our local engagement strategy, improved customeicgeand the introduction of our stand alone Siniloadband product. In addition to our increasbrivadband subscribers, we added over 38,700 net
video subscribers during 2013.

Our average monthly residential revenue per custim2013 improved by $ 0.97 , or approximately 2t86$ 59.30 , as compared to the prior year. &erage monthly business revenue per customer in
2013 improved by $ 14.13 , or approximately 2 % €63.26 , as compared to the prior year.

Strengthened Balance Sheet and Financial Pr

In April 2013, we raised $750.0 million in a registd debt offering of 7 .625% senior unsecuredsndtee 2024. We used the net proceeds, togethercash on hand, to finance cash tender offers, and
otherwise retire and repurchase debt in the agtgemancipal amount of $ 1,563.0 million during tear. These actions have enabled us to reducedeirmaturities in 2014, 2015 and 2016 to $257.9
million, $259.8 million and $345.5 million, respietly, which we believe can be funded from net qasivided by operating activities during each & tfext three years.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we generatediue of $ 4.8 billion, including customer reveraf $ 4.2 billion and regulatory revenue of $ Billion, and net cash provided by operating
activities of $ 1.5 billion . We have a well-bateal debt maturity schedule and we have availabiédity of over $ 1.6 billion as of December 31120 comprised of cash and available credit on our
$750.0 million revolving credit facility.

Our operating results, prudent capital investmeanisd, expense management provide d a strong caslbflee and a solid financial platform for investinghe business, servicing our debt and maintginin
our dividend payout.
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« TheAT&T Transactior
On December 17, 2013, the Company announced tkatdted into an agreement to acquire the wirglhoperties of AT&T Inc. (AT&T) in Connecticut for purchase price of $2.0 billion in cash (the
AT&T Transaction). Upon completion of the AT&T Trsaction, we will operate AT&T’s wireline busine#igt provides services to residential, commeramal wholesale customers in Connecticut,
making Connecticut the Company’s largest markee Will also acquire AT&T's U-verse® video and sétel TV customers in Connecticut. As of the datettsd announcement, this business had
approximately 900,000 voice, 415,000 broadband 18000 video connections. The AT&T Transactioexpected to close in the second half of 2014.

Communications Services

As of December 31, 2013, we are the nation’s folatbest Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier (ILECthv8.1 million customers, 1.9 million broadbanchoections and 13,650 employees. We operate as an
ILEC in 27 states and will also operate in Conrtttafter consummation of the AT&T Transaction .

We conduct business with both residential and lassircustomers, and we provide the “last mile” oficmnications services to customers in these marketsng 2013, our customer revenue was $ 4,209.9
million, including residential revenue of $ 2,029nfllion and business revenue of $ 2,180.5 millidhDecember 31, 2013, we had 1,866,700 broadbabskcsibers and 385,400 video subscribers .  Ouicss
and products include:

« data and Internet servic
- wireline broadband services
- data transmission services (e.g., DS1, LOCNX, Ethernet, dedicated Internet Protoc
- wireless broadband services
- computer securitandpremiumtechnical suppoi(i.e., Frontier Secure
- commerciaVoice over Internet ProtocolVolP ) service

« local and long distance voice servit
- local voice service
- enhanced services (e.g., voicemail, call waiting)
- long distance network services

« access services

« otherservices
- satelliteand terrestrialvideo
- customer premise equipment
- directories

Company Strategies

The key elements of our strategy are as follows:

Lead with B roadband. We are concentrating on broadband as the coretly component of our service offering , eithenthed with our voice and/or video services, or astaadalone basis . During 2013, we
added approximately 112,2 5 0 net broadband sutesstiwhich exceed ed the total net additionsHerlast three years combined, bringing our totaflmer of broadband subscribers to 1,866,700 as oémber
31, 2013. The increase in broadband subscribetsilcote d to our improved revenue performance .

We continue to spend capital for the expansioniamptovement of broadband availability and speedunmarkets and view this expansion as an oppayttmiattract and retain a greater number of custsrand
increase average revenue per residential and tassmestomer. These capital expenditures includbarering the existing outside plant by expandingrfibased infrastructure through more of our network
enhancing transport and expand ing the capabiliguomiddle-mile and data backbone.

As of December 31, 2013, approximately 90 % of tbeseholds throughout our territories had accessutowireline broadband products with speeds ofeast 1 Mbps. See “Network Architecture and

Technology” for a table that summarizes our broadbavailability to the households throu ghout tlempany’s territories . In addition, we have contettto federal and state regulatory authoritiesxpand
broadband availability in certain areas and foraggion of broadband in unserved and underserved.afee “—Regulatory Environment—Regulation of lmusiness.”
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Drive R evenue P erformanceWe tailor our services to the needs of our resideand business customers in the markets we santeontinually evaluate the introduction of newl aomplimentary products
and services. We are increasing broadband médnke¢ shrough innovative and simplified product paggs and promotions, and we expect to improve sphisa rates for broadband services. We providect
broadcast satellite services from DISH in all of markets and fiber optic -based video servicgsairis of three states. We have implemented segewalth initiatives, including new products andwseegs, such
as wireless broadband, satellite broadband , llisatédeo and “Frontier Secure” computer secugtyd premium technical support. We will continuddous on growing those products and services raview
opportunities to offer new ones. Our marketingtstgg includes the sale of voice, data and videviees as standalone offerings and bundled packagshe use of promotions and incentives to dmieeket
share through a variety of channels . We belibese marketing strategies yield increased reveeueystomer, strong customer relationships anddwget customer retention.

Kee p our C ustomers Our strategy includes engaging our markets atdbal llevel to ensure that we have a customer-dréades and service focus that differentiates us foar competitors. Our markets are
operated by local managers responsible for theomest experience, as well as the financial resuolthése markets . We invest in infrastructurerswpments and enhancements each year, recognignghe
economic livelihood of the communities we serve aifect opportunities to grow the business. Wedfare have a vested interest in the economic dpwetnt of the communities we serve. We are involmed
these communities to create a competitive advarttageigh long-term customer loyalty. We are cortexitto providing best-in-class service throughaut markets and, by doing so, we expect to maximize
retention of current customers and gain new custeme We continue to invest to provide an optimuatomer experience to include enhanc ing ouooust service operations , efficiently providevss to new
customers , and timely service resolutions fortexgscustomers .

Realize C ost S avingsiVe continue to engage in cost reduction initiatiire order to maintain and improve our profit masgiDuring 2013, our cost reduction initiativesutesdl in savings of $ 92.6 million as
compared to the prior year. We focus on simplifying processes, eliminating redundancies and furéuiicing our cost structure while improv ing r oustomer service capabilities.

Evaluate Strategic Initiatives Selectively, we evaluate and may pursue strategfjuisitions that would enhance shareholder val@n.December 17, 2013, the Company announced ttlesitéred into an
agreement to acquire the wireline properties of ATi& Connecticut for a purchase price of $2 .Oidnillin cash. Upon completion of the AT&T Transanti Frontier will operate AT&T’s wireline busineasd
fiber optic network that provides services to resiihl , commercial and wholesale customers imn@oticut . The Company will also acquire A T&Tsverse video and satellite TV customers in
Connecticut . We expect the AT&T Transaction twsel in the second half of 2014.

I n July 2010 , we acquired the defined assetsliabdities of the local exchange business andteeldandline activities of Verizon Communicatiome. (the 2010 Transaction) in 14 states ( the ulegl
Territories), including Internet access and lorsjatice services and broadband video provided igrdged customers in the Acquired Territories (Whie refer to as the 2010 Acquired Business).

Services

We offer a broad portfolio of high-quality commuaiions services for residential and business custein each of our markets. Our product portfaidudes voice services, Internet access, broadbaatiled
services and video services. We offer these senhioth on a standalone basis and as bundldé@ges that are purposely designed to simplify enstopurchasing decisions and to provide the custavith
pricing discounts. Periodically, w e offer seleetincentives and promotions to influence custontensurchase or retain certain services. We arféest locally with skilled technicians and supeovis , which
enables us to provide an array of communicationscss to meet our customers’ needs. Our calleresperations and field technicians are staffett W@0% U.S.-based employees .

Generation of Revenue

We generate revenue primarily by providing: (1)adand Internet services and wireless data servigg$iasic local and long distance voice wirelieevices to residential and business customersiirsenvice
areas; (3) network access to interexchange cafidersrigination and termination of long distanceice and data traffic; (4) sales of third party awied video services; and (5) sales of customemise
equipment.

Data and Internet servicedVe offer a wide range of wireline and satellitedztband services to our residential, commercialcarder customers. Residential services includadipand, dial up Internet, portal
and e-mail products. Commercial services inclutieethet, Dedicated Internet, Multiprotocol Labeli@Wing (MPLS), Time Division Multiplexing ( TDM Jata transport services and optical transport sesvi
These ser vices are all supported by a 24/ 7 hedg dnd an advanced n etwork
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o perations ¢ enter. Such services are generdiyed on a contract basis and the service ischile a fixed monthly recurring charge basis. Detd Internet services are typically billed in adsva@n

We also offer our Frontier Secure suite of prodagtsed at managing the digital experience for aist@mers and designed to provide value and simplicimeet customers’ ever-changing needs. FnoSgeure
offers products and services to protect key aspeatggital life, including computer security, cldbackup and sharing, identity protecti on, equipnmiesurance and 24/ 7 premium U.S.-based techsigaport.
These products and services are sold nationwigettlito consumers and small businesses, and wdielésough strategic partnerships under eitheivate brand or the Frontier Secure brand.

We offer wireless broadband services (using unfiedriViFi spectrum) in select markets utilizing natvs that we own or operate. Long-term contramsg@nerally billed in advance on an annual or semual
basis. End-user subscribers are generally bitietivance on a monthly recurring basis and bustsesslleges and universities are billed on a mgm#turring basis for a fixed number of users.uHyp daily
and weekly casual end-users are billed by credit aathe time of use.

Local and long distance voice service#/e provide basic wireline services to residentra husiness customers in our service areas. @ucsareas are generally less densely populatetttie primary service
areas of the largest ILECs. We also provide enddhrservices to our customers by offering a numberaing features, including call forwarding, cenénce calling, caller identification, voicemaildacall
waiting. All of these local services are billed minly in advance. Long distance network serviceamal from points outside our operating properties @rovided by interconnection with the facilities
interexchange carriers. Our long distance senacedilled either as unlimited/fixed number of mties in advance or on a per minute-of-use basis.

We also offer packages of communications serviddsese packages permit customers to bundle thsic bareline service with their choice of enhandedg distance, video and Internet services .

We are continuing our efforts to increase the patien of our enhanced services which produce rexemith higher operating margins due to the reédyitow marginal operating costs necessary to cfteh
services. Integrating these services with otherices may provide the opportunity to capture ameased percentage of our customers’ total comratioits expenditures.

Access servicesOur switched access services allow other carttetse our facilities to originate and terminateittiocal and long distance voice traffic. Theseviges are generally offered on a month-to-month
basis and the service is billed primarily on a riseof-use basis. Switched access charges havebbsed on access rates filed with the FCC forstaes services and with the respective state regylagency
for intrastate services. On November 18, 2011FBE released the USF/ICC Report & Order (the Ortherf, beginning in July 2012, requested that wedition to terminating switched access rates twer to
near zero by July 2017. The Order enables compamirescover part of the decline through increasesubscriber line fees charged to some resideatidlbusiness wireline voice customers. While t6€ fhas
asserted jurisdiction over these terminating accates, during the transition the charges will tar to be based on tariffs filed with both the F&@! state regulatory agencies. Monthly recurricgess service
fees are billed in advance. We also receilsislies from state and federal authorities basetthe higher cost of providing wireline servicecrtain rural areas that are included in our acsessces revenue.
Beginning in July 2012, the Company began receifénigral subsidies for the deployment of broadbianthserved and high- cost areas.

Video services.We have offered video services under an excluagency relationship with DISH since August 2011. Weeive from DISH , and recognize as revenueivaain fees, other residual fees and
nominal management, billing and collection feesdifidnally, we offer fiber optic -based video sems on a limited basis in the states of Indian&g@n and Washington pursuant to franchises, peanits
similar authorizations issued by local franchisinghorities .

Customer Premise EquipmeniWe offer our small, medium and enterprise busimesssomers a wide range of third-party communicatiequipment tailored to their specific businessisedequipment sales are
most often sold in conjunction with a variety ofis® data and Internet services; however, equipnmeaty also be sold on a stand alone basis. Weyném® revenue for these equipment sales in accoedaith
the contracts, and separately from any related tevzémce agreements, generally at time of instafiaid acceptance by our customers.

Customer Metrics

Our Company, like others in the industry, utilizeporting metrics focused on units. Consistent with strategy to focus on the ¢ ustomer, we algizeiresidential and business customer metricg thhen
combined with unit counts, provide additional irfgignto the results of our strategic initiativesdebed above.
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As of or for the year ended December

2013 2012

Residential Customer Metrics:

Customers 2,803,481 2,887,062
Revenue (in 000's $ 2,029,47¢ $ 2,128,85¢
Average monthly residential revenue per custoftier $ 59.30 $ 58.33
Customer monthly churn 1.69% 1.62%
Business Customer Metrics

Customers 270,799 286,106
Revenue (in 000'¢ $ 2,180,45¢ $ 2,276,11¢
Average monthly business revenue per customer $ 653.26 $ 639.13
Total customer 3,074,28(C 3,173,16¢
Broadband subscribe 1,866,67C 1,754,422
Video subscribers 385,353 346,627

@ Calculation excludes the Mohave Cellular LimitexttRership which was sold as of April 1, 2013 .

During 2013, we lost 83,600 residential customerst,, and 15,300 business customers , net%r 8f total customers , as compared to 216,70Gdersal customers , net, and 23,800 business mesw, net,
lost during the year ended December 31, 2012,%r df total customers . We believe the improwestomer retention in 2013 as compared to 2018rnsipally due to our investments in our networkr tocal
engagement strategy, improved customer serviceianglified products and bundles. Our residentiatemer monthly churn was 1.69 % and 1.62% for #@yended December 31, 2013 and 2012 respectively.

Average monthly residential revenue per custonesidential ARPC) increased $ 0.97, or 2%, to $&@i&ing 2013 as compared to 2012. Total residereizenue for the year ended December 31, 201hddc

$ 99.4 million, or 5 %, as compared to the yeareenDecember 31, 2012 primarily as a result of de@e in local voice and long distance revenuesiafigroffset by increases in data services reveane
increases in subscriber line charges due to additi@ccess recovery charges. These charges aseleaferegulatory changes related to Interca@iempensation reform and are expected to continiretease, as
allowed by the FCC to partially offset regulatoryamdated declines in switched access rates. We pabxamately 2,803,500 and 2,887,100 total residémustomers as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Total residential customers declibgdpproximately 83,600 since December 31, 20%iicipally driven by declines in voice customerseTdverall increase in residential ARPC is primadie to
additional bundled customers at a higher ARPC coetivith declining counts in voice-only customera éower ARPC. The Company expects continuing éwpments in data services revenue, primarily driven
by increased broadband subscribers, and contirdentines in voice services. Economic conditions/@nihcreasing competition could make it more diift to sell our bundled service offerings, andseaus to
increase our promotions and/or lower our price®forproducts and services, which would adversiigcaour revenue, profitability and cash flows.

Average monthly business revenue per customerr(essiARPC) increased $ 14.13 , or 2 %, to $ 653.26r 2013, as compared to 2012. We had apprdeimna@70,800 and 286,100 total business custoneers a
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively .|Tniainess revenue for the year ended Decembe2@B declined $ 95.7 million, or 4 %, as comparethe year ended December 31, 2012, principally as
result of decreases in our local and long distaseenues and wireless backhaul . Total businegsroess declined by approximately 15,300 since Déeer81, 2012. The overall increase in business ARPC
primarily due to declining customer counts for sorall business customers that carry a lower ARPRe.Company expects the declines in local voicelang distance revenues and wireless backhaul vegen
from business customers to continue into 2014 gatiéid, in part, by increases in data revenues .

During 2013, we added approximately 112,2 5 0 nevadiband subscribers, net, as compared to 23,4@0gd2012. The Company had 1,866,700 broadbandcsbbss at December 31, 2013. As of December
31, 2013, we were able to offer broadband to apprately 6.4 million households, or 90 % of the fillion households in our territory. We continuer @fforts to increase broadband subscribers arréase our
share of the applicable residential and businesgetsa. We continue to invest in network spaed capacity to support our goal of driv ing aduiéil broadband penetration. We also believe oupmess value
the convenience and price associated with receivinlfiple services from a single provider. We expieccontinue to increase broadband subscribe281d. As of December 31, 2013, approximately 76f%uo
residential
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broadband customers, ( excluding multiple dwellimits and wireless high speed | nternet ) , subsdo a bundle of services. Throughout our teig®r we offer satellite video services through Bi&nd, in
addition, we offer fiber optic -based video sersigethree states. We gained 38,700 vid eo suiEstinet during 2013 . At December 31, 2013, ak 385,400 video customers.

The following table sets forth total residentiasmers by state a s of December 31, 2013:

State Residential custome Percentage of residential custom
West Virginia 336,092 12.0%
New York 278,111 9.9%
Indiana 277,663 9.9%
lllinois 267,043 9.5%
Ohio 248,894 8.9%
Michigan 201,031 72%
Washingtor 200,81C 72%
Oregon 145,569 52%
Wisconsin 135,347 4.8%
Pennsylvani 127,381 45%
Minnesota 103,625 3.7%
North Caroling 102,493 3.7%
California 76,166 2.7%
Arizona 69,704 25%
Idaho 53,558 1.9%
South Carolin: 42,639 1.5%
Other State®™ 137,355 4.9%

Total 2,803,481 100%

Total business custom: 270,798
Total custome! 3,074,28C

®Includes Tennessee, Nevada, lowa, Nebraska, Alabatah, Georgia, Montana, New Mexico, Mississippil &lorida.
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Network Architecture and Technology

Our local exchange carrier networks consist of leesttral office and remote sites, primarily equippéth digital and Internet Protocol switches. Thside plant consists of transport and distridsutielivery
networks connecting our host central office witmege central offices and ultimately with our cusessn We own fiber optic and copper cable, whichsHzeen deployed in our networks and are the pyimar
transport technologies between our host and rec®steal offices and interconnection points withesttncumbent carriers.

Our fiber optic and copper transport system is blpaf supporting increasing customer demand fgh hiandwidth transport services. We routinely esbasur network and are currently upgrading withlétest
Internet Protocol Transport and routing equipmBeconfigurable Optical Add/Drop Multiplexers (ROADNansport systems, Very High Bit-Rate Digital Safiber Line (VDSL) broadband equipment, an d
VolIP switches. These systems will support advaseedices such as Ethernet, Dedicated Internetiipdotocol Label Switching (MPLS) transport, andIFo The network is designed with redundancy artd-au
failover capability on our major circuits.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had expandebroadband availability to the households thraugtthe Company'’s territories as follows:

(In excess of 2013 2012
1 Mbps 90% 88%
3 Mbps 86% 83%
4 Mbps 83% 7%
6 Mbps 76% 74%
12 Mbps 61% 51%
20 Mbps 48% 40%

Rapid and significant changes in technology areeetqul to continue to occur in the communicatiodsigtry. Our success will depend, in part, on dilitg to anticipate and adapt to technological mfpes. We
believe that ou r existing network architecturatstgy will enable us to respond to these ongoinbrtelogical changes efficiently. In addition, wetieipate reducing costs through the sharing of pesttices
across operations, centralization or standardizatfdunctions and processes, and deployment bhtdogies and systems that provide for greatecieficies and profitability.

Competition

Competition in the communications industry is irsenWe experience competition from many commurdoatservice providers, including cable operatofsriofy video, data and VolP products, wirelessieesr
long distance providers, competitive local exchacgeiers, Internet providers, satellite videoeBae broadband and other wireline carriers. Veédve that as of December 31, 2013, approxim&BI96 of the
households in our territories could receive voitaa and video services from a competitive provider

As a result of competition and the current statthefeconomy, some of our customers may discontouservices. These trends may continue and esytrin a continued challenging business envirarime

We employ a number of strategies to combat the etithe pressures and changes in customer behavied above. Our strategies are focused on piegeand generating new revenues through customer
retention, upgrading and up-selling services tstéxg customers, new customer growth, win-back®whier customers, new product deployment, and byagiag our profitability and cash flow through tered
reductions in operating expenses and prudent ¢apip@nditures.

On the business side of our operations , we angséxton many of the same strategies and enhancedestribed above as well as providing transpovices (wireless backhaul) to wireless cell towiersur
territories and expanding the number of peopleérgelind servicing our medium, enterprise and gawemt customers with sophisticated products andices\(e.g., IP PBX, E911 equipment, Ethernet, SIP
trunking).

We are focused on enhancing the customer expertendiéferentiate us from our competition. Our goitment to customer service is demonstrated byl®®% U.S.-based workforce, our expanded customer

service hours, shorter scheduling windows for imboappointments, call reminders and follow-up cédisservice appointments. Additionally, we seekachieve our customer retention goals by offering
attractive packages of value-added services toaioe customers. Our bundled services include taad, unlimited long distance calling, enhancededéatures and video offerings.
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We are also focused on increasing sales of exiginducts, including unlimited long distance mirgjtbundles of long distance minutes, wireless daththe Frontier Secure product suite. We hada edt
465,000 Frontier Secure customers as of Decemhe2®B, or 25% penetration of our broadband basecompared to 375,500 customers at December 32, 26r 21% penetration of our broadband base .
Frontier Secure offers products and services teeptdey aspe c ts of digital life, including contgusecurity, cloud backup and sharing, identitytgetion, equipment insurance and 24 / 7 premiuBi-based
technical support. These products and servicesadenationwide directly to consumers and smaliresses, and wholesale through strategic partmersimider either a private brand or the FrontieuBebrand.
Although we are optimistic about the opportunitiesncrease revenue and reduce customer churncfigtomer attrition) that are provided by eacthefe initiatives, we cannot provide assurancetabeir long
term profitability or impact on revenue.

We believe that offering multiple products and s=s to our customers, providing a single bill, lime payment capability , providing superior cusesmservice, and being active in our local commansitill
develop customer loyalty which should help us gateenew, and retain existing, customer revenue.

For additional discussion of our competitive sigés, see “Company Strategies” above.
Regulatory Environment

Some of our operations are subject to regulatiothby=CC and various state regulatory agencieten ailled public service or utility commission8Ve expect federal and state lawmakers to contimuevise the
statutes and regulations governing communicatiensces.

Regulation of our business

We are subject to federal, state and local requiaind we have various regulatory authorization®iw regulated service offerings. At the fedéeakl, the FCC generally exercises jurisdictionrawngerstate or
international telecommunications services and daeilities to the extent they are used to provideginate or terminate interstate or internatiosetvices . State regulatory commissions genesdgrcise
jurisdiction over intrastate telecommunicationsvagss and the facilities used to provide, originatéerminate those services . Most of the les@hange companies that are operated by us omer@teumbent
carriers in the states in which they operate arctartified in those states to provide local teteownications services. In addition, local governtaeften regulate the public rights-of-way necessainstall and
operate networks, and may require service provigeabtain licenses or franchises regulating tbe& of public rights-of-way. Municipalities anchet local government agencies also may regulatr dithited

aspects of our business, by requiring us to olualite franchises and construction permits and ittedty building codes.

Many s tate regulatory agencies have substantialsamht over the provision by incumbent telephoompanies, like our company, of interconnection and-discriminatory network ac cess to competitive
providers. Under the Telecommunications Act of 198& “1996 Act” or the “Telecommunications Act”)state regulatory commissions have jurisdictioratbitrate and review interconnection disputes and
agreements between incumbent telephone compaikiegiur company , and competitive local exchangeera, in accordance with rules set by the FC@e FCC and State regulatory commissions also impose
fees on providers of telecommunications servicebiwiheir respective states to support state usaleservice programs. Many of the states in wiietoperate require prior approvals or notificasiéor certain
acquisitions and transfers of assets, customemyoership of regulated entities.

The FCC and certain state regulatory commissianspnnection with granting their approvals of i@ Transaction, specified certain capital expemeliand operating requirements for the Acquirediffeies

for specified periods of time post-closing. Thesguirements focus primarily on certain capitalisiment commitments to expand broadband availabiliat least 85% of the households throughouttguired
Territories with minimum download s peeds of 3 Mityysthe end of 2013 .  We were required to prexddwnload speeds of 4 Mbps to at least 75%, 80%B&f6 of the households throughout the Acquired
Territories by the end of 2013, 2014 and 2015, eetigely. As of December 31, 2013 we had exparateaddband availability in excess of 3 Mbps to 83% of the households throughout the Acquired
Territories, and in excess of 4 Mbps to 83. 5 %hefhouseholds throughout the Acquired Territoriéscordingly, we have met our FCC requirementrivjsie 3 Mbps coverage to 85% of the households4and
Mbps coverage to 75% of the households in the AequTerritories as of the end of 2013. We have alst our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps covertag80% of the households in the Acquired Teligor
by the end of 2014.

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investrheammitments to three state regulatory commissiaespl aced an aggregate amount of $115 .0 milliorash into escrow accounts and obtained a lefteredit
for $190.0 million in 201 0 . Another $72.4 milln@f cash in an escrow account was acquired inextion with the 2010 Transaction to be used foviserquality
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initiatives in the state of West Virginia. As oeBember 31, 2013, $ 17 6 .3 million had been rettéi®m the escrow accounts and the Company hasticted cash balance in th e remaining escrowuatan
the aggregate amount of $ 11 .4 million, includimigrest earned . The aggregate amount of thcimesaccount will continue to decrease over timevasnake the required capital expenditures in éspective
states. In September 2013, the letter of credilifiaexpired.

In addition, in certain states, we are subjecterating restrictions such as rate caps and minirsemvice quality standards ( whereby the failurenet may result in penalties, including, in oretestcash
management limitations on certain of our subsid&m that state). In one other state, our subgdiare subject to restrictions on the amountiwitidnds that can be paid to the parent compargutiir June 30,
2014. We are also required to report certain firericformation . At the federal level and in amber of the states in which we operate, we arfesuto price cap or incentive regulation plansemathich prices
for regulated services are capped. Some of theses fflave limited terms and, as they expire, we ne®d to re negotiate with various states. Thesetiatigns could impact rates, service quality and/o
infrastructure requirements which could impact earnings and capital expenditures. In other stateghich we operate, we are subject to rate afrretegulation that limits levels of earnings aetlirns on
investments. Approximately 19 % of our total acdesss at December 31, 2013 are in state jurisshistiunder the rate of return regulatory model. Wiflecontinue to advocate for no or reduced regatawvith
various regulatory agencies. In some of our statesave already been successful in reducing ovirgiting price regulation on end-user services.

Telecommunications providers are subject to FCEsrgloverning privacy of certain customer informatidmong other things, these rules obligate casrierimplement procedures to: protect certain costo
information from inappropriate disclosure; obtairstomer permission to use certain information inmk@téng; authenticate customers before disclosagpant information; and annually certify compliangigth

the FCC's rules. Although most of these regutatiare generally consistent with our business plaey may restrict our flexibility in operating obusiness during the specified periods, including ability to

raise rates in a declining revenue environmenttamdanage cash transfers from our subsidiariesdrstates if we do not meet certain operating serwiiteria.

Some legislation and regulations are, or couldhenfuture be, the subject of judicial proceeditggislative hearings and administrative proposalshallenges which could change the manner in wiiehentire
industry operates. Neither the outcome of anhhe$é developments, nor their potential impact orars be predicted at this time. Regulation cangk rapidly in the communications industry, anthsthanges
may have an adverse effect on us. See “Risk FaefRisks Related to Regulation—Changes in federatate regulations may reduce the switched accesgehevenues we receive.”

Recent and potential regulatory developments

The FCC, state regulators, and federal and stgtsldéors are currently considering a number oppsals for changing the manner in which eligibifity federal and state subsidies are determinadefisas the
amounts of such subsidies.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted an Ordeeftom the Federal Universal Service High-Cost F(d8F) and Intercarrier Compensation (“the Ordeffie Order changed how federal subsidies are
calculated and disbursed, with these changes Ipdiaged-in beginning in July 2012. These changesitian the Federal Universal Service High-Costd;umhich supports voice services in high-cost areathe
Connect America Fund (CAF), which supports broadb@eployment in high-cost areas. CAF Phase |, impleed in 2012, provide d for ongoing USF supparipfice cap carriers capped at the 2011 amount. In
addition, the FCC in CAF Phase | made availablepfaze cap ILECs an additional $300 million in ieorental high - cost broadband support to be uselrémdband deployment to unserved areas. In 20d2 a
early 2013, we received $71.9 million in thstfround of CAF Phase | funds and initially reded such funds as increases to Cash and Othditiésbin the balance sheet. The $71.9 milliortha first round

of CAF Phase | support is expected to enable aermental 92,877 households for broadband servicé\e are required to implement, spend and erthble 92,877 households no later than July 24,.201&
spent $32.7 million and $4.8 million of these furmsnetwork expansion in 2013 and 2012, respegtivehabling 64,4 00 households .

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report andr@udhorizing a second round of CAF Phase |. Asqfathis May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC exjeaithe areas eligible for funding to include thtbeset
lack service of 3Mbps download and 768 kbps upldad2013, Frontier applied for funds from the set@ound of CAF Phase | and in December 2013 thé B®arded $57.6 million to us to serve 94,899
locations in our high-cost, unserved and underskeaveas across multiple states. The FCC alsowuarted on January 10, 2014, that Frontier wasbéifor an additional $3.7 million in fu n ding serve 6,815
locations . The second round of CAF Phase lude s certain accompanying spending requiremeats the Company, and our capital expenditure ptake this into account. The CAF funds received are
accounted for as Contributions in Aid of Constrastand were initially recorded as increases to @ashOther liabilities on the balance sheet.
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The Order also reformed Intercarrier Compensatidrich is the payment framework that governs howiees compensate each other for the exchange efsiate traffic, and it began a multi-year traositin

July 2012, with the second step implemented in 20l43. The transition will move terminating traffio a near zero rate by 2017. Frontier expectsetable to recover a significant portion of thoseenues
through end user rates and other replacement supmhanisms. The Order has been challenged bgirtgrarties in court and certain parties have pkitioned the FCC to reconsider various aspecthef
Order. Accordingly, we cannot predict the longrtémpact at this time but believe that the Orddf provide a stable regulatory framework to faeilé our ongoing focus on the deployment of broadbato our

rural markets.

Future reductions in our subsidy or switched accegsnues may directly affect our profitability acaksh flows . Switched access and subsidy reveroremued to decline in 2013, as compared to 284d,are
expected to decline further in 2014.

The FCC also has an ongoing proceeding considevimether to make changes to its regulatory regimeeiging special access services, including whetbemandate lower rates, change standards for
deregulation and pricing flexibility, or to requickanges to other terms and conditions. When andthese proposed changes will be addressed iwmkand, accordingly, we are unable to predicirifact of
future changes on our results of operations.

Certain s tate regulatory commissions regulate soikee rates ILECs charge for intrastate servireduding rates for intrastate access serviced pgiproviders of intrastate long distance servicBse Order,
however, removes much of the states’ authorityetaerminating intrastate switched access rateis. &$pect of the Order has been challenged byirgygaties in court. Certain states also havé then open
proceedings to address reform to intrastate actemges and other intercarrier compensation arte staversal service funds. Although the FCC hasgmpted state jurisdiction on most access chamgasy
states could consider moving forward with theirgeredings. We cannot predict when or how these rsatié be decided or the effect on our subsidgpwitched access revenues.

Regulators at both the federal and state levelsiregmto address whether VolP services are subjettte same or different regulatory and intercartimpensation regimes as traditi onal voice tedegh The
FCC has concluded that VolP and facilities-basexadipand Internet access providers must comply thithCommunications Assistance for Law Enforcemectt, A decision that the United States Court of
Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit hashetd. The FCC has also required VolP providerprtavide enhanced 911 em ergency calling capalsilifie the Order, the FCC has determined that VolP-
originated traffic terminating on the Public SwiéchTelephone Network is subject to interstate accates. Additionally, the Order requires VolPviders to pay interstate terminating interconnectibarges
and requires all carriers terminating traffic toyide appropriate call information, thus prohihitiso-called “phantom traffic.” However, t he F@€clined to address other VolP-related issues t &rd=CC has
stated its intent to address open questions regatte treatment of VolP services in its ongoir@-Bnabled Services Proceeding.” Internet telephmay have an advantage in the marketplace overaditional
services if this service remains less regulated.

Current and potential Internet regulatory obligatits

In connection with our Internet access offerings, sould become subject to laws and regulationeg are adopted or applied to the Internet. Themurrently only limited regulation applicable tiese
services.

The FCC has classified wireline bro adband Inteaweess service (whether provided over cable ecoehmunications facilities) , mobile wireless ézhdroadband Internet access service and othesfofm
broadband Internet access services as “informatovices” not subject to mandatory common carriagelation. Specifically, the FCC has determirteat these information services are functionallggnated
with any underlying telecommunications component that there is no obligation to separate outaffet that transmission component subject to comeamage regulation. As the significance of theeinet
expands, federal, state and local governments rasy laws and adopt rules and regulations, or app$fing laws and regulations to the Internet (idahg Internet access services), and related rsadterunder
consideration in both federal and state legislative regulatory bodies. We cannot predict whettheoutcome of pending or future proceedings withe beneficial or detrimental to our competitivasipion.

In October 2009, the FCC issued a proposed rulemgdkbking at rules to “Preserve a Free and Opterriet,” (i.e., net neutrality) including a recafesiation of the legal classification of broadband aroposed
restrictions on broadband network management pesctiOn December 21, 2010, the FCC adopted an wngesing some regulations on Internet service ipieyg. These regulations affect fixed and mobile
broadband providers differently. These regulatibasame effective November 20, 2011, and we aminpliance with these regulations. On January2044, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Citcui
vacated the portions of the FCC's rules that prigdibblocking and required non-discriminatory treant. The Chairman of the FCC has stated his tioteio preserve the spirit of the vacated ruf@se D.C.
Circuit's  ruling may be appealed or the FCC nal§etother regulatory actions to implement “Opeermet” policies. The future state of these regutest and their effect on us is unknown.
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Video programming

Federal, state and local governments extensivelylage the video services industry. Our fiber opiased video service is subject to, among otfiegs$, subscriber privacy regulations; requiremémas we carry
a local broadcast station or obtain consent toycaiocal or distant broadcast station; rules fanthise renewals and transfers; the manner inhaftiegram packages are marketed to subscriberspragdam
access requirements.

We provide video programming, on a limited basisDregon, Washington and Indiana pursuant to fiaesh permits and similar authorizations issuedtage and local franchising authorities. Most étises
are subject to termination proceedings in the eséatmaterial breach. In addition, most franchissguire payment of a franchise fee as a requitetnehe granting of authority.

Many franchises establish comprehensive facilitied service requirements, as well as specific custservice standards and monetary penalties forcompliance. In many cases, franchises are teitenf
the franchisee fails to comply with significant pigions set forth in the franchise agreement gangreystem operations. We believe that we are inptiance and meeting all material standards andireqents.
Franchises are generally granted for fixed termatdéast ten years and must be periodically redevk@cal franchising authorities may resist gnagta renewal if either past performance or the geotve
operating proposal is considered inadequate.

Environmental regulation

T he local exchange carrier subsidiaries we opemaesubject to federal, state and local laws agdlations governing the use, storage, disposairaf,exposure to hazardous materials, the reldgsalotants
into the environment and the remediation of conretidn. As an owner and former owner of propesty,are subject to environmental laws that couldasepliability for the entire cost of cleanup at @oninated
sites, including sites formerly owned by us, regessl of fault or the lawfulness of the activity tthhasulted in contamination. We believe that operations are in substantial compliance with applie
environmental laws and regulations.

Additional Information on AT&T Transaction

The ¢ onsummation of the AT&T Transaction is subjecthe satisfaction of certain conditions, inéhgireview or approval by the U.S. Department ddtide, the FCC and the Connecticut Public Utilities
Regulatory Authority, and other customary closimgditions. We expect the transaction to close égécond half of 2014. A full conversion of AT&TGonnecticut operations onto our existing systents an
networks is planned to correspond with the closafithe AT&T Transaction.

The AT&T Transaction will add approximately 2,70@@loyees to our Company, a majority of whom areesented by the Communications Workers of Ameitcdlowing the close of the AT&T Transaction,
we will operate in the State of Connecticut, &n#8 states overall, and have approximately356 employees , all located in the United States

On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment ldte bridge loan facility .  On January 2912, we entered into a bridge loan agreement (ticg8 Loan Agreement) among the Company, the lender
party thereto (the Lenders) and JPMorgan Chase,Badk, as administrative agent, pursuant to whighLenders have agreed at closing of the AT&T $aation to provide to us an unsecured bridge laaititly

for up to $1.9 billion (the Bridge Facility) for ¢hpurposes of funding (i) substantially all of thechase price for the AT&T Transaction and (i@ fiees and expenses incurred in connection withrémsactions
contemplated by the s tock p urchase a greemetitédoAT&T Transaction . Pursuant to the Bridge Léagreement, if and to the extent we do not, oruarable to, issue debt securities yielding up t® $illion

in gross cash proceeds on or prior to the closfrthe AT&T Transaction, we shall draw down up tabillion, less the amount of the debt securitieany, issued by us on or prior to the closinglef AT&T
Transaction, in aggregate principal amount of laamder the Bridge Facility.
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Segment Information

We currently operate in only one reportable segment

Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Orations and Export Sales
We have no foreign operations.

General

Order backlog is not a significant consideratiomim business. We have no material contractslmanracts that may be subject to renegotiatigorofits or termination at the election of the fealegovernment.
Intellectual Property

We believe that we have the trademarks, trade nameintellectual property licenses that are nesg<ser the operation of our business.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately BB, @mployees , as compared to approximately 14eployees as of December 31, 2012 . Approximael90 of our employees are represented by
unions . The number of employees covered by ctilie bargaining agreements that expired in 2018 have been extended and are still effective 42 approximately 2,600. The number of emeésy
covered by collective bargaining agreements thpiresn 2014 is approximately 1,200 . We consinler relations with our employees to be good.

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirementthefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchaka®. Accordingly, we file periodic reports, prpstatements and other information with the Seiasriand
Exchange Commission (SEC). These reports, pratersients and other information may be obtainedidiging the Public Reference Room of the SEC at E®lreet, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549 or by calling
the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SE@aias an Internet site_( www.sec.gpthat contains reports, proxy and informationestagnts and other information regarding the Comamother issuers
that file electronically.

We make available, free of charge on our websiie Amnual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportsqamm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amemdsn® these reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as samrmpracticable after we electronically file thekeEuments with, or furnish them to, the SEC. Théseuments may be accessed through our website at
www.frontier.comunder “Investor Relations.” The information postedinked on our website is not part of this repdVe also make our Annual Report available imged form upon request at no charge.

We also make available on our website, as noteslealw in printed form upon request, free of chame Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code ofrigssi Conduct and Ethics, and the charters for thitA

Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Govemaommittees of the Board of Directors. Stockbmddmay request printed copies of these materalsviting to: 3 High Ridge Park, Stamford,
Connecticut 06905 Attention: Corporate Secretary.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Before you make an investment decision with resfeany of our securities, you should carefully sider all the information we have included or irpmmated by reference in this Form 10-K and our sgbsnt
periodic filings with the SEC. In particular, yshould carefully consider the risk factors desatibelow and read the risks and uncertainties mkat&forward-looking statements” (which we do notdertake to
update) as set forth in the “Management’s Discumsaiod Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuft©perations” (the MD&A) section of this Form 10-Eny of which could materially adversely affect our
business, operating results, financial conditiod #re actual outcome of matters as to which forwaotting statements are made in this report. fi$les and uncertainties described below ar e robtily ones
facing our C ompany. Additional risks and uncertias that are not presently known to us or thatcweently deem immaterial or that are not spedifias, such as general economic conditions, msy al
adversely affect our business and operations. fdlleving risk factors should be read in conjunatigith the MD&A and the consolidated financial staents and related notes included in this report.

Risks Related to the AT&T Transaction
We may not consummate t he AT&T Transaction on tieems or timeline currently contemplated or at all

The consummation of the AT&T Transaction is subjectertain conditions, including (i) the absenéa @ourt or other governmental order prohibitimmnsummation of the transaction, (ji) the receipt of
applicable regulatory consents, (jii) the abserfca material adverse effect on the business tocheieed from AT&T and (iv) other customary closingnditions. We can make no assurances that theTAT&
Transaction will be consummated on the terms oeltire currently contemplated, or at all. We haxpemded and will continue to expend a significanbant of capital and management’s time and ressuwnoe
the AT&T Transaction, and a failure to consummagAT&T Transaction as currently contemplated, tall could have an adverse effect on our businmasresults of operations and cash flows. Intadwe
may choose to raise all or a portion of the finagaiequired to complete the AT&T Transaction ptmthe closing of such transaction. If we do sul & the AT&T Transaction is ultimately not consomated or
is delayed for a significant period of time, we kbbe obligated to pay significant interest expeguse other costs in connection with the financintheut achieving the expected benefits of the AT&Bnsaction.
The trading price of our securities could be adslgraffected if the AT&T Transaction is not consuated as currently contemplated, or at all.

Our effort to combine our business and the businésde acquired from AT&T may not be successful

The Company is devoting a significant amountimtand attention to the process of integratingaperations of our business and the business axdpgired from AT&T , which may decrease the time
that management will have to serve existing custenagtract new customers and develop new sereicssategies. The size and complexity of the aedlbusiness and the process of using our existingmon
support functions and systems to manage the achjirsiness after the acquisition, if not managetiampleted successfully by management, may rasiriterruptions of the business activities of @@mpany
that could have an adverse effect on the Compdmgmess, financial condition and results of openat

We may not realize the cost synergies that are@ptted from the AT&T Transaction.

The success of the AT&T Transaction will dependpant, on our ability to realize anticipated cogtexgies. The Company’s success in realizing ticese synergies, and the timing of this realization
depends on the successful integration of our besim@d operations with the acquired business aredatipns. Even if the Company is able to integthte Frontier and acquired businesses and opesation
successfully, this integration may not result ie thalization of the full benefits of the cost sygies that Frontier currently expects within théi@pated time frame or at all.

If the assets included in the business to be purskd from AT&T are insufficient to operate the acgad business, it could adversely affect the Comparusiness, financial condition and results of
operations.

Pursuant to the stock purchase agreement executamhnection with the AT&T Transaction, AT&T wilbatribute to the acquired business certain assetdiabilities of its local exchange business and
related landline activities in Connecticut, inclogivideo, broadband internet and switched longadist services provided to designated customergetbaa Connecticut. However, the contributed ass®ty not
be sufficient to operate all aspects of the acquiresiness and the Company may have to use assetsoorrces from our existing business or acquddétianal assets in order to operate the acquireiniess,
which could cost the Company more than we antieipat
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Pursuant to the stock purchase agreement, we leatagrcrights to cause AT&T to transfer to us asgeds required to be included in the acquired lessithat were not contributed as required. If ATI&T
unable or unwilling to transfer those assets toGbepany, or if AT&T and Frontier disagree aboutttter those assets were required to be contritatéed acquired business under the stock purclasement,
the Company might not be able to obtain those sissetimilar assets from others without significadditional costs or at all, which could adversdfect the Company’s business, financial cowditand results
of operations .

The Company’s business, financial condition and uits of operations may be adversely affected follogvconsummation of the AT&T Transaction if the Copany is not able to obtain requisite
consents or enter into certain agreements.

The products and services of the acquired buseressurrently provided by AT&T to certain customprssuant to master agreements, together with &M&T products or services. Pursuant to the stock
purchase agreement, we and AT&T have jointly edte use our reasonable best efforts for six neofutfiowing the consummation of the AT&T Transactio obtain any consents required to separate $uch
master agreements and assign to Frontier the pdtereof related to the acquired business. Tetbent that the parties are not able to obtainsart required consent, such contracts will naadsigned to us
and we may not be able to establish a direct oriakiip with such customers.

Frontier must also enter into agreements and oltairsents related to, among other things, videpspart and content, in order to provide video smwito customers in Connecticut following
consummation of the AT&T Transaction. In the evErantier is not able to enter into such agreementsbtain such consents, AT&T has agreed to asdagsuch services to be provided to Frontierlunti
October 1, 2014. If we are not able to enter ihi® video transport and content agreements andnoffte related consents by October 1, 2014, we nuybe able to provide such services to custonrers i
Connecticut following consummation of the AT&T Teattion, which could have an adverse impact orbosiness, financial condition and results of openat

Regulatory agencies may delay approval of the AT&&nsaction, fail to approve it, or approve it inmanner that may diminish the anticipated benefdsthe AT&T Transaction.

Completion of the AT&T Transaction is conditionepom the receipt of certain government consentsioapfs, orders and authorizations. While we intemgursue vigorously all required governmental
approvals and do not know of any reason why we dvowlt be able to obtain the necessary approvadstimely manner, the requirement to receive thegeovals before completion of the AT&T Transaction
could delay its completion. A lengthy delay in t@mpletion of the AT&T Transaction could diminigie anticipated benefits and/ or result in addéldransaction and financing costs, loss of reverareother
effects associated with uncertainty about the &etisn. In addition, until the AT&T Transaction éempleted, the attention of Frontier management beaunnecessarily d iverted from ongoing busireess
regular business responsibilities.

Further, governmental agencies may decline to geuired approvals, or they may impose conditiongheir approval of the AT&T Transaction that abllave an adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition and results of openat If certain governmental agencies declingrant any required approval for the AT&T Transagcfithe AT&T Transaction may not be consummated. In
addition, conditions imposed by governmental agezi connection with their approval of the AT&Tafisaction (such as service quality or capital edipere requirements) may restrict the Company'§itstio
achieve anticipated synergies, revenues and oas fl

The stock purchase agreement contains provisioret timay discourage other companies from trying taja@e Frontier.

The stock purchase agreement for the AT&T Traneacatontains provisions that may discourage a thady from submitting a business combination prapas us prior to the closing of the AT&T
Transaction that might result in greater value wo stockholders than the AT&T Transaction. The ktparchase agreement provides that we may notBedr substantially all of our assets unless thgeb
assumes in writing our obligations , including the&yment of the purchase price, under the stockhaise agreement. This would represent an additiowet! for a potential third party seeking a busines
combination with us .

Our stock price may be adversely affected if we anable to consummate the AT&T Transaction .

If the AT&T Transaction is not completed for anyasen, the trading price of Frontier's common statky decline to the extent that the market pricehef common stock reflects positive market
assumptions that the AT&T Transaction will be coetetl and the related benefits will be realizedbnker may also be subject to additional risk&i AT&T Transaction is not completed, including:
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« significant costs related to the transaction, sashegal, accounting, filing, financial advisorydaintegration costs that have already been induorewill continue up to closingThe Compan
currentlyexpectsthatit will incurapproximately £225 million to $27tmillion of costsrelated tcacquisition andntegrationactivitiesin 2014;
« significant interest expense will be incurred ibftier completes the financing of approximatelydillion prior to closing; and
« potential disruption to the business of Frontied distraction of its workforce and management te
The pendency of the AT&T Transaction could adverseffect the business and operations of Frontiercathe acquired business.

In connection with the pending AT&T Transactionjeo customers of the acquired business may delaefer decisions or may end their relationships wAF&T prior to completion of the AT&T
Transaction or with the Company after the AT&T Tsaction closes.

Risks Related to Our Business

The risks discussed below in this section refénéd‘Company” for ease of reference. The risks ggplus as a standalone entity before the AT&T Faation is completed, will continue to apply tafuse
AT&T Transaction is not completed for any reasod wiil also apply to the combined company assurtliegAT&T Transaction closes.

We will likely face further reductions in voice ctmmers, switched access minutes of use, long distarevenues and federal and state subsidy revenwagh could adversely affect us.

We have experienced declining voice customers,chett access minutes of use, long distance revefedeval and state subsidies and related reveneesube of economic conditions, increasing
competition, changing consumer behavior (such aslegis displacement of wireline use, e-mail usgaint messaging and increasing use of VolP), tdegpahanges and regulatory constraints. We iély
continue to experience reductions in the futurbe Tactors referred to above, among others, aedyltio cause our local network service, switchevoek access, long distance and subsidy revenuesrtiinue to
decline, and these factors may cause our cashaeddsy operations to decrease.

We face intense competition, which could adversaffect us.

The communications industry is extremely competitiVhrough mergers and various service expansiategtes, service providers are striving to provittegrated solutions both within and across
geographic markets. Our competitors include coitipetocal exchange carriers, Internet servicevjuters, wireless companies, VolP providers andecabmpanies that may provide services competititie the
services that we offer or intend to introduce. &l&o believe that wireless and cable telephonyigens have increased their penetration of variemsices in our markets. We expect that competitidhremain
robust. Our revenue and cash flow will be advgrsepacted if we cannot reverse our customer losses

We cannot predict which of the many possible futehnologies, products or services will be imputria order to maintain our competitive positionvdrat expenditures will be required to develop and
provide these technologies, products or servi€as: ability to compete successfully will dependtba success of capital expenditure investmentsiirpooperties , in addition to our new marketinfpes, our
ability to anticipate and respond to various coritipetfactors affecting the industry, including hamging regulatory environment that may affectlmusiness and that of our competitors differentguwrservices
that may be introduced, changes in consumer prefese demographic trends, economic conditions aivihg strategies by competitors. Increasing cditipe may reduce our revenues and increase our
marketing and other costs as well as require irsctease our capital expenditures and thereby deereur cash flows.
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Some of our competitors have superior resourcesioliimay place us at a cost and price disadvantage.

Some of our competitors have market presence, eagiy, technical, marketing and financial captiegi substantially greater than ours. In addjtsmme of these competitors are able to raisealagit
a lower cost than we are able to. Consequentlyesufithese competitors may be able to develop aparel their communications and network infrastrregumore quickly, adapt more swiftly to new or egireg
technologies and changes in customer requiremiakis,advantage of acquisition and other opporesitiore readily and devote greater resources tmé#nketing and sale of their products and servicas we
will be able to. Additionally, the greater brananme recognition of some competitors may requirtoysice our services at lower levels in orderdtain or obtain customers. Finally, the cost acages of some
of these competitors may give them the abilityetduce their prices for an extended period of tiftleey so choose.

We may be unable to stabilize or grow our revenaes cash flows despite the initiatives we have iempénted.

We must produce adequate revenues and cash flaysathen combined with cash on hand and funds &bdailunder our revolving credit facility, will befficient to service our debt, fund our capital
expenditures, pay our taxes, fund our pension aner @mployee benefit obligations and pay dividepdisuant to our dividend policy. We have experehmevenue declines in 2013 and 2012 as compared to
prior years. While w e have identified some potrareas of opportunity and implemented severamee initiatives, w e cannot assure you that thepertunities will be successful or that theseatiites will
improve our financial position or our results okogtions.

Weak economic conditions may decrease demand farsauvices or necessitate increased discounts.

W e could be adversely impacted by weak economiditions or their effects . Downturns in the ecmryoand competition in our markets could cause sofreir customers to reduce or eliminate their
purchases of our basic and enhanced voice serinesiband and video services and make it diffifaulus to obtain new customers. In addition,cémomic conditions deteriorate , our customers delgy or
discontinue payment for our services or seek monepetitive pricing from other service providerswe may be required to offer increased discountsdier to retain our customers.

Disruption in our networks, infrastructure and infomation technology may cause us to lose customerd icur additional expenses.

To attract and retain customers, we must providiable service. Some of the risks to our netwoikérastructure and information technology includleysical damage, security breaches, capacity
limitations, power surges or outages, softwareatefand other disruptions beyond our control, asatural disasters and acts of terrorism. Fiom to time in the ordinary course of business ewperience
short disruptions in our service due to factorshsas cable damage, theft of our equipment, inclemeather and service failures of our third-paryvice providers. We could experience more sigaift
disruptions in the future. We could also faceufisions due to capacity limitations if changes um oustomers’ usage patterns for our broadbandcssrvesult in a significant increase in capacitljzation, such
as through increased usage of video or peer-tofileesharing applications. Disruptions may cairgerruptions in service or reduced capacity fostomers, either of which could cause us to los¢oousrs
and/or incur additional expenses, and thereby adlieaffect our business, revenues and cash flows.

Our business is sensitive to the creditworthine$®or wholesale customers .

We have substantial business relationships witeratbmmunications carriers for whom we provide iserv While bankruptcies of these carriers havehaot a material adverse effect on our business in
recent years, future bankruptcies in the industyldt result in the loss of significant customersds, as well as cause more price competition aniti@eased allowance for doubtful accounts retdé/aSuch
bankruptcies may be more likely in the future ibeemic conditions stagnate. As a result, our reesrand results of operations could be materiallyadversely affected.

A significant portion of our workforce is represead by labor unions.

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately 58, @nployees. Approximately 8,400 of these emgesy or 62 % of the total workforce, were represgily unions and were therefore subject to
collective bargaining agreements. As of Decembe2813, we had approximately 2,600 employees covisyecollective bargaining agreements that expine2013, but have been extended and are still taffec

in 2014 . Of the union-represented employees d3ecember 31, 2013, approximately 1,200 , or 14&bthe unionized workforce are covered by colleetagreements that expire in 2014 and approximately
1,350, or 16 %, of the unionized workforce areered by collective bargaining agreements thatrexpi2015.
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We cannot predict the outcome of negotiations efdbllective bargaining agreements covering ourleyegs. If we are unable to reach new agreementnew existing agreements, employees subject
to collective bargaining agreements may engagériies, work slowdowns or other labor actions, whéould materially disrupt our ability to providersices. New labor agreements or the renewal istiegy
agreements may impose significant new costs owhish could adversely affect our financial condit@nd results of operations in the future.

If we are unable to hire or retain key personnelewnay be unable to operate our business successfull

Our success will depend in part upon the contirseglices of our management. We cannot guaran&etin key personnel will not leave or compete wish The loss, incapacity or unavailability for
any reason of key members of our management teaid bave a material impact on our business. Iritidd our financial results and our ability to cpate will suffer should we become unable to attract
integrate or retain other qualified personnel i filture.

We may complete a future significant strategic tigaction that may not achieve intended results oulebincrease the number of our outstanding sharesamount of outstanding debt or result in a
change of control.

We continuously evaluate and may in the futurereimi® additional strategic transactions , sucttresAT&T Transaction . Any such transaction cobbpen at any time, could be material to our
business and could take any number of forms, imetydor example, an acquisition, merger or a sélall or substantially all of our assets.

Evaluating potential transactions and integratiogipleted ones may divert the attention of our memant from ordinary operating matters. The sucoésisese potential transactions will depend, in
part, on our ability to realize the anticipated wtio opportunities and cost synergies through thecesssful integration of the businesses we acquitie our existing business. Even if we are sucesssf
integrating acquired businesses, we cannot assurehat these integrations will result in the reatiion of the full benefit of any anticipated grbmapportunities or cost synergies or that thesesfitsrwill be
realized within the expected time frames. In dddijtacquired businesses may have unanticipateititiies or contingencies.

If we complete an acquisition, investment or otsteategic transaction, we may require additionaricing that could result in an increase in the memof our outstanding shares or the aggregate atmou

of our debt. The number of shares of our commocksor the aggregate principal amount of our dieét we may issue may be significant. A strategingaction may result in a change in control ofaampany
or otherwise materially and adversely affect ousibess.

18



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Risks Related to Liquidity, Financial Resources anCapitalization

Volatility in asset values related to Frontier’s psion plan and/or changes in pension plan assumpsanmay require us to make additional unanticipatedntributions to fund pension plan liabilities.

Frontier's pension plan assets have decreased$fio53.6 million at December 31, 2012 to $ 1,21r6illion at December 31, 2013, a decrease of $13million, or 3 %. This decrease is a result of
benefit payments of $ 218.8 million, primarily lurapm settlements of $ 164.6 million, offset by tisiinvestment returns of $ 1 19.4 million, casimtributions of $38.9 million and real property tdloutions of
$23.4 million. The Company expects to make contiiims of approximately $100 million in 2014. Valiy in our asset values or returns may requiréausiake additional contributions in future years.

The Company will, upon consummation of the AT&T fisaction, maintain pension plans that assume tingired business’s pension plan liabilities for eetemployees. AT&T will transfer assets to the
pension plans pursuant to applicable law and thestef the stock purchase agreement for the AT&an$action. The aggregate asset transfer relatéuettax-qualified pension plans will be equattie
projected benefit obligations assumed as of theimgpdate of the AT&T Transaction . Following th&&T Transaction, the Company will be responsitie faking any required contributions to the newspam
plans to fund liabilities of the plans, and the oing pension expenses of the acquired businessegayre the Company to make cash contributiongspect of the acquired business’s pension platitities.

Substantial debt and debt service obligations mdyersely affect us.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness, wainbunted to $ 8.1 billion at December 31, 2013.Hatee access to a $750.0 million revolving creatiility and may also obtain additional long-term
debt and working capital lines of credit to meetfa financing needs, subject to certain restmationder the terms of our existing indebtednesadtition, we entered into the Bridge Loan AgreenwenJanuary
29, 2014 and expect to incur $1.9 billion of aidial indebtedness in connection with the closifithe AT&T Transaction, either pursuant to an dffgrof debt securities or under the Bridge Facilgspite the
substantial indebtedness that we have, we arerabifjited from incurring additional indebtednedshe AT&T Transaction is completed and we weréntur additional indebtedness, the risks that tefsoin our
substantial indebtedness could be magnified.

The potential significant negative consequencesusrfinancial condition and results of operatidmattcould result from our substantial debt include:

« limitations on our ability to obtain additional dedy equity financing

« instances in which we are unable to meet the caisrentained in our debt agreements or to genesate sufficient to make required debt paymentsclwbircumstances have the potentie
accelerating the maturity of some or all of ourstannding indebtednes

« the allocation of a substantial portion of our cietv from operations to service our debt, thusuedg the amount of our cash flow available foresthurposes, including operating costs, ce
expenditures and dividends that would otherwiserawp our competitive position, results of operasion stock price

« requiring us to sell debt or equity securitiesasell some of our core assets, possibly on unéblerterms, to meet payment obligations;
« compromising our flexibility to plan for, or redct, competitive challenges in our business and:éimemunications industry; and

« the possibility of our being put at a competitivieadlvantage with competitors who do not have ashndebt as we do, and competitors who may be in g favorable position to acc
additional capital resource

In addition, our senior notes are rated below “stweent grade” by independent ratings agenciess m result in higher borrowing costs for us. &&enot assure you that these rating agencies atill n
lower our current debt ratings, if in the ratingeagies’ judgment, such an action is appropriatdowering of a rating may further increase our fatbhorrowing costs and reduce our access to capital
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We cannot assure that we will be able to continwyimg dividends.

Effective February 16, 2012, our Board of Directses the annual cash dividend at $0.40 per shareetfer, the amount and timing of future dividengrpents is subject to applicable law and will be
made at the discretion of our Board of DirectorsduBon factors such as cash flow and cash requitsn@apital expenditure requirements, financialditton and other factors.

We have a significant amount of goodwill and othietangible assets on our balance sheet. If our gadll or other intangible assets become impaireds may be required to record a non-cash charge
to earnings and reduce our stockholders’ equity.

Under generally accepted accounting principlesngible assets are reviewed for impairment on ana@rbasis or more frequently whenever eventsrougistances indicate that their carrying value may
not be recoverable. The Company monitors relegantmstances, including general economic conditi@nterprise value EBITDA multiples for other ulisEC properties, the Company’s overall financial
performance, and the market prices for the Compangmmon stock, and the potential impact that cesirig such circumstances might have on the valatfache Company’s goodwill or other intangible
assets. If our goodwill or other intangible assets determined to be impaired in the future, wg marequired to record a non-cash charge to egsrinring the period in which the impairment isedetined ,
which would reduce our stockholders’ equity .

Risks Related to Regulation
Changes in federal or state regulations may reduce the switdlaEcess charge revenues we receive.

A significant portion of Frontier’s total revenuéb 234.5 million, or 5 %, in 2013 and $282.3 mitijcor 6%, in 2012) are derived from switched aca#ssges paid by other carriers for services we
provide in originating and terminating intrastatelanterstate long distance traffic. As a resiitgntier expects a significant portion of the Compa revenues will continue to be derived from shitd access
charges paid by these carriers for services tlea€tmpany will provide in originating and termimaithis traffic. The amount of switched accessghaevenues that the Company will receive foreteevices
is regulated by the FCGand state regulatory agencies and is expectedctmelén 2014.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the Orderdeyy Intercarrier Compensation, which is the paghframework that governs how carriers compensath other for the exchange of interstate
traffic . The Order began a multi-year transitioduly 2012, with the second step implementedilp 2013. The transition will move terminating fiafto a near zero rate by 2017. Frontier is péedito recover
a significant portion of those revenues through esef rates and other replacement support mechanfsditionally, the Order requires VolP providéospay interstate terminating interconnection ckargnd
requires all carriers terminating traffic to progidppropriate call information, thus prohibitingcadled “phantom traffic’. The reform of the Unigal Service Fund shifts the existing High-Costtiparof the
fund from supporting voice services to supportingaolband deployment in high-cost areas. The Quompts the states with regard to the regulatiantastate terminating access rates. The Ordesrldeen
challenged by certain parties in court and cenpairties have also petitioned the FCC to reconsidepus aspects of the Order. Accordingly, althoughbelieve that the Order will provide a stablgulatory
framework to facilitate our ongoing focus on th@ldgment of broadband into its rural markets, wenz predict the long-term impact at this time.

The FCC also has an ongoing proceeding considevirgther to make changes to its regulatory regimeeging special access services. When and how tiregmsed changes will be addressed is
unknown and, accordingly, we cannot predict thesiotpf future changes on the Company’s resultpefations.

Certain states also have their own open proceedingddress reform to intrastate access chargesthrd intercarrier compensation and state univeesaice funds. Although the FCC has pre-empted
state jurisdiction on most access charges, mamgsstauld consider moving forward with their pradiegs. We cannot predict when or how these matters williéeided or the effect on the Company's subsidy
or switched access revenues. However, future tieshscin the Company's subsidy or switched accessrues may directly affect the Company’s profligband cash flows as those regulatory revenuesato
have an equal level of associated variable expenses
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We are reliant on support funds provided under fedleand state laws.

A significant portion of Frontier's total revenug@317.1 million in the aggregate, or 7 %, in 2@H8l $324.6 million in the aggregate, or 6%, in JGir2 derived from federal and sta te subsidiesufiai
and high- cost support, commonly referred to asarsal service fund subsidies (USF) . Future rédos in the Company’s subsidy revenues may direaffect the Company’s profitability and cash flowhe
FCC's Order changed how federal subsidies wilt@leulated and disbursed, with these changes Iptiaged-in beginning in 2012. These changes tiamshe Federal Universal Service High-Cost Fumdich
supports voice services in high-cost areas, t&€ChE, which supports broadband deployment in higét-emeas. CAF Phase |, implemented in 2012, pravifte ongoing USF support for price cap carrieapped
at the 2011 amount. In addition, the FCC in thstfiound of CAF Phase | made available for prige it&£Cs an additional $300 million in incrementagitn - cost broadband support to be used for brazdiba
deployment to unserved areas. On July 24, 201atierdormally notified the FCC and appropriatetsteommissions of its intent to accept all of theds for which it was eligible, amounting to $7in8lion.
The $71.9 million in the first round of CAF Phassupport is expected to enable an incremental 98useholds for broadband service and will be @uteal for as Contributions in Aid of Constructione are
required to spend the CAF Phase | funds on andleniabse 92,877 households no later than July @#5.2We have received the entire $71.9 milliorthef first round of CAF Phase | support funds and we
initially recorded such funds as increases to @ashOther liabilities in the balance sheet.

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report andr@idborizing a second round of CAF Phase |. As glathis May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC exealnthe areas eligible for funding to include
those that lack service of 3Mbps download and 7&skupload. In 2013, Frontier applied for fundsnirthe second round of CAF Phase | and in Dece2®&8 the FCC awarded $57.6 million to us to serve
94,899 locations in our high-cost, unserved ancetsetved areas across multiple states. The FCCaatsaunced on January 10, 2014, that Frontier Vigible for an additional $3.7 million in funding tserve
6,815 locations . We may need to match a portidheofunding received from the second round of GAfase | to support these projects .

Federal subsidies representing interstate acceg®guhigh- cost loop support and local switchsngport represented $ 167.2 million, or 4 %, ofrfie’s total revenues in 2013 and $160.7 million,
3%, of Frontier's total revenues in 2012. Statesgies represented $ 32.4 million, or 1 %, of Fewts total revenues in 2013 and $44.2 million186, in 2012. Surcharges to customers (local, lisgance and
interconnection) to recover universal service fandtribution fees which are remitted to the FCC sewbrded as an expense in “Other operating exp&nspresented $ 117.5 million, or 2 %, of Fronigotal
revenues in 2013 and $119.7 million, or 2%, in 20A2 a result, a significant decrease in thessidigs, or in our ability to recover such fees,|dchave a material adverse effect on our businesssuilts of
operations.

Our Company and our industry will likely remain higy regulated, and we could incur substantial corgice costs that could constrain our ability to cpete in our target markets.

As an incumbent local exchange carrier, some ofémeices we offer are subject to significant ragah from federal, state and local authoritiefisTregulation could impact our ability to change o
rates, especially on our basic voice services amdiccess rates, and could impose substantial ¢amepl costs on us. Regulation could constrainability to compete and, in some jurisdictions, megtrict our
ability to expand our service offerings. In aduliti changes to the regulations that govern oumkessi(including any implementation of the Orderyrhave an adverse effect on our business by reglubia
allowable fees that we may charge, imposing aduificompliance costs, reducing the amount of sigssior otherwise changing the nature of our opanatand the competition in our industry. At thindiit is
unknown how these regulations will affect Fronsedperations or ability to compete in the futufdis and other FCC rulemakings and state regulagpoogeedings, including those relating to interiearr
compensation, universal service and broadbandcssrvtould have a substantial adverse impact ooprrations.

In addition, in connection with our Internet acceéferings, we could become subject to laws andilegipns as they are adopted or applied to therete There is currently only limited regulation
applicable to these services. As the significaofcthe Internet expands, federal, state and locaégments may pass laws and adopt rules and temsaor apply existing laws and regulations te thternet
(including Internet access services), and relatatters are under consideration in both federalsiate legislative and regulatory bodies. We capnedict whether the outcome of pending or futiacpedings
will prove beneficial or detrimental to our compie® position.
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We may not be able to deploy or upgrade broadbagntise to the unserved and underserved locationthwiie CAF funds received.

During 2012 and early 2013, we received $71.9 arillirom the first round of CAF Phase | , which soip broadband deployment in high-cost areas. eliave unable to deploy to the 92,877 unserved
locations with the CAF funds received to date incrdance with the FCC rules by July 2015, thenGbmpany would need to incur additional capital exfieires or refund a portion of the CAF funds reediin
2012 and 2013 to the FCC.

On August 20, 2013, Frontier applied for $71.5 imillfrom the second round of CAF Phase | to supihertdelivery of broadband to an additional 119,860seholds. The FCC announced on December
5, 2013, that it award ed $57.6 million to us toveed4,899 locations in our high-cost, unserved anderserved areas across multiple states. Wereaeésed this funding in December 2013. The R0
announced on January 10, 2014, that Frontier waiblel for an additional $3.7 million in funding 8erve 6,815 locations. We may need to match #opaof the funding received from the second rooh@€AF
Phase | to support these projects.

Risks Related to Technology
In the future, as competition continues within oumarkets, we may be unable to meet the technologiesds or expectations of our customers, and magloustomers as a result.

The communications industry is subject to significehanges in technology and r eplacing or upgadim infrastructure to keep pace with such teabgiokl changes could result in significant capital
expenditures. If we do not replace or upgraderteltiyy and equipment, we may be unable to comptetizely because we will not be able to meetrieds or expectations of our customers.

In addition, enhancements to product offerings taiedmanagement of broadband speed and capacigsissay influence our customers to consider otheicgeproviders, like cable operators or wireless
providers. We may be unable to attract or retaw rustomers from cable companies due to theirogepnt of enhanced broadband and VolP technoltgyddition, new capacity services for wireless
broadband technologies may permit our competitrsffer broadband data services to our customeosiginout most or all of our service areas.

Our services could be adversely affected and we tagubject to increased costs and claims in conioecwith Internet and systems security and malio®practices.

We use encryption and authentication technolognbed from third parties to provide secure transimisof confidential information, including our bosss data and customer information. We also rely
on employees in our network operations centersy danters, call centers and retail stores to folbmw procedures when handling such informationy Anauthorized access, computer viruses, accidental
intentional release of confidential informationather disruptions could result in increased caststomer dissatisfaction leading to loss of custsraed revenues, and fines and other liabilities.

In addition, our Company or our customers usingraiwork to access the Internet may become viaimalicious and abusive Internet activities, inahgdunsolicited mass advertising (“spam”), peer-to-
peer file sharing, distribution of viruses, wornmslather destructive or disruptive software. Thestivities could adversely affect our network,ufein excessive call volume at our call centerd damage our or
our customers’ equipment and data.

Despite security measures and business continlaiyspthe Company’s information technology netwarks infrastructure may be vulnerable to damageupgtions or shutdowns due to attack by hackers
or breaches, employee error or malfeasance, powtages, computer viruses, telecommunication oityfiilures, systems failures, natural disasterstber catastrophic events. Any such events caeddlt in
legal claims or proceedings, liability or penaltjegisruption in operations, misappropriation afisiéve data, damage to the Company’s reputatiehcastly response measures, which could adversielytahe
Company'’s business. There can be no assurancsutfatisruptions or misappropriations and the tiesutepercussions will not be material to our tessaf operations, financial condition or cash flw
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. _Properties
Our principal corporate offices are located in éghpremises at 3 High Ridge Park, Stamford, Commgd6905.
Our principal operations support offices and catiter support offices are currently located inftilewing leased or owned premises :

« 8001 W. Jefferson Blvd., Fo rt Wayne, Indiana 46804

« 1500 MacCorkle Avenue, Char leston, West Virgiri@@3
« 805 South Central Expressway , Allen, Texas 75013

« 1398 South Woodland Ivd., DeLand, Florida 3272

« 1800 41"Streei, Everett, Washington 982(

« 180 South Clinton Avenue , Rochester, New York 5464
« 1300 Columbus-Sandusky R oad North, Marion, Ohig023
« 14450 Bumhaven DriveBurnsville, Minnesota 553C

« 1225 Jefferson Road, Rochester, New York 1<

« 14 Classic Street, Sherburne, New York 13460

« 100 CTE Drive, Dallas, Pennsylvania 18612

In addition, we lease and own additional spaceuinoperating markets throughout the United Staiesperations support and call center support.

Our network properties include: connecting linesseen customers' premises and the central officestral office switching equipment; fiber optindamicrowave radio facilities; buildings and larahd
customer premise equipment. The connecting limeduding aerial and underground cable, conduitepolvires and microwave equipment, are locatedutrigstreets and highways or on privately ownetila
We have permission to use these lands pursuaocabgovernmental consent or lease, permit, frasgcldasement or other agreement.

The plants and properties (owned or leased) opgblteis and our subsidiaries are maintained in goodition and are believed to be suitable and @akecfor our present needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated FinaStatiements included in Part IV of this report.

We are party to various legal proceedings (inclgdimividual, class and putative class actionsjimgi in the normal course of our business covegimgde range of matters and types of claims inalgidbut not
limited to, general contracts, billing disputeghts of access, taxes and surcharges, consuntecpon, trademark and patent infringement, empleymregulatory, tort, claims of competitors anspdites with
other carriers. Litigation is subject to uncertgiand the outcome of individual matters is notdizeable. However, we believe that the ultimatohetion of all such matters, after consideringiiasice coverage
or other indemnities to which we are entitled, witit have a material adverse effect on our finamaiaition, results of operations, or our cash iow

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relted Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Eiity Securities

Our common stock is currently traded on the NASD&IQbal Selec t Market under the symbol FTR. The @amand timing of dividends payable on our commimels are within the sole discret ion of our Board
of Directors. Effective February 16, 2012, our Bbaf Directors set the annual cash dividend a#®@er share.  Cash dividends paid to sharetsidere $ 399.8 million and $399.4 million in 20d:&d 2012 ,
respectively. There are no material restrictiom®or ability to pay dividends.

A portion of the dividends is classified as totedinary dividends and represents qualified dividgrahd a portion of the dividends is classifiethas-dividend distributions and represents a retdicapital.

The following table indicates the high and low &attay sales prices per sh are , as reported BYAISAQ Global Select Market, and sets forth dividempaid per share during the periods indicated.

2013 2012
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quarte! $ 468 $ 371 % 0.10 $ 537 $ 381 $ 0.10
Second Quarte $ 443 $ 380 $ 0.10 $ 444 $ 3.06 $ 0.10
Third Quartel $ 476 $ 391 $ 0.10 $ 515 $ 359 $ 0.10
Fourth Quarte $ 502 $ 416 $ 0.10 $ 498 $ 409 $ 0.10

As of February 1 4, 2014, the approximate numibeeourity holders of record of our common stocls\s81,760. This information was obtained from oansfer agent, Computershare Inc.
STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following performance graph compares the cutiveldotal return of our common stock to the S&P Sock Index and to the S&P Telecommunication Besvindex for the five-year period commencing
December 31, 2008.

COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Frontier Communications Corporation, the S&P 500 index,
and the S&P Telecommunication Senvcies index
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—+&— Frontier Communications Corporation ———— S&P 500Index  ----o---- S&P Telecommunication Services

The graph assumes that $100 was invested on Dec@&hp2008 in each of our common stock, the S&P Sk Index and the S&P Telecommunication Senvicdex and that all dividends were reinvested.
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INDEXED RETURNS

Base Years Ending

Period
Company / Index 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13
Frontier Communications Corporation 100 102.05 141.83 83.92 76.52 91.34
S&P 500 Index 100 126.46 145.51 148.59 172.37 228.19
S&P Telecommunication Services 100 108.93 129.59 137.71 162.92 181.60

The foregoing performance graph and related infarorashall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such informati be incorporated by reference into any futurindis
under the Securities Act of 1933 or the SecurHieshange Act of 1934, each as amended, excepe &xthnt we specifically incorporate it by refereimto such filing.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES, USE OF REEEDS FROM REGISTERED SECURITIES

No ne in the fourth quarter of 2013 .

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Period Total Number of Shares Purcha: Average Price Paid per Sh¢

October 1, 2013 to October 31, 2013
Employee Transactior® - $

November 1, 2013 to November 30, 2(
Employee Transactior$ 2,235 $ 457

December 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013
Employee Transactiorf$ - $
Totals October 1, 2013 to December 31, 2
Employee Transactior$ 2,235 $ 457

@ Includes restricted shares withheld (under the seofngrants under employee stock compensation Jplaneffset minimum tax withholding obligations thaccur upon the vesting of restricted shares. Chepany’s stock
compensation plans provide that the value of shaitbdeld shall be the average of the high and polwe of the Company’s common stock on the dateelerant transaction occurs.
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The following tables present selected historicalsatidated financial information of Frontier foretiperiods indicated. The selected historical clintested financial information of Frontier as of afu each of the
five fiscal years in the period ended December281.3 has been derived from Frontier's historicaismiidated financial statements. The selectedfiisti consolidated financial information as of Betwer 31,
2013 and 2012 and for each of the three years ebDéedmber 31, 2013 is derived from the auditecbticstl consolidated financial statements of Franitieluded elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The seldct
historical consolidated financial information as@écember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and for eacheofi¢ars ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 is derme the audited historical consolidated finahcia

statements of Frontier not included in this ForrK10

(8 in thousands, except per share amou

Revenue

Income from continuing operatio®®®®

Net income attributable to comm
shareholders of Fronti&®®®

Net income attributable to comm
shareholders of Frontier per basic
share®?®@®®

Net income attributable to comm
shareholders of Frontier per dilut
share®?®@®®

Cash dividends declared (and paid) per
common shar

Total assets
Long-term deb
Total shareholders' equity of Frontier

Year Ended December 3%,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 4,761,57¢ $ 5,011,85: $ 5,243,04: $ 3,797,67¢ $ 2,117,89¢
$ 115,47¢ $ 153,314 $ 157,608 $ 155,717 $ 123,181
$ 112,83% $ 136,63€ $ 149,614 $ 152,673 $ 120,782
$ 011 $ 0.14 $ 0.15 $ 023 $ 0.38
$ 011 $ 0.13 $ 0.15 $ 0.23 $ 0.38
$ 040 $ 040 $ 075 $ 0.875 $ 1.00

As of December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 16,635,48¢ $ 17,733,63: $ 17,448,31¢ $ 17,888,101 $ 6,903,52¢
$ 7,873,667 $ 8,381,947 $ 8,224,392 $ 8,005,68t $ 4,819,402
$ 4,055,481 $ 4,107,59% $ 4,455,137 $ 5,196,74C $ 327,611

®  Operating results include activities for the @@%cquired Business from the date of its acquisita July 1, 2010.

@ Operating results include the pre-tax impactisées on retirement of debt or exchanges of deb199.8 million ($98.9 million, or $0.10 per shaadter tax), $90.4 million ($56.7 million, or $&@er share,

after tax) and $45.9 million ($28.9 million, or $0.per share, after tax) for 2013, 2012 and 20&¢pactively.
©  Operating results include pre-tax acquisitiod @ntegration costs of $9.7 million ($6.1 millioor, $0.01 per share, after tax), $81.7 million (€5thillion, or $0.05 per share, after tax), $14@illion ($87.3
million, or $0.09 per share, after tax), $137.1lionl ($85.7 million, or $0.13 per share, after taxjd $28.3 million ($17.8 million, or $0.06 per shaafter tax) for 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009,

respectively.

=

) Operating results include pre-tax severance afstsl1.5 million ($ 7.3 million, or $ 0.01 perasie, after tax), $32.0 million ($20.1 million, d®.$2 per share, after tax), $15.7 million ($9.6limrl, or $0.01 per

share, after tax), $10.4 million ($6.4 million,$0.01 per share, after tax) and $3.8 million ($ehitlion, or $0.01 per share, after tax) for 202812, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

® Operating results include pre-tax pension settietnoosts of $ 44.2 million ($ 27.4 million, or 98 per share, after tax) for 2013.
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Item 7. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements
This annual report on Form 10-K contains forwardkiog statements that are subject to risks andrtainées that could cause actual results to diffieterially from those expressed or implied in stements.
Statements that are not historical facts are faii@oking statements made pursuant to the safeohgriovisions of The Private Securities LitigatiBeform Act of 1995. Words such as “believe,” “aigtate,”
“expect” and similar expressions are intended &niifly forward-looking statements. Forward-lookistatements (including oral representations) arg prgdictions or statements of current plans, whigh
review continuously. Forward-looking statements/rdifer from actual future results due to, but tiotited to, and our future results may be matériaffected by, the following potential risks oraertainties.
You should understand that it is not possible &djmt or identify all potential risks or uncertags. We note the following as a partial list:
+  Our ability to complete the acquisition of the Ceaticut operations from AT&T

The ability to successfully integrate tConnecticuoperationsof AT&T into our existing operation

The risk that the growth opportunities and costregs/from the AT&T Transaction may not be fully liead or may take longer to realize than expec
« The sufficiency of the assets to be acquired froR&A to enable the combined company to ope the acquired busines

Failure to enter into or obtain, or delays in emiginto or obtaining, certain agreements and cotsseecessary to operate the acquired businedaraseq;

The failure to obtain, delays in obtaining or aceeconditions contained in any required regulaspprovals for the AT&T Transactio
« The effects of increased expenses incurred duetitdties related to the AT&T Transactio

Disruption from the AT&T Transaction making it mad#ficult to maintain relationships with customenssuppliers

« The effects of greater than anticipated competitiom cable, wireless and other wireline carriévattcould require us to implement new pricing, meéirlg strategies or new product or service offesiagt
the risk that we will not respond on a timely oofitable basis

+ Reductions in the number of our voice customerswieecannot offset with increases in broadbandailiess and sales of other products and serv
+  Our ability to maintain relationships with custorsieemployees or suppliel

The effects of ongoing changes in the regulatiothefcommunications industry as a result of fedanal state legislation and regulation, or changeke enforcement or interpretation of such legjmtaanc
regulation;

The effects of any unfavorable outcome with respeety current or future legal, governmental gutatory proceedings, audits or dispu
« The effects of changes in the availability of fedemd state universal service funding or othesisliés to us and our competito
+  Our ability to successfulladjustto changes in the communications industry and fément strategies for growt

Continued reductions in switched access revenuasesult of regulation, competition or technolegystitutions
«  Our ability to effectively manage service qualitydur territories and meet mandated service qualirics;

Our ability to successfully introduce new produifenngs, including our ability to offer bundledrs&e packages on terms that are both profitablestand attractive to custome
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The effects of changes in accounting policies actices adopted voluntarily or as required by galiyeaccepted accounting principles or regulatic
Our ability to effectively manage our operationgemting expenses and capital expenditures, arepay, reduce or refinance our de

The effects of changes in both general and locah@mic conditions on the markets that we servechvisan affect demand for our products and servinestomer purchasing decisions, collectabilit
revenues and required levels of capital expenditteated to new construction of residences anthesses

The effects of technological changes and compatidio our capital expenditures, products and semffagings, including the lack of assurance that wetwork improvements in speed and capacity ve
sufficient to meet or exceed the capabilities amality of competing network:

The effects of increased medical expenses (inotpdm a result of the impact of the Patient Pratectind Affordable Care Act) arpkension and postemployment expenses, such aseretieeical an
severance costs, and related funding requirem

The effects of changes in income tax rates, tas |@aegulations or rulings, or federal or stateassessment

Our ability to successfully renegotiate union ceaots;

Changes in pension plan assumptions and/or the wdlaur pension plan assets which could requirte nsake increased contributions to the pension pi2014 and beyon
The effects of economic downturns, including cugtolmankruptcies and home foreclosures, which caeddlt in difficulty in collection of revenues atabs of customer:

Adverse changes in the credit markets or in thiegatgiven to our debt securities by nationallyradited ratings organizations, which could limitrestrict the availability, or increase the coséfiimancingto
us;

Our cash flow from operations, amount of capitadenditures, debt service requirements, cash paiddome taxes and liquidity may affect our paymefindividends on our common shar
The effects of state regulatory cash managementipea that could limit our ability to transfer baamong our subsidiaries or dividend funds up éoprent company; ar

The effects of severe weather events such as aoesg tornadoes, ice storms or other natural o-made disastel.

Any of the foregoing events, or other events, caaldse financial information to vary from managetiseiorward-looking statements included in thisagp You should consider these important factasswell as
the risks set forth under Item 1A. “Risk Factoiis,’evaluating any statement in this report on F&GK or otherwise made by us or on our behalf. fiflewing information is unaudited and should lead in

conjunction with the consolidated financial statetseand related notes included in this report. R\ no obligation to update or revise these foiviaoking statements and do not undertake to do so.

Investors should also be aware that while we dojaaibus times, communicate with securities analyitis against our policy to disclose to themestvely any material non-public information or eth
confidential information. Accordingly, investorsafid not assume that we agree with any statemergpart issued by an analyst irrespective of theentt of the statement or report. To the extent tbports

issued by securities analysts contain any projestiforecasts or opinions, such reports are notegponsibility.
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(a) Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2013, we had cash and cashaqotg aggregating $ 88 0 .0 million, excludiog! restricted cash , primarily representing fsiedcrowed for future broadband expansion andcgequiality
initiatives , of $ 1 3 .4 million. Our primary swe of funds continued to be cash generated frpemations. For the year ended December 31, 20&43)sed cash flow from operations, cash on handdebd
proceeds to principally fund all of our cash inirggtand financing activities, primarily capital explitures, dividends and debt repayments.

In 2013, the Company completed a registered débting of $750.0 million in senior unsecured debt.addition, we retired an aggregate principal amaf $1.6 billion of debt. See “Cash Flows usgdahd
provided from Financing Activities — Debt Financingnd Debt Reductions” below for further discussion

We have a revolving credit facility with a line afedit of $750.0 million that we believe providesficient flexibility to meet our liquidity needsAs of December 31, 2013, we had not made any tvimgs under
this facility.

At December 31, 2013, we had a working capital lssrpf $ 3 17.3 million. We believe our operaticash flows, existing cash balances, and existimglving credit facility will be adequate to financer
working capital requirements, fund capital expemdis, make required debt payments, pay taxes, ip@iedds to our stockholders, and support our stesrh and long-term operating strategies for the heelve
months. However, a number of factors, including et limited to, losses of customers, pricing puessrom increased competition, lower subsidy anidched access revenues, and the impact of thermurr
economic environment may negatively impact our qgesterated from operations. In addition, basethfmrmation available to us, we believe that theaficial institutions syndicated under our revolvengdit
facility would be able to fulfill their commitments us, but this could change in the future. ABetember 31, 2013, we had $ 257.9 million and%&#illion of debt maturing in 2014 and 2015, esfjvely.

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities dedirfe 56.8 million, or 4 %, in 2013 as compared td20The decrease was primarily the result of lovesfenue and net income before depreciation and
amortization during 2013.

We paid $ 94.2 million in net cash taxes in 2018a@m®pared to $4.7 million in net cash taxes in 2@df#le cash refunds (net of cash taxes paid)dres of $33.1 million were received in 2011. O0t2 cash
taxes paid reflects the continued impact of boreetiation in accordance with the American Taxp&aief Act of 2012.  Absent any legislativeadges in 2014, w e expect that our cash tax payweélhthe
approximately $ 130 million to $ 160 million for 28 for our current business operations and oumestid pre-close integration expenditures .

During 2013, the Company contributed four real tespaoperties with a fair value of $23.4 millionits qualified defined benefit pension plan. Thegien plan obtained independent appraisals of thpepties
and, based on these appraisals, the pension mlardesl the contributions at their fair value. Thempany is leasing back the properties from its jpenglan for 15 years at a combined aggregate dmentof $
2.1 million. The properties are managed on beHati@pension plan by an independent fiduciary, tedterms of the leases were negotiated withitheiary on an arm’s-length basis.

During 2011, the Company contributed four real tesgroperties to its qualified defined benefit pensplan. The pension plan recorded the contrilmstiat their fair value of $58.1 million and the Guany
entered into leases for the contributed propeftied5 years at a combined aggregate annual red.gfmillion.

In connection with the 2010 Transaction, the Corypardertook a variety of activities to integratstgyns and implement other initiatives. As a restithe 2010 Transaction, the Company incurred $&illfon
of costs related to integration activities durir@i2, as compared to $143.1 million of integratiosts in 2011. All integration activities relatedte 2010 Transaction were completed as of theo€2012.

In connection with the pending AT&T Transactiong tBompany recognized $ 9.7 million of acquisitimst s incurred in 2013 and $1.3 million of intéregpense related to the Bridge Facility commitmeFie
Company expects to incur operating expenses obappately $ 140 million to $ 170 million in 2014lated to integration activities for the pending&TTransaction .
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Cash Flows used by Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures

In 2013, 2012 and 2011, our capital expenditurese\§e634.7 million, $802.5 million and $824.8 nuitii (including $54.1 million and $76.5 millionespectively, of integration-related capital expémgis in
2012 and 2011 for the 2010 Transaction ), respelgtivDuring 2012 and 2013, Frontier received altof $71.9 million from the first round of Conne&merica Fund (CAF) Phase | and $57.6 million rthto
the second round of CAF Phase | to support broatideployment in unserved and underserved higharests. In addition to the capital expenditures inered above, we spent $32.7 million and $4.8 onillof
the CAF funds on network expansion in 2013 and 2@dpectively , enabling 64,4 00 households . Wtipate capital expenditures for business opematto decrease in 2014 related to our currentlyeaiv
properties to approximately $ 575 million to $66@illion, as compared to $634.7 million in 2013Me anticipate an additional $ 85 million to $ 10lion of capital expenditures in 2014 relatedthe
integration activities of the pending AT&T Transact

Cash Flows used nd provided fronfinancing Activities

DebtFinancings

The 2024 Notes

On April 10, 2013, the Company completed a regestesffering of $750.0 million aggregate principat@unt of 7.625% senior unsecured notes due 2024224 Notes) , issued at a price of 100% of their
principal amount. We received net proceeds of & &fillion from the offering after deducting undeiting fees. The Company used the net proceeds fte sale of the notes, together with cash on hand
finance the April 2013 debt tender offers diseakselow.

The 2021 Notes

On May 17, 2012, the Company completed a registeffeding of $500 million aggregate principal amooifi9.250% senior unsecured notes due 2021 (tB& Rtes), issued at a price of 100% of their ppiaic
amount. We received net proceeds of $489.6 mifiiom the offering after deducting underwriting fesasd offering expenses. The Company also commeacedder offer to purchase the maximum aggregate
principal amount of its 8.250% Senior Notes due42(ifhe 2014 Notes) and its 7.875% Senior Notes2®1& (the April 2015 Notes and, together with tB&4£2 Notes, the Notes) that it could purchase fotoup
$500 million in cash (the 2012 Debt Tender Offer).

The 2023 Notes

On August 15, 2012, the Company completed a registeffering of $600 million aggregate principal @mt of 7.125% senior unsecured notes due 20232@28 Notes), issued at a price of 100% of their
principal amount. We received net proceeds of $688llion from the offering after deducting undeitirg fees and offering expenses. The Company tleedet proceeds from the sale of the notes tarchpse

or retire existing indebtedness in 2013.

On October 1, 2012, the Company completed a regibteffering of $250 million aggregate principal@mt of the 2023 Notes, issued at a price of 1M2&6f their principal amount. We received net peatseof
$255.9 million from the offering after deductingdemwriting fees and offering expenses. The notesaaradditional issuance of, are fully fungiblehnand form a single series voting together as tams avith the
$600 million aggregate principal amount of the 20&8es issued by the Company on August 15, 2018.Gdmpany used the net proceeds from the saleafdtes to repurchase or retire existing indebtslire
2013

Debt Reduction
During 2013 and 2012, we retired an aggregate ipaheamount of $ 1,563.0 million and $757.0 milljarspectively, of debt consisting of $ 1,562.6liotl and $756.1 million, respectively, of seniorseoured
debt and $ 0.4 million and $0.9 million, respedijyef rural utilities service loan contracts, asalissed in more detail below.

On April 10, 2013, the Company accepted for puret®471.3 million aggregate principal amount ofsignior notes tendered for total consideration &2$% million, consisting of $194.2 million aggréga
principal amount of the Company’s 6.625% senioeaalue 2015 (the March 2015 Notes), tendered fat tonsideration of $216. 0 million, and $277.1lion aggregate principal amount of the Company’s
7.875% senior notes due 2015 (the April 2015 Notes)dered for total consideration of $316.4 miilicOn April 24, 2013, the Company accepted forchase $0.7 million aggregate principal amount ef th
March 2015 Notes, tendered for total consideratib$0.8 million, $0.8 million of the April 2015 Nes, tendered for total consideration of $0.9 milliand $225.0 million aggregate principal amounthef
Company’s 8.250% senior notes due 2017 (the 201féd)otendered for total consideration of $267.Hioni The repurchases in the debt tender offerstfie senior notes resulted in a loss on the early
extinguishment of debt of $104.9 million ($64.9 linih or $0.06 per share after tax), which was redzey in the second quarter of 2013.
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Additionally, during the second quarter of 2013 ompany repurchased $208.8 million of the 201f%sli a privately negotiated transaction, alonth\8i7.3 million of its 8.125% senior notes due @hd
$78.5 million of its 8.500% senior notes due 202@pen market repurchases. These transactioni¢egt@ua loss on the early extinguishment of det$54.9 million ($34.0 million or $0.04 per shatker tax),
which was recognized in the second quarter of 2013.

Pursuant to the 2012 Debt Tender Offer, the Compaagpted for purchase $400 million aggregate jpah@mount of 2014 Notes, tendered for total adersition of $446.0 million, and $49.5 million aggate
principal amount of April 2015 Notes, tenderedtfatal consideration of $54.0 million. The Comparsged proceeds from the sale of its May 2012 offeah$500.0 million of 9.250% Senior Notes due 20@Lis
cash on hand, to purchase the Notes.

The repurchases in the 2012 Debt Tender OffertfeNotes resulted in a loss on the early extinguiésit of debt of $69.0 million, which we recognizedhe second quarter of 2012. We also recogniassels of
$2.1 million during the second quarter of 2012$@8.1 million in total open market repurchaseswf&25% Senior Notes due 2013.

On October 1, 2012, the Company accepted for peec@5.7 million and $59.3 million aggregate pipatiamount of the April 2015 Notes and the 2017elptespectively, in open market repurchases fat to
consideration of $154.7 million. The repurchasesiited in a loss on the early retirement of det®1#.3 million ($12.1 million or $0.01 per shar¢eatax) that was recognized in the fourth quasfe2012.

In 2011, we retired an aggregate principal amoti$662.4 million of debt, consisting of $551.4 il of senior unsecured debt and $1.0 million eétutilities service loan contracts.

We may from time to time make additional repurckasfeour debt in the open market, through tendfarsf exchanges of debt securities, by exercisgigs to call or in privately negotiated transantio We may
also refinance existing debt or exchange existigigt for newly issued debt obligations . We do exqtect the additional financing of $1.9 billion theill be used for the AT&T Transaction to affeatracurrent
refinancing plans .

Bank Financing

The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, ASBdministrative agent, lead arranger and aleiatid the other lenders party thereto, for a $bitllion senior unsecured term loan facility wittfinal
maturity of October 14, 2016 (the Credit Agreemerithe entire facility was drawn upon executiorthed Credit Agreement in October 2011. Repaymeti@foutstanding principal balance is made in guigrt
installments in the amount of $14.4 million, whibmmenced on March 31, 2012, with the remainingtantling principal balance to be repaid on the finaturity date. Borrowings under the Credit Agneat
bear interest based on the margins over the Base(Bsdefined in the Credit Agreement) or LIBORthe election of the Company. Interest rate nmrginder the facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.%&%or
Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBf@@Rowings) are subject to adjustments based e thal Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such terdefined in the Credit Agreement. The current
pricing on this facility is LIBOR plus 2.875%. Tipeoceeds of the facility were used to repay ihthe remaining outstanding principal on three dabilities (Frontier's $200 million Rural Telepherrinancing
Cooperative term loan maturing October 24, 20513143 million CoBank term loan maturing Decembir2012, and its $130 million CoBank term loan miagyDecember 31, 2013) and the remaining proceeds
were used for general corporate purposes.

RevolvinaCredit Facility

On May 3, 2013, the Company entered into a new $7&fllion revolving credit facility (the RevolvinGredit Facility) and terminated the Company’s fwasly existing revolving credit facility. As oféember
31, 2013, no borrowings had been made under thel®eyg Credit Facility. The terms of the Revolvi@yedit Facility are set forth in the credit agresm dated as of May 3, 2013, among the Comp &ey, t
Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, MsAAdministrative Agent (the Revolving Credit Agment). Associated commitment fees under the RiegpCredit Facility will vary from time to time
depending on the Company's debt rating (as definetthe Revolving Credit Agreement) and were 0.40086 annum as of December 31, 2013. The Revolvirggi€Facility is scheduled to terminate on
November 3, 2016. During the term of the Revolv@rgdit Facility, the Company may borrow, repay asloborrow funds, and may obtain letters of credibjsct to customary borrowing conditions. Loansemd
the Revolving Credit Facility will bear interestdeal on the alternate base rate or the adjusted RB@ (each as determined in the Revolving Creglieement), at the Company’s election, plus a nmalogised on
the Company’s debt rating (ranging from 0.50% &0% for alternate base rate borrowings and 1.50250% for adjusted LIBO R ate borrowings). Therent pricing on this facility would have been%.@r
2.0%, respectively, as of December 31, 2013. tetécredit issued under the Revolving Credit Rgaill also be subject to fees that vary depewgdon the Company’s debt rating. The Revolving @reacility

is available for general corporate purposes but nmye used to fund dividend payments. The maxipamitted leverage ratiois 4.5to 1 .
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Letter of Credit Facility

On September 8, 2010, the Company entered intte [&f credit facility , the terms of which aret $erth in a Credit Agreement with the Lenders pdhtereto, and Deutsche Bank AG, New York Brante (t
Bank), as Administrative Agent and Issuing Banle (tetter of Credit Agreement). An initial lettef aredit for $190.0 million was issued to the W¥4iinia Public Service Commission to guarantedaiarof
our capital investment commitments in West Virgimiaonnection with the 2010 Transaction. Theahicommitments under the Letter of Credit Agreetrexpired in September 2011, with the Bank exengisi
its option to extend $100.0 million of the commitme to September 2012. In September 2012, the @oynpntered into an amendment to the Letter of iCigreement to extend $40 million of the
commitments. Two letters of credit were issue@éptember 2012, one for $20 million that expiredimrch 2013, and the other for $20 million thatiexg in September 2013. The Letter of Credit Agreat
expired on September 20, 2013.

Bridge Facility

On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment I&dtea bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facilijyand recognized interest expense of $1.3 millelated to this commitment during 2013. On Jan@&ry
2014, we entered into a b ridge | oan a greeméhtthe Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan ChaseBN.A., as administrative agent ( the BridgerLd@reement ) , pursuant to which the Lenders lzaveed
at closing of the AT&T Transaction to provide toarsunsecured bridge loan facility for up to $1ildm for the purposes of funding (i) substantyedill of the purchase price for the AT&T Transantand (ji) the
fees and expenses incurred in connection withrévesactions contemplated by the s tock p urchaseeament for the AT&T Transaction . Pursuant toBhielge Loan Agreement, if and to the extent wendg or
are unable to, issue debt securities yielding uplt® billion in gross cash proceeds on or prightclosing of the AT&T Transaction, we shall drdawn up to $1.9 billion, less the amount of thbtdeecurities,
if any, issued by us on or prior to the closingtaf AT&T Transaction, in aggregate principal amoafibans under the Bridge Facility to fund theghase price of the AT&T Transaction .

Covenants

The terms and conditions contained in our indestutiee Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreat and the Bridge Loan Agreement include the lfirpayment of principal and interest when due, the
maintenance of our corporate existence, keepinggprbooks and records in accordance with U.S. GAAS§trictions on the incurrence of liens on ouetssand restrictions on asset sales and transfergiers
and other changes in corporate control. We aresuigject to restrictions on the payment of divideaitlser by contract, rule or regulation, other tfiaat imposed by the General Corporation Law ofSkete of
Delaware. However, we would be restricted underGhedit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreememtl ghe Bridge Loan Agreement from declaring dividienf an event of default occurred and was
continuing at the time or would result from theidand declaration.

The Credit Agreement and the Revolving Credit Agrest each contain a maximum leverage ratio covehbrter those covenants, we are required to maiataatio of (i) total indebtedness minus casheash
equivalents (including restricted cash) in excds50.0 million to (i) consolidated adjusted EBIAgas defined in the agreements) over the lastdoarters not to exceed 4.50 to 1.

The Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreetnére Bridge Loan Agreement and certain inde stdoe our senior unsecured debt obligations linait ability to create liens or merge or consolidatth
other companies and our subsidiaries’ ability tord funds, subject to important exceptions andifications.

As of December 31, 2013, we were in compliance waitlof our debt and credit facility covenants.

Dividends

We currently intend to pay regular quarterly divids. Our ability to fund a regular quarterly diemdi will be impacted by our ability to generatehc&®m operations. The declarations and paymerititofe
dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Bimgs, and will depend upon many factors, including financial condition, results of operationspwth prospects, funding requirements, applicable la
restrictions in agreements governing our indebtsslaed other factors our Board of Directors dedavaat.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangé&mémansactions, obligations or other relationshipth unconsolidated entities that would be expeidb have a material current or future effect upan
financial statements.
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Future Contractual Obligations andommitments
A summary of our future contractual obligations @aochmercial commitments as of December 31, 2023 isllows:

(8 in thousands Payments due by period
2015 anc 2017 anc
Total 2014 2016 2018 Thereatftel

Long-term debt obligations, excluding inter: $ 8,129,54¢$ 257,91€$ 605,306% 1,190,64¢$ 6,075,67¢
Interest on long-term debt 6,246,76( 630,392 1,215,78¢ 1,108,70€ 3,291,87¢
Operating lease obligations 145,328 61,880 19,256 15,101 49,091
Capital lease obligatior 35,065 3,107 6,378 6,604 18,976
Financing lease obligatiot 107,102 6,891 14,268 15,051 70,892
Purchase obligations 70,642 28,653 30,490 5,499 6,000
"Take or pay" contract obligations 286,300 145,50C 140,80C - -
Liability for uncertain tax position 9,329 2,840 3,886 2,603 -

Total $ 15,030,07:$ 1,137,18($ 2,036,167% 2,344,21% 9,512,51:

At December 31, 2013, we had outstanding performéetters of credit totaling $ 46.8 million.

In our normal course of business we have obligatiomer certain non-cancelable arrange ments feices. During 2012 , we entered into a “take @y’parrangement for the purchase of future longadise and
carrier services. Our remaining commitments utlderarrangement are $145. 5 million and $140.8aniffor the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2@bpectively. As of December 31, 2013, we exfrect
utilize the services included within the arrangetreerd no liability for the “take or pay” provisidras been recorded.

In addition, the FCC and certain state regulatampmissions, in connection with granting their amate of the 2010 Transaction, specified certairitahpxpenditure and operating requirements forAbquired
Territories for specified periods of time post-éhgs These requirements focus primarily on certaipital investment commitments to expand broadizavadlability to at least 85% of the household®tiyhout

the Acquired Territories with minimum download spsef 3 Mbps by the end of 2013 . We are requioegrovide download speeds of 4 Mbps to at Ie8%6,780% and 85% of the households throughout the
Acquired Territories by the end of 2013, 2014 afdl%, respectively . As of December 31, 2013, e éxpanded broadband availability in excess obpdvto 85.4% of the households throughout the Aequi
Territories, and in excess of 4 Mbps to 83.5% efllbuseholds throughout the Acquired Territoriescakdingly, we have met our FCC requirement to @8 Mbps coverage to 85% of the households 4and
Mbps coverage to 75% of the households in the AegLTerritories by the end of 2013 . We have atsb our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps covetag#% of the households in the Acquired Terrésri

by the end of 2014.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had expandebroadband availability to the households thraugtthe Company'’s territories as follows:

(In excess of 2013 2012
1 Mbps 90% 88%
3 Mbps 86% 83%
4 Mbps 83% 7%
6 Mbps 76% 74%
12 Mbps 61% 51%
20 Mbps 48% 40%

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investrheommitments to three state regulatory commissiarsplaced a total of $115.0 million in cash is&veral escrow accounts and obtained a letterenfitcfor
$190.0 million in 2010. Another $72.4 million ofsh in an escrow account was acquired in conneutitmthe 2010 Transaction to be used for servigality initiatives in the state of West Virginids of
December 31, 2013, $ 176.3 million had been reté&rsen the escrow accounts. As of December 31320t Company had a restricted cash balance irethaining escrow account of $ 11 .4 million ane th
letter of credit has expired. The aggregat e arnotithi s escrow account will continue to decreager time as we make the required capital experehitin West Virginia .
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We review all significant estimates affecting oonsolidated financial statements on a recurringskesd record the effect of any necessary adjudtprér to their publication. Uncertainties witbspect to such
estimates and assumptions are inherent in the ratépa of financial statements; accordingly, itpisssible that actual results could differ from #h@stimates and changes to estimates could ocdheinear
term. The preparation of our financial statemémtsonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managementrtake estimates and assumptions that affect (ijeperted amounts of assets and liabilities attte of
the financial statements, (ii) the disclosure oftamgent assets and liabilities, and (iii) the m¢pd amounts of revenue and expenses during thertiegp period. Actual results may differ from tleos
estimates. Estimates and judgments are used vdeenrating for revenue recognition including thlevaance for doubtful accounts, impairment of Idivgd assets, impairment of intangible assets, etgation
and amortization, pension and other postre tirerbenéfits, income taxes and contingencies , ngnathers.

Management has discussed the development andiseletthese critical accounting estimates with Awelit Committee of our Board of Directors and durdit Committee has reviewed our disclosures ne¢pto
such estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are providethen products are delivered to customers. Revémateis billed in advance includes: monthly reawgrinetwork access services (including data seryices
special access services and monthly recurring veideo and related charges. The unearned porfithese fees is initially deferred as a compondrguorent liabilities on our consolidated balanteet and
recognized as revenue over the period that theécesnare provided. Revenue that is billed in aséacludes: non-recurring network access servigesugling data services) , switched access seryvives-
recurring voice and video services. The earnedubbilled portion of these fees is recognized agmee in our consolidated statements of operatiodsagcrued in accounts receivable in the periot tthe
services are provided. Excise taxes are recogrased liability when billed. Installation fees arir related direct and incremental costs areaitjtideferred and recognized as revenue and expmresethe
average term of a customer relationship. We reaegms current period expense the portion of irgtafi costs that exceeds installation fee revenue.

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts dase our estimate of our ability to collect accaurgceivable . Our estimates are based on assamspnd other considerations, including paymertolyis
customer financial performance, carrier billingpises and aging analysis. Our estimation procedades general and specific reserves and variesiftpmer segment. In 2013 and 2012, we had ritic&dr
estimates” related to bankruptcies of communicaticompanies or any other significant customers.

Asset Impairment

We review long-lived assets to be held and usedliiding customer lists, and long-lived assets talisposed of for impairment at least annually oemdver events or changes in circumstances indicatehe
carrying amount of such assets may not be recolerRecoverability of assets to be held and usedeiasured by comparing the carrying amount of #setato the estimated fair value, which is basethen
future undiscounted net cash flows expected toemegted by the asset. Recoverability of assetsfbebale is measured by comparing the carryinguarnof the assets to their estimated fair markéte If any
assets are considered to be impaired, the impairimeneasured by the amount by which the carryimgunt of the assets exceeds the estimated faievaiiso, we periodically reassess the useful lvesur

tangible and intangible assets to determine whethgrchanges are required. In 2013 and 2012, webdcritical estimates” related to asset impaintse

Intangibles

Our indefinite - lived intangibles consist of godvand trade name, which resulted from the purehaSILEC properties. We test for impairment oésh assets annually, or more frequently, as cir@anoss
warrant. We test for goodwill impairment at thep&wating segment” level, as that term is definetli8. GAAP. Effective with the first quarter of 28 the Company reorganized into four regional afieg
segments. The four operating segments consisteofdlfowing regions: Central, East, National andstVeOur regional operating segments are aggregatecbne reportable segment since they have simila
economic characteristics. In conjunction with teerganization of our operating segments duringfitise quarter of 2013, we reassigned goodwill to ceporting units using a relative fair value efiion
approach. This structure is consistent with how®hief Operating Decision Makers ( Chief Execu®ficer, Chief Financial Officer, President and &hOperating Officer ) review our results on a gaileekly
and monthly basis. After making the change in querating segments, we reviewed our goodwill impainhtest by comparing the fair value for each répgrunit to its carrying value. No potential inigaent
was indicated and no further analysis was deemeelssary.

Our annual goodwill impairment testing date is Deber 31. Each of the operating segments is ateparting unit. The first step in the goodwill imipnent test compares the carrying value of nedtassf the

reporting unit to its fair value. The result bftfirst step indicated that fair value of eacparting unit exceeded the carrying value of sugioréng units. As a result, the second step ofgiedwill impairment
test was not required.
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Goodwill by reporting unit (operating segment) &dember 31, 2013 is as follows:

(8 in thousands) 2013
Central $ 1,815,49¢
East 2,003,574
National 1,218,11¢
West 1,300,534
Total Goodwill $ 6,337,71¢

Enterprise values for rural ILEC properties areidgifty quoted as a multiple of cash flow or EBITDMarketplace company comparisons and analyst t®papport a range of fair values around a multplg.5

to 7.5 times annualized EBITDA. For the purposehaf goodwill impairment test we define EBITDA gsecating income, net of acquisition and integratosts, non-cash pension and OPEB costs, pension
settlement costs, gain on sale of Mohave partneistérest and severance costs, plus depreciatibrmortization. We determined the fair valueneates using 6.25 times EBITDA but also used lowgfTBA
multiples to gauge the sensitivity of the estimeatel its effect on the margin of excess of fair eadwer the carrying values of the reporting unitstal fair value determined in this manner is taéiocated to the
reporting units based upon each unit's relativeesbéconsolidated EBITDA. Our method of determipfair value has been consistently applied forttinee years ending December 31, 2013.

The Company monitors relevant circumstances, inefudeneral economic conditions, enterprise valBETBA multiples for other rural ILEC properties,gfCompany’s overall financial performance and the
market prices for the Company's common stock, &edpbtential impact that changes in such circunessuimight have on the valuation of the Companytsdgdll or other intangible assets. If our goodvetl
other intangible assets are determined to be im@air the future, we may be required to recordracash charge to earnings during the period in kvtiie impairment is determined.

Depreciation and Amortization

The calculation of depreciation and amortizatiopense is based upon the estimated useful livebeofinderlying property, plant and equipment anahtiieble finite - lived intangible assets. Depiegion
expense is principally based on the composite groethod for substantially all of our property, gland equipment assets. Given the varying estimagefil lives of our property, plant and equipmasgets, the
Company utilizes multiple asset categories withasafely determined composite lives and individuegiréciation rates for each asset category.

Within the composite group method, we group indigdassets, including cable and wire, into asstegeaies utilizing homogeneous characteristics,re/fseich assets (i) are principally used in the saraener
throughout the company, (i) are subject to similperating conditions and (iii) have similar estiethuseful lives. Examples of the asset categavéestilize include aerial cable-copper, aerialledtber, aerial
cable-station connections, underground cable-coppérunderground cable-fiber. As a result of emitig changes in technology, an independent stsidpmnducted annually to update the estimated réngain
useful lives of all individual asset categorieheTannual study includes models that consider butame, replacement history and certain assungp#bout technology evolution to estimate the remginseful
lives of our asset base by asset category. Thet Isitedy was completed in the fourth quarter of28dd after review and analysis of the resultschanged the remaining useful lives for certain pissets as of
October 1, 2013, with an immaterial impact to dejation expense. Our composite depreciation mtelant assets was 6.24% as a result of this stlithgre have been no significant changes to thgesaof
estimated useful lives for the individual asseegaties, including the cable and wire asset gradsng the three years ended December 31, 2013.

Our finite - lived intangibles are customer listgjaired in the 2010 Transaction that were recoateth estimated fair value of $2.5 billion withestimated useful life of nine years for the resiid¢customer list,
and 12 years used for the business customer Gstéth classes of assets, an accelerated methbe “sum of the years digits” method ) is usedutoortize the intangible assets, based on theqgtegjeevenue
stream of each asset class. Our Frontier legastomer list did not distinguish between business$ @sidential classes . Amortization was basedmmstimated useful life of five years on the ghiaiine

method. We periodically reassess the useful fifeuo intangible assets to determine whether amngbs to those lives are required.

We anticipate depreciation expense of approxima@00 million to $820 million and amortization exgse of approximately $285 million for 2014 for @urrent business operations .

35



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Our estimates of pension expense , other pastme¢int benefit s (OPEB), including retiree medivaefits , and related liabilities , are “criti@dcounting estimates.” We sponsor a noncontriutiefined
benefit pension plan covering a significant numbkour current and former employees and other ptiggment benefit plans that provide medical, detifa insurance and other benefits for coveretited
employees and their beneficiaries and covered digmes. All of the employees who are still accrupension benefits are employees represented by sinrension and other postretirement benefit csts
obligations are dependent upon various actuarg@lraptions applied in the determination of such am®uThese actuarial assumptions include thevidtig: discount rates, expected long-term rate tfrreon
plan assets, future compensation increases, engtayeover, healthcare cost trend rates, expeeta@ment age, optional form of benefit and morgaliwe review these assumptions for changes alynwith
our independent actuaries. The assumptions fodisopunt rate and expected long-term rate of medarplan assets are considered to have the ngosficant impact on pension costs and funding level

The discount rate is used to value, on a presdné \msis, our pension and OPEB liabilities asheflialance sheet date. The same rate is alsdrutelinterest cost component of the pension astretirement
benefit cost determination for the following yedihe measurement date used in the selection afiscount rate is the balance sheet date. Ouruligcate assumption is determined annually witfstesce from
our actuaries based on the pattern of expectedsfbenefit payments and the prevailing rates abiailen long-term, high quality corporate bonds wdtitations approximate to that of our benefit adign. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, we utilized an estimag&chnique that is based upon a settlement n{Badeid:Link) that permits us to closely match casiwé to the expected payments to participants. fidtis
can change from year-to-year based on market d¢onslithat affect corporate bond yields.

In determining the discount rate as of Decembe2811, we considered, among other things, the yiefdthe Citigroup Above Median Pension Curve,Ttherers Watson Index, the general movement of istere
rates and the changes in those rates from onedperihe next.

We are utilizing a discount rate of 4.90 % as ot&maber 31, 2013 for our qualified pension plan, pared to rates of 4.00 % and 4.50% in 2012 and ,2@&pectively. The discount rate for postretiretpans
as of December 31, 2013 was a range of 4.90 %2 %.compared to a range of 4.00% to 4.20% in 20124.50 % to 4.75% in 2011.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan asseapplied in the determination of periodic pensind postretirement benefit cost as a reductidheé computation of the expense. In developiegetkpected
long-term rate of return assumption, we considerdalished surveys of expected market returns, #i®@ryear actual returns of various major indiegsl our own historical 5 year, 10 year and 20 jreastment
returns. The expected long-term rate of returrplam assets is based on an asset allocation asennmpt35% to 55% in fixed income securities, 3584%66% in equity securities and 5% to 15% in altéwea
investments. We review our asset allocation atlaeanually and make changes when considered ajgepOur asset return assumption is made abeb@ning of our fiscal year. In 2011, 2012 and2Mmur
expected long-term rate of return on plan assess8:M@&0 %, 7.75% and 8.00 %, respectively. Ouradgeturn on plan assets in 2013 was 10.9%. Bd4.2we will assume a rate of return of 7.75%. @emsion
plan assets are valued at fair value as of the uneant date.

We expect that our pension and other postretireinenefit expenses for 2014 will be approximatefyS$million to $ 85 million before amounts capitakizinto the cost of capital expenditures and thgaich of
pension settlement costs. In 2013, our pensiorC#MEB expenses were $97.1 million before amouniiatized into the cost of capital expenditures #relimpact of pension settlement costs. We expettake
contributions to our pension plan of approximat®h00 million in 2014. We made total contributiclesour pension plan during 2013 of $62.3 millioonsisting of cash payments of $38.9 million and the
contribution of real property with a fair value $23.4 million. We made net contributions to our gien plan of $28.6 million in 2012. We made conitibns to our pension plan of $76.7 million in 2011
consisting of cash payments of $18.6 million areldbntribution of real property with a fair value$®8.1 million.

Our pension plan contains provisions that provideain employees with the option of receiving a fpusum payment upon retirement. We record theseeats as a settlement only if, in the aggregatsy th
exceed the sum of the annual service and inteosss$ ¢or the plan’s net periodic pension benefitcBuring 2013, lump sum pension settlement paysnenterminated or retired participants amountefi164.6
million, which exceeded the settlement threshol&h25.4 million. As a result, the Company was reggliito recognize a non-cash settlement charge 42$4million in 2013 to accelerate the recognitafra
portion of the previously unrecognized actuariables in the pension plan. This non-cash chargeeedour recorded net income and retained earnivigs an offset to accumulated other comprehenkaiss in
shareholders’ equity. The amount of any future nash settlement charges will be dependent on e ¢ lump sum benefit payments made in 2014 aybhd.
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Income Taxes
We file a consolidated federal income tax returre ilize the asset and liability method of accangfor income taxes. Under the asset and liahiligthod, deferred income taxes are recorded faatheffect of
temporary differences between the financial staterbasis and the tax basis of assets and liakilit#ing tax rates expected to be in effect whenetmporary differences are expected to reverse.

U.S. GAAP requires applying a “more likely than’htitreshold to the recognition and derecognitiorunéertain tax positions either taken or expeatellet taken in the Company’s income tax returns. tred
amount of our gross tax liability for tax positiothgt may not be sustained under a “more likelyi that” threshold amounts to $9.3 million as of Daber 31, 2013 including interest of $0.6 milliorheTamount
of our uncertain tax positions for which the stasuof limitations are expected to expire duringribet twelve months and which would affect our efifee tax rate is $2.4 million as of December 3112

Our effective tax rate was 29.0 % in 2013 as coepéw 33.0 % in 2012 and 35.9 % in 2011. Incomeddor 2013 include a $6.5 million net benefituléag from the adjustment of deferred tax balanee$5.2
million benefit from federal research and developtredits and t he impact of a $1.8 million benfsbm the net reversal of reserves for uncertainfiositions, partially offset by the impact offeamge of $5.2
million resulting from the settlement of the 208 audit, and a charge of $3.3 million resultiranfrnon-deductible transaction costs.

Income taxes for 2012 include the net reversakeserves for uncertain tax positions for $12.3 millipartially offset by increases in deferred tajahces to reflect changes in estimates and changsate
effective rates and filing methods.

Income taxes for 2011 include the reduction of defitax balances based on the application of edatate tax statutes for $6.8 million and theree¢rsal of a reserve for uncertain tax positiansd.9 million,
partially offset by the impact of a $10.8 millioharge resulting from the enactment on May 25, 2ffithe Michigan Corporate Income Tax that eliminiatertain future tax deductions.

Contingencies
See Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Finar@tiaiements included in Part IV of this report fatiscussion of commitments and contingencies. ¢@uatingencies include the potential obligation aited
with our previous electric utility activities inétstate of Vermont, along with ongoing regulatesuies and legal cases in the normal course ofusiméss, including billing disputes.

New Accounting Pronouncements
There were no new accounting standards issueddopter by the Company in 2013, or that have besregbut are not required to be adopted until éupariods, with any material financial statemerpat.

Presentation of Comprehensive Income

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting StandaBdard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Updade 2013-02 (ASU 2013-02), “Comprehensive Incomepd®éng of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income,” (ASC T@#06). ASU 2013-02 requires disclosing the effdateslassifications out of accumulated other cormprsive income on the respective line items in the
components of net income in circumstances when GA\P requires the item to be reclassified in itsrety to net income. This new guidance was t@jmelied prospectively. The Company adopted ASU 2013
02 during the fourth quarter of 2012 with no impaetour financial position, results of operationgash flows.

Internal Control — Integrated Framework

On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Omzgtiuns of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issuedifidated Internal Control — Integrated Framewtie 013 Framework) and related illustrative
documents. COSO will continue to make availableitginal Framework during the transition periodemding to December 15, 2014 . The Company cuyrenilizes COSO'’s original Framework , which was
published in 1992 and is recognized as the leagindance for designing, implementing and conductirigrnal controls over external financial repagtiand assessing its effectiveness. The 201 3 Frarke®
expected to help organizations design and impleriméetnal control in light of many changes in besis and operating environments since the issudnitee @riginal Framework, broaden the applicatién o
internal control in addressing operations and répgobjectives, and clarify the requirements fetatmining what constitutes effective internal cohtWe plan to adopt the 201 3 Framework in 2044 do not
expect that it will have a significant impact or tBompany.
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(b) Results of Operations
REVENUE

Revenue is generated primarily through the prowisib voice services, data services, video servioesyork access, carrier services and other Intevewvices. Such revenues are generated throtigér ei
monthly recurring fee or a fee based on usagererghue recognition is not dependent upon sigmifigadgments by management, with the exceptiondgtarmination of a provision for uncollectible amés .

Revenue for 2013 decreased $ 250.3 million, or 50%8,4,761.6 million as compared to 2012. Theidedh 2013 is primarily the result of decreasesaite revenues and lower switched and nonswiteltedss
revenue, partially offset by an increase in dataises revenue, each as described in more detaivbédditionally, wireless revenue decreased 2% million in 2013 due to the sale of our Moh&adlular
Limited Partnership (Mohave) interest on April D13.

Switched access and subsidy revenue of $ 551.mikpresented 12 % of our revenues for 2013.cBwit access revenue was $ 234.5 million in 2018,%rof our revenues, down from $ 282.3 millionfd¥
of our revenues, for 2012. Subsidy revenue wa&%1 million in 2013, or 7 % of our revenues, doslightly from $ 324.6 million, or 6 % of our revess, in 2012. We expect declining revenue trends i
switched access and subsidy revenue to contind@lia.

Revenue for 2012 decreased $231.2 million, or 49%5,011. 9 million as compared to 2011. The dedin2012 was primarily the result of decreasethennumber of business and residential customets an
switched access revenue, partially offset by areise in subsidies revenue, each as describedrendetail below.

During 2013, we lost 98,900 customers, as comptredloss of 240,500 customers in 2012 and 375¢4@@mers in 2011 . We believe the improved custaetention in 2013 as compared to prior years is
principally due to our investments in our netwaslr local engagement strategy, improved custoneicgeand simplified products and pricing .

Average monthly residential revenue per custonesidential ARPC) increased $ 0.97 , or 2 %, to 8G%uring 2013 as compared to 2012. Total resialergvenue for the year ended December 31, 2013
declined $ 99.4 million, or 5 %, as compared toythar ended December 31, 2012 , primarily as dtreSdecreases in local voice and long distangemaes and the sale of our interest in the Mohavership ,
partially offset by increases in data services meeand increases in subscriber line charges dadditional access rec overy charges. These aceesgery charges are a result of regulatory charglated to
Intercarrier Compensation reform and are expeatedontinue to increase, as allowed by the FCC ttiglig offset regulatory mandated declines in shéd access rates. We had approximately 2,803,500,
2,887,100 and 3,103,800 total residential custasnasrof December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respBctiWe lost approximately 83,600, 216,700 and,8d0 residential customers during the ye ars ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectivelincipally driven by declines in voice customersdaur residential customer monthly churn was 1.68%2% and 1.69% for the years ended December 31 ,
2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. The overalleiase in residential ARPC is primarily due to addal broadband and Frontier Secure customeestagher ARPC and declining counts in voice-only
customers at a lower ARPC. The Company expectsntong improvements in data services revenue, pifyndriven by increased broadband subscribers,camdinuing declines in voice services revenue.

Average monthly business revenue per customerr(essiARPC) increased $ 14.13 , or 2 %, to $ 65@U2Big 2013 as compared to 2012. Total businesntexfor the year ended December 31, 2013 decfined
95.7 million, or 4 %, as compared to the year eridedember 31, 2012, principally as a result of eases in our local and long distance voice reveWesost approximately 15,300, 23,800 and 34,0@ress
customers during the years ended December 31, 2012, and 2011, respectively. The overall incréadrisiness ARPC is primarily due to declining oasér counts for our small business cus tomerscéray

a lower ARPC. The Company expects the declinesaal land long distance voice revenues from busicies®mers to continue.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Coynpdded approximately 112,250 net broadband sudessri During 2012 and 2011 , the Company addedappately 23,400 and 45,200 net broadband
subscribers, respectively. As of December 31, 2@pproximately 76 % of our residential broadbanst@mers, excluding multiple dwelling units and Wwess high speed internet, subs cribe d to a buvfdle
services. As of December 31, 2013, we were ableffer broadband to approximately 6.4 million houslels, or 90 % of the 7.1 million households in ouarkets . The increase in broadband subscribers
contribute d to our improved revenue performanckVe continue to invest in network speed and capaeisupport our goal of increasing broadband patien and market share . We expect to conttoue
increase broadband subscribers in 2014.

Management believes that customer counts and avenagthly revenue per customer are important fagtoevaluating our trends. Among the key servigegrovide to residential customers are voiceiseyv
data service, video service, and, in some markétsless service. We continue to explore the p@kto provide additional services to our custorase, with the
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objective of meeting all of our customers’ commatiiens needs, as well as increasing revenue pésroes. For business customers we provide voicedatal services, as well as a broad range of valdeea
services.

I n the section “Other Financial and Operating Délow is a table that presents customer counesage monthly revenue per customer and customenclhit also categorizes revenue into customeenmae
(residential and business) and regulatory reveswédhed access and subsidy revenue). The denlie number of customers was partially offsetrimyeased penetration of additional higher reveyereerating
products sold to both residential and businessomests, which has increased our average monthlyntevger customer. Economic conditions, a substaftither loss of customers, and increasing coitipet
could make it more difficult to sell our bundlechdee offerings, and cause us to increase our ptiem®and/or lower our prices for our products aadvices, which could adversely affect our revepuefjtability
and cash flows.

OTHER FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

As of As of As of
December 31, 201 % Increase (Decreas December 31, 201 % Increase (Decreas December 31, 201

Customers 3,074,28( (3%) 3,173,16¢ (7%) 3,413,66¢€
Broadband subscribers 1,866,67( 6% 1,754,422 1% 1,731,02C
Video subscribers

DISH and FiOS 385,353 11% 346,627 14% 303,046

DirecTV® - - - (100%) 224,519
Total video subscribel 385,353 11% 346,627 (34%) 527,565

For the year ended December

2013 $ Increase (Decreas % Increase (Decreas 2012 $ Increase (Decreas % Increase (Decreas 2011

Revenue (in 000's)

Residentia $ 2,020,47¢ $ (99,380 (5%) $ 2,12885¢ $ (163,437 (7%) $ 2,292,29¢

Busines! 2,180,45€ (95,663 (4%) 2,276,11¢ (24,956 (1%) 2,301,07¢
Customer revenu 4,209,93¢ (195,043 (4%) 4,404,97¢ (188,393 (4%) 4,593,371

Switched access and subsidy 551,641 (55.234 (9%) 606,875 (42,797 (7%) 649672
Total revenue 3 476157 § (250,277 (5%) g 501185 § (231,190 (4%) 5
Switched access minutes of use

(in millions) 16,498 (10%) 18,292 (3%) 18,894

As of or for the year ende As of or for the year ende As of or for the year ende
December 31, 2013 % Increase (Decreas December 31, 2012 % Increase (Decreas December 31, 2011

Residential Customer Metrics:
Customers 2,803,481 (3%) 2,887,062 (7%) 3,103,76€
Revenue (in 000'¢ $ 2,029,47¢ (5%) $ 2,128,85¢ (7%) $ 2,292,29¢
Average monthly residenti

revenue per custom® $ 59.30 2% $ 58.33 1% $ 57.95
Customer monthly chur 1.69% 4% 1.62% (4%) 1.69%
Business Customer Metrics
Customers 270,799 (5%) 286,106 (8%) 309,900
Revenue (in 000'¢ $ 2,180,45€ (4%) & 2,276,11¢ (1%) $ 2,301,078
Average monthly busine:

revenue per custom $ 653.26 2% $ 639.13 9% $ 587.79

) Decline in video subscribers is due to the los308, 100 DirecTV subscribers in the third quarte2@12 as Frontier no longer provides DirecTV as péits bundled packages
© Calculation for all periods pi Cellular Limited ip (Mohave), vihigas sold on April 1, 2013
Note: As stated in our report for the quarterlyige ended March 31, 2013, prior period revenue arthin operating statistics have been revise fiwe previously disclosed amounts to reflect thenaterial reclassification of certain revenues thedrelated impact on average monthly revenue per
customer amounts.
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REVENUE
($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
$ Increase % Increast $ Increase % Increast
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount
Local and long distanc
services $ 2,044,631 $ (198,001 (9%) $ 2,242,632 $ (233,883 (9%) $ 2,476,51F
Data and internet servic 1,866,461 61,110 3% 1,805,351 (8,652 - 1,814,002
Other 298,843 (58,152 (16%) 356,995 54,142 18% 302,852
Customer revenu 4,209,93¢ (195,043 (4%) 4,404,97¢ (188,393 (4%) 4,593,371
Switched access al
subsidy 551,641 (55,234 (9%) 606,875 (42,797 (7%) 649,672
Total revenue $ 4,761,57¢ $ (250,277 (5%) $ 5,011,85¢ $ (231,190 (4%) $ 5,243,04:

Local and Long Distance Services

Local and long distance services revenue for 2@&3ehsed $ 198.0 million, or 9 %, to $ 2,044.6ionill as compared with 2012, primarily due to thattmied loss of voice customers and, t o a lesseng

decreases in long distance services revenue anddual features packages, partially offset by @ased local voice charges to residential and bssieed users to the extent permitted by the Ondecal and
enhanced services revenue for 2013 decreased & d@ifon, or 8 %, to $ 1,681.0 million, primarilyue to the continued loss of voice customers and, lesser extent, decreases in individual feafpaekages,
partially offset by increased local voice chargesesidential and business end users to the epéntitted by the Order. Long distance serviceemae for 2013 decreased $ 60.4 million, or 14 &4 863.6
million, primarily due to lower minutes of use deiv by fewer customers and the migration to bunpekages.

Local and long distance services revenue for 262ehsed $ 233.9 million, or 9%, to $2, 242.6 millias compared with 2011 primarily due to the ionetd loss of voice customers and, to a lessemexte
decreases in private line services and featuregumsk partially offset by increased local chargéfective with the third quarter of 2012, to busiseand residential end users to the extent pednityethe
Order. Local and enhanced services revenue fa2 Betreased $ 181.3 million, or 9 %, to $1, 818iléam, primarily due to the continued loss of veicustomers and, to a lesser extent, decreasewatepline
services and feature packages, partially offseéhbseased local charges, effective with the thindrter of 2012, to business and residential entsueethe extent permitted by the Order.  Lorgjatice services
revenue for 2012 decreased $ 52.6 million, or 1138 424.0 million, primarily due to a decrease¢hia number of long distance customers using ondled service offerings, lower minutes of use ariaver
average revenue per minute of use.

Data and Internet Services

Data and Internet services revenue for 2013 inece&s61.1 million, or 3 %, to $ 1,866.5 million, @mpared with 2012. Data services revenue inete@s85.1 million, or 10 %, to $ 930.7 million iI013, as
compared with 2012, primarily due to increaseshie mumber of broadband customers and sales ofi€rdcure products. As of December 31, 2013, timber of the Company’s broadband subscribers
increased by approximately 112,250 , or 6 %, sibeeember 31, 2012. Data and Internet servicesiat$odes nonswitched access revenue from datartission services to other carriers and high-volume
business customers with dedica ted high-capactgriet and E thernet circuits. Nonswitched accegsnue decreased $ 24.0 million, or 3 %, to $®8éillion, as compared with 2012, primarily dueldaver
monthly recurring charges attributable to a redurcth wireless backhaul and other business reveiiiasier services excluding wireless backhauléased slightly , as we continue to provide netwmakdwidth

to other communications carriers. We expect wikeisa usage to continue to increase, which may dhie need for additional wireless backhaul capaBiespite the need for additional capacity, wpeet to
experience declines in wireless backhaul reven@®1m, as our carrier partners migrate to Ethesalettions with a lower price point.

Data and Internet services revenue for 2012 deetde®$.7 million to $1,805.4 million, as compareithw2011. Data services revenue decreased $ 1iliémto $ 845.6 million in 2012, as compared w11,

primarily due to higher promotional discounts angtomer credits. As of December 31, 2012, thebwmnof the Company’s broadband subscribers incdebge23,400, o r 1%, since December 31, 2011.
Nonswitched access revenue increased $1.3 miti@®59.8 million in 2012, as compared with 2011.
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Other
Other revenue for 2013 decreased $ 58.2 milliori,6o%, to $ 298.8 million, as compared with 201@narily due to lower wireless revenue associatéti e sale of our interest in the Mohave parthigren
April 1, 2013, lower directory services revenue #melreduction in cu stomers for FiOS video servizgtially offset by lower bad debt expenses.

Other revenue for 2012 increased $ 54.1 mil lianl® %, to $ 357.0 million, as compared with 200ther revenue for 2012 increased, as compare@1, Drimarily due to higher service activationsfdem
new customers, lower bad debt expenses that argezhagainst revenue and higher wireless reverauialy offset by the reduction in customers fa®8 video service and lower directory services nexe

Switched Access and Subsidy

Switched access and subsidy revenue for 2013 dame 55.2 million, or 9 %, to $ 551.6 million, @mpared with 2012. Switched access revenue detteqagd?.7 million, or 17 %, to $ 234.5 million, as
compared to 2012, primarily due to the impact dealine in minutes of use related to access linsds and the displacement of minutes of use byesgeemail and other communications services aoebivith

a reduction due to the impact of the lower ratesced by the FCC's intercarrier compensation reforduly 2013. These decreases in switched aceessues were partially offset by the impact opdies with
carriers and lower customer credits. Switched ss@nd subsidy revenue includes subsidy paymenteeaive from federal and state agencies, includingharges billed to customers that are remitted t
universal service administrators. Subsidy revetemeased $7.5 million, or 2%, to $ 317.1 milljgwimarily due to the lower contribution factor fend user USF in 2013.

Switched access and subsidy revenue for 2012 dwszte2.8 million, or 7%, to $ 606.9 million, asmqmared with 2011. Switched access revenue for 20%2282.3 million, decreased $ 58.9 million, of %,
as compared to 2011, primarily due to the impae decline in minutes of use related to accessldisges and the displacement of minutes of useitsless, email and other communications servicesbawed
with a reduction due to the second half impacthef lbwer rates enacted by the first phase of th€'§@tercarrier c ompensation reform. Subsidy resg including surcharges billed to customers &1
million for 2012, of $3 24.6 million, increased $.1 million, or 5 %, as compared with 2011, priyadue to an increase in the customer surchargentev to support the Federal Universal Service Famti
increased recovery from the Federal Fund due tantbeementation of the Order during the second b&#012.

Federal and state subsidies and surcharges (whedtiled to customers and remitted to universatise administrators) for the Company were $ 16itfion, $ 32.4 million and $ 117.5 million, respgely, and
$ 317.1 million in total, or 7 % of our revenuesr, 2013. The federal and state subsidy revenu(d8 represents 4 % of our consolidated reventietal federal and state subsidies and surcharges $/324.6
million, or 6% of our revenues, for 2012 and $3® ®illion, or 6% of our revenues, for 2011.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the Oodezform Federal Universal Service High-Cost Fund kntercarrier Compensation. The Order changed fiederal subsidies are calculated and disbursed,
with these changes being phased-in beginning i 2012. These changes transition the Federal Usav&ervice High-Cost Fund, which supports voiaeises in high-cost areas, to the CAF, which sufspor
broadband deployment in high-cost areas. CAF Phas®lemented in 2012, provide d for ongoing US#pport for price cap carriers capped at the 2014w In addition, the FCC in the first round of EA
Phase | made available for price cap ILECs an mufdit $300 million in incremental high - cost brbadd support to be used for broadband deploymemserved areas. In 2012 and early 2013, weeived
$71.9 million in CAF Phase | funds . The $71.9 ioill in the first round of CAF Phase | support ipested to enable an incremental 92,877 householdbrbadband service and was accounted for as
Contributions in Aid of Construction. We are remdi to spend the CAF Phase | funds on and enaide 92,877 households no later than July 24, 204 8. initially recorded such funds as increaseSash and
Other liabilities in the balance sheet. We sp&Tt& million of the previously received CAF funds metwork expansion through December 31, 2013.

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report andr@dborizing a second round of CAF Phase |. As @fathis May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC exieaithe areas eligible for funding to include thtbes
lack service of 3Mbps download and 768 kbps upldad2013, Frontier applied for funds from the setgound of CAF Phase | and in December 2013 thé B®arded $57.6 million to us to serve 94,899
locations in our high-cost, unserved and underseareas across multiple states. The FCC alsouanrted on January 10, 2014, that Frontier wasbiigor an additional $3.7 million in funding terve 6,815
locations . We may need to match a portion ofitineling received from the second round of CAF Phasesupport these projects.

The Order also makes changes to Intercarrier Cosapiem. Intercarrier Compensation, which is thgnpent framework that governs how carriers compensath other for the exchange of interstate traffic
began a multi-year transition in July 2012,
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with the second step implemented in July 2013. ffaesition will move terminating traffic to a nezero rate by 2017. We expect to be able to mTawsignificant portion of those revenues throegtl user
rates and other replacement support mechanismseTdmanges did not have a material impact on eentees in 2013.

Effective December 29, 2011, the Order requiredipler's to pay interstate access rates for the tertioin of VolIP toll traffic. On April 25, 2012, tHeCC, in an Order on Reconsideration, specifieti¢hanges to
originating access rates for VolP traffic will nm¢ implemented until July 2014. The Order has b#milenged by certain parties in court and cerpairties have also petitioned the FCC to reconsidgpus

aspects of the Order. The net impact of the Oddeing the second half of 2012 and the full yea2@f3 was immaterial.

Certain states also have their own open proceedmgsldress reform to intrastate access chargesthaed intercarrier compensation and state univVesaice funds. Although the FCC has pre-empteates
jurisdiction on most access charges, many statalsl consider moving forward with their proceedingée cannot predict when or how these matters \wiltiecided or the effect on our subsidy or switchezkss
revenues.

OPERATING EXPENSES

NETWORK ACCESS EXPENSES

($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
$ Increas¢ % Increase $ Increast % Increast
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount
Network access expens $ 431,073 $ (10,515 (2%) $ 441,588 $ (77,094 (15%) $ 518,682

Network access expenses for 2013 decreased $ Mdhor 2 %, to $ 431.1 million, as compared 20primarily due to decrease d long distance ogerizosts, reduced content costs related to fevstomers
for FiOS video service and a reduction in costolr originating traffic associated with the irpientation of the Order effective with the secoalfl of 2012.

Network access expenses for 2012 decreased $7lidnnor 15%, to $441.6 million, as compared w21, primarily due to reduced data network andbauwe costs, reflecting cost synergies realizeddning

traffic in the Acquired Territories onto the Framtbackbone, decreased long distance carriageiod®@d 2, including a reduction in costs for ougorating traffic associated with the third quart@plementation
of the Order and reduced content costs relateeierf customers for FiOS video service. Networleas@xpenses also included promotional costs 6frfiilion and $13.9 million in 2012 and 2011, respeely,

for various broadband and video subscriber prometio

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
$ Increast % Increast $ Increas¢ % Increast
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount
Wage and benefit expens $ 1,144,448 $ (63,349 (5%) $ 1,207,797 $ 78,780 7% $ 1,129,017
All other operating expens: 996,62C (30,136 (3%) 1,026,75¢ (122,646 (11%) 1,149,402
$ 2,141,06¢ $ (93,485 (4%) $ 2,234,55¢ $ (43,866 (2%) $ 2,278,41¢

WExcludes $ 44.2 million related to the impact ofigien settlement costs, as discussed below.

Wage and benefit expenses

Wage and benefit expenses for 2013 decreased $16®, or 5 %, to $ 1,144.4 million, as comparted2012, primarily due to lower costs for compeiwsaresulting from lower average employee headtand
overtime costs, partially offset by higher costsdertain other benefits, including pension and @& pense, as discussed below.

Wage and benefit expenses for 2012 increased $78i8n, or 7%, to $1,207.8 million, as compared2@l1, primarily due to higher costs for compemsatind certain other benefits resulting from highesrage
employee headcount and overtime costs .

42



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE

Wage and benefit expenses included severanceafdstd.5 million, $32.0 million and $15.7 millionif 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Pension and OPEB costs for the Company are inclidedr wage and benefit expenses. Pension and@B#s, excluding the impact of pension settlengests, for 2013, 2012 and 2011 were approximakely
77.9 million, $65.8 million and $48.1 million, resgtively. Pension and OPEB costs include pensithGPEB expense of $ 97.1 million, $81.6 milliord&%58.3 million, less amounts capitalized into ¢bet of
capital expenditures of $ 19.2 million, $15.8 noifliand $10.2 million, respectively.

Based on current assumptions and plan asset valgesstimate that our 2014 pension and OPEB cdsthich were $ 97.1 million in 2013 , excluding thmepact of pension settlement costs and amounts
capitalized into the cost of capital expenditurei) be approximately $ 65 million to $ 85 millidior our current business operations , excludirgitnpact of any pension settlement costs and atn@anpitalized
into the cost of capital expenditures.

All other operating expenses
All other operating expenses for 2013 decrease@.$ ®iillion, or 3 %, to $ 996.6 million, as companeith 2012, primarily due to lower outside servimsts, the lower contribution factor for end us&F in
2013, and the full year impact from the eliminatafir edundant information technology costs assediaith the completion of the systems conversieteted to the 2010 Transaction .

All other operating expenses for 2012 decrease@ $1illion, or 11%, to $1,026.8 million, as compdmwith 2011, primarily due to the elimination efiundant information technology costs with the cletign
of the systems conversions related to the 2010s&etion , and lower outside service costs, as ithestabove.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
$ Increast % Increase $ Increast % Increast
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount
Depreciation expens $ 841,455 § (3,186 - $ 844,641 $ (36,840 (4%) $ 881,481
Amortization expens 328,04¢ (94,121 (22%) 422,16€ (99,528 (19%) 521,694
$ 1,169,500 $ (97,307 (8%) $ 1,266,807 $ (136,368 (10%) $ 1,403,17¢

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2013 efesmd $ 97.3 million, or 8 %, to $ 1,169.5 milli@s compared to 2012. Amortization expense deetde®s94.1 million in 2013, primarily due to the
amortization related to the customer base thatrisrized on an accelerated method, lower amortinaéixpense associated with the accelerated wiiitefotertain software licenses no longer required f
operations as a result of the completed systemgecsions related to the 2010 Transaction du rimgfifst quarter of 2012 and certain Frontier legpoyperties that were fully amortized in 2012. Despation
expense de creased $ 3.2 million in 2013, primatilg to a lower net asset base , partially offgatttanges in the remaining useful lives of certaisets .

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2012 edeswd $136.4 million, or 10%, to $1,266.8 millias, compared to 2011. Amortization expense dealepsmarily due to lower amortization expense
associated with certain Frontier legacy properties were fully amortized in 2012 and the amoritrarelated to the customer base that is amortizedn accelerated method. Depreciation expenseated
primarily due to a lower net asset base and chaingée remaining useful lives of certain planteass

We annually commission an independent study to tepitee estimated remaining useful lives of our pissets. The latest study was completed in thettf@uarter of 2013, and after review and analgsihe
results, we adopted new lives for certain planetssas of October 1, 2013. This change had an ieriahimpact on depreciation expense for 2013. ‘©amposite depreciation rate” for plant assets @24 % as
a result of the study. We anticipate depreciatipense of approximately $800 million to $820 roiilifor 2014 for our current business operations .

Amortization expense for 2013, 2012 and 2011 inetLi#l 328.0 million, $410.8 million and $465.4 nailli respectively, for intangible assets (primacilistomer base) that were acquired in the 2010 &ctios

based on an estimated useful life of nine yearstHerresidential customer base and 12 years fobtisiness customer base, amortized on an accelemséhod. We anticipate amortization expense of
approximately $285 million for 2014 for our currdntsiness operations .
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PENSION SETTLEMENT COSTS

($in thousands 2013 2012 2011

Pension settlement cot $ 44,163 $ - 8 -

Our pension plan contains provisions that proviegain employees with the option of receiving amp sum payment upon retirement. We record thegmats as a settlement only if, in the aggregaiey t
exceed the sum of the annual service and inteosss 6or the plan’s net periodic pension benefitcBuring 2013, lump sum pension settlement paysienterminated or retired individuals amounte® tt64.6

million, which exceeded the settlement threshol@ 425.4 million . A s a result, the Company waguieed to recognize a non-cash settlement char§eddf2 million in 2013, to accelerate the retbgn of a

portion of the previously unrecognized actuariables in the pension plan. This non-cash chargeeedour recorded net income and retained earnivis an offset to accumulated other comprehenkaiss in

shareholders’ equity. The amount of any future nash settlement charges will be dependent on e ¢ lump sum benefit payments made in 2014 aybhd.

ACQUISITION AND INTEGRATION COSTS

($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
$ Increase % Increast $ Increase % Increase
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount

Acquisition anc
integration cost $ 9,652 $ (72,085 (88%) $ 81,737 $ (61,409 (43%) $ 143,14€

In 2013, a cquisition costs included expenses neclin connection with the AT&T Transaction (legé@ancial advisory, accounting, regulatory andeottelated costs) . In prior years, integrationsasclude d
expenses incurred in connection with the 2010 Taetitn to integrate the network and i nformatiochtelogy platforms and to enable other integratiod cost savings initiatives. The Company incued
million, $81.7 million and $143.1 million of openag expenses during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respéctiWe also incurred $54.1 million and $76.5 nailiin capital expenditures related to integratiotivities
during 2012 and 2011, respectively. All integratactivities related to the 2010 Transaction wemamleted as of the end of 2012. We anticipate otptiie AT&T Transaction during the second half 012.

GAIN ON SALE OF MOHAVE PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

(8 in thousands 2013 2012 2011

Gain on sale of Mohave partnership inte $ 14,601 $ - $ -

On April 1, 2013, the Company sold its!3% interest in the Mohave partnership , in whichrfier was the General Partner. The Company redgiveceeds on sale of $17.8 million and recognizegdin on sale
of $14.6 million before taxes in the second qeranf 2013.
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INVESTMENT INCOME / LOSSES ON EARLY EXTINQUISHMENT OF DEBT / OTHER INCOME, NET / INTEREST EXPENSE / INCOME TAX EXPENSE

($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
$ Increas¢ % Increast $ Increas¢ % Increast

Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount
Investment incom $ 3,808 $ (9,203 (71%) $ 13,011 $ 10,620 NM $ 2,391
Losses on earl
extinguishment of det $ 159,78C $ 69,417 7% $ 90,363 $ 90,363 100% $ -
Other income, ne $ 5,369 $ (1,752 (25%) $ 7,121 $ (2,014 (22%) $ 9,135
Interest expens $ 667,398 $ (20,587 (3%) $ 687,985 $ 22,789 3% $ 665,19€
Income tax expens $ 47,242 $ (28,396 (38%) $ 75,638 $ (12,705 (14%) $ 88,343

Investment Income
Investment income for 2013 decreased $ 9.2 miliio# 3.8 million, as compared with 2012, primadiye to the $1.4 million in investment gains assedavith cash received during 2013 , as comparé&918
million in 2012 , in connection with our previouslyitten-off investment in Adelphia .

Investment income for 2012 increased $10.6 miltiw$13.0 million, as compared with 2011, primadliye to $9.8 million in investment gains associatétti cash received during 2012 in connection withh o
previously written-off investment in Adelphia.

Our average cash balances were $ 858. 4 millio@5$7million and $275.0 million for 2013, 2012 a@@l11, respectively. Our average total restriceshcbala nces were $ 2 8.1 million, $105.9 milkow
$170.5 million for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respecjivel

Losses on Early Extinguishment of Debt
Losses on early extinguishment of debt for 2018cased $69.4 million to $159.8 million, as companstth 2012.

In 2013, we recognized loss es of $104.9 milliortlwm early extinguishment of debt from debt temuféers that resulted in the retirement of $194.9iam of the March 2015 Notes, $277.9 million oftiApril
2015 Notes and $225.0 million of the 2017 Notesdifidnally, we recognized loss es of $54.9 milliimm $208.8 million in privately negotiated repurska of our 2017 Notes and for $17.3 million and.$78
million in open market repurchases of our 8.125%asenotes due 2018 and 8.500% senior notes du@, 28@pectively.

During 2012, we recognized losses of $90.4 miltionthe early extinguishment of debt, comprised &4.8 million in connection with a $500.0 millionltetender offer for the Notes , a loss of $2.1 ionillfor
$78.1 million in open market repurchases of oub®2enior Notes due 2013 and a loss of $19.3 miftle open market repurchases of $75.7 milliorhef April 2015 Notes and $59.3 million of the 201Gtés .

Other Income, Net
Other income, net for 2013 decreased $ 1.8 milio$i 5.4 million, as compared with 2012, primadiye to a decrease of $ 4.5 million in the settlénoércustomer advances, partially offset by proseefi$2.3
million in the settlement of a split-dollar lifesarance policy for a former senior executive du6g3.

Other income, net for 2012 decreased $2.0 millio#7.1 million, as compared with 2011.

Interest expense

Interest expense for 2013 decreased $ 20.6 miltioB,%, to $ 667.4 million, as compared with 20d2marily due to lower average debt levels reaglfrom the debt refinancing activities and eadgirements of
$ 1,563.0 million in debt and higher capitalizeteiest in 2013, partially offset by the registededt offering of $750.0 million of senior unsecurestes due 2024 . Our composite average borrowdtegas of
December 31, 2013 was 7.95 %.

Interest expense for 2012 increased $22.8 millwr8%, to $688.0 million, as compared with 2011marily due to issuing $1,350 million of senior essred notes, resulting in higher average debtdev&his

increase in debt was partially offset by debt repayts of $757.0 million and lower capitalized ietgrin 2012. Our composite average borrowing aatef December 31, 2012 and 2011 was 7.85% an@6/.92
respectively .
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Our average debt outstanding was $ 8,289.9 mil&600.6 million and $8,301.2 million for 2013,120and 2011, respectively. Our debt levels haveaneed relatively flat from 2011 levels primarily elto the
$1.4 billion in registered debt offerings in 20b#set by $1.6 billion in debt refinancing and rethents in 2013, as discussed above.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense for 2013 decreased $ 28.4 mikip38 % , to $ 47.2 million, as compared witii20primarily due to lower pretax income in 2018suiting from the $69.4 million in additional lossen the
early extinguishment of debt in 2013 as compare2Df? and the $ 44.2 million in non-cash pensidtieseent costs recognized during 2013.

Income taxes for 2013 include the impact of a $6ilion net benefit resulting from the adjustmenf deferred tax balances, a $5.2 million benefitrfrfederal re search and development credits &id@million
benefit from the net reversal of reserves for umaire tax positions, partially offset by the impaéta charge of $5.2 million resulting from thetiehent of the 2010 IRS audit, and a charge of $8lfon resulting
from non-deductible transaction costs.

The effective tax rate for 2013 was 29.0 % as coatpwith 33.0% for 2012 and 35.9% for 2011.

Income tax expense for 2012 decreased $12.7 miltiori4%, to $75.6 million, as compared with 20The variance is primarily due to lower pretax imein 2012, along with the impact of the reverdal o
uncertain tax positions for $12.3 million, partjadiffset by a net increase in deferred tax balances

The amount of our uncertain tax positions for whioh statutes of limitations are expected to exgineng the next twelve months and which would effeur effective tax rate is $ 2.4 million as ofde@eber 31,
2013.

We paid $ 94.2 million and $4.7 million in net caakes in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Our 2058 ¢axes paid reflects the continued impact of batepreciation in accordance with the American agep R
elief Act of 2012. We received refunds (net of céakes paid) of $33.1 million in cash taxes durg@il. In 2011, we received refunds of $53.9 millgemerated in part by the 2009 retroactive change i
accounting method for repairs and maintenance cektted to tax years 2008 and prior. Absent agislative changes in 2014, we expect that our tasipayments will be approximately $ 130 milliontd 60
million for 2014 for our current business operasi@md our estimated pre-close integration expereditu

Net income attributable to common shareholders abRtier

Net income attributable to common shareholdersrohfier for 2013 was $ 11 2.8 million, or $ 0.1drshare, as compared to $136.6 million, or $0drspare, in 2012 and $149.6 million, or $0.15gf®re, in
2011.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the normal coofseur business operations due to ongoing investimdy funding activities, including those associatgith our pension plan assets. Market risk referthe
potential change in fair value of a financial instient as a result of fluctuations in interest rares equity prices. We do not hold or issue dekreanstruments, derivative commodity instrument®iher financial
instruments for trading purposes. As a resultdw@ot undertake any specific actions to covereoyposure to market risks, and we are not partyiyonaarket risk management agreements other théreinormal
course of business. Our primary market risk expEssfrom interest rate risk and equity price rigkas follows:

Interest Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk for changes in inter@ts relates primarily to the interest-bearingipo of our pension investment portfolio and rethbbligations, and floating rate indebtedness.ofASecember
31, 2013, 94% of our long-term debt had fixed ieserates with minimal exposure to interest rangles. We had no interest rate swap agreemeatsdéb our fixed rate debt in effect at Decemtigr2®13 and
2012.

Our objectives in managing our interest rate rigkta limit the impact of interest rate changeseamings and cash flows and to lower our overalidwing costs. To achieve these objectives, all$460.0
million of our outstanding borrowings at Decembdr, 2013 have fixed interest rates. In addition; endrawn $750.0 million revolving credit facilityas interest rates that float with the LIBO Ratas,
defined. Consequently, we have limited materigiriel earnings or cash flow exposures from changésteérest rates on our long-term debt. An advehsmge in interest rates would increase the antbantve
pay on our variable rate obligations and could Itésifluctuations in the fair value of our fixedte obligations. Based upon our overall interate exposure at December 31, 2013, a near-terngeharinterest
rates would not materially affect our consoliddfiedncial position, results of operations or cashv.

At December 31, 2013, the fair value of our longrtelebt was estimated to be approximately $ 8lbjlbased on our overall weighted average bomgwate of 7.9 5 % and our overall weighted average

maturity of approximately nine years . As of Dexxer 31, 2013, there has been no material chanthe weighted average maturity applicable to oligebions since December 31, 2012.

Equity Price Exposure

Our exposure to market risks for changes in eqaéturity prices as of December 31, 2013 is limitedur pension plan assets. We have no otherigeturestments of any material amount.

The Company's pension plan assets have decreasadbft,253.6 million at December 31, 2012 to $ BXBLmillion at December 31, 2013, a decrease o7 .3nillion, or 3 %. This decrease is a resuberefit

payments of $ 218.8 million, primarily lump sumtiehents of $ 164.6 million, offset by positive @stment returns of $ 1 19.4 million, cash contiiimg of $38.9 million and real property contributsoof $23.4
million. We expect that we will make contributiotwsour pension plan of approximately $100 millior2014.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The following documents are filed as part of thepBrt:
1. Financial Statements - See Index on page F-1.
2. Supplementary Data - Quarterly Financial Daiadtuded in the Financial Statements (see 1. gbove

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Rancial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(i) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure
We carried out an evaluation, under the stgien and with the participation of our manage including our principal executive officer apdncipal financial officer, regarding the effaghess of
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defimélles 13a—15(e) and 15d—15(e) under the Sexufiixchange Act of 1934, as amended). Based tip®rvaluation, our principal executive officerdan
principal financial officer concluded, as of thedesf the period covered by this report, Decembe2813, that our disclosure controls and procedweze effective.

(i) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(a) Management's annual report on intecoalrol over financial reporting
Our management report on internal control ovenfaia reporting appears on page F-2.
(b) Report of registered public accounting
The report of KPMG LLP, our independent registgpatilic accounting firm, on internal control ovendicial reporting appears on page F-4.
(c) Changes in internal control over finaheeporting
We reviewed our internal control over financial ogjng at December 31, 2013.

There have been no changes in our internal coowal financial reporting identified in an evaluatithereof that occurred during the last fiscal tpranf 2013 that materially affected, or is readmndikely to
materially affect, our internal control over finamaeporting.

On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Omgtions of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issuedptated Internal Control — Integrated Framewtre 2013 Framework) and related illustrative
documents. COSO will continue to make availableitginal Framework during the transition periodemding to December 15, 2014. The Company currenifiges COSO'’s original Framework, which was
published in 1992 and is recognized as the leadindance for designing, implementing and conduciirtgrnal controls over external financial repagtiand assessing their effectiveness. The 2013
Framework is expected to help organizations deaighimplement internal control in light of many nbas in business and operating environments sicessuance of the original Framework, broaden the
application of internal control in addressing opierss and reporting objectives, and clarify theuiegments for determining what constitutes effexiivernal control. We plan to adopt the 2013 Fraor& in
2014 and do not expect that it will have a sigaifitimpact on the Company.

Item 9B.  Other Information

None.

PART Il
Item 10 . _Directors, Executive Officers and Omorate Governance

Certain of the information required by this Itenirisorporated by reference from our definitive prastatement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockkad to be filed with the SEC pursuant to RegufatidA
within 120 days after December 31, 2013.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant
Our Executive Officers as of February 1 4 , 2014ewve

Name Age Current Position and Office
Kathleen Q. Abernath 57 Executive Vice President, External Affa
Andrew Crain 52 Senior Vice President and General Cou
Lois Hed¢-peth 57 Executive Vice President, Strate
John M. Jurelle 54 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Jennifer E. Len 53 Senior Vice President and Control
Daniel J. McCarthy 49 President and Chief Operating Offic
Cecilia K. McKenney 51 Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Aidtrative Service
Mary Agnes Wilderotte 59 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

There is no family relationship between the direstor executive officers. The term of office otkaf the foregoing officers of Frontier will contie until the next annual meeting of the Board wé&ors and
until a successor has been elected and qualified.

KATHLEEN Q. ABERNATHY joined Frontier's managemetgam in March 2010, after serving as a member oftfer's Board of Directors from April 2006 to M&r@010. She is currently Executive Vice
President, External Affairs. Previously, she wédse€Legal Officer and Executive Vice PresidentgRlatory and Government Affairs from March 2010Jtme 2012. From October 2008 to March 2010, Ms.
Abernathy was a partner at the law firm of Wilkind®arker Knauer, LLP. Prior to that time, she \agsartner at the law firm of Akin Gump Strauss Hatd-eld LLP from March 2006 to October 2008. From
June 2001 to December 2005, she served as a Coimmeisat the Federal Communications Commission.

ANDREW CRAIN joined Frontier in June 2012 as Seniice President and General Counsel. Prior tq tiéswas Scholar in Residence in the Interdisayp)inTelecommunications Program at the University of
Colorado Boulder from August 2011 to June 2012chgay communications law, research methods anddeienunications industry, and a Senior Fellow atShigon Flatirons Center for Law, Technology and
Entrepreneurship. From June 2000 to April 2011, Mirain held various Deputy General Counsel andogiase General Counsel positions at Qwest Commtiaita International, Inc. in the Regulatory,
Commercial, FCC and Wholesale Groups. From Ma@9v 1o June 2000, he held legal positions at USt\Wesimunications (predecessor to Qwest), in theuRégry and Litigation Groups. Prior to joining
Qwest, he was a Partner in the law firm of Rossadies.

LOIS HEDG-PETH joined Frontier in July 2012 as Extaee Vice President, Strategy. From Septembe®200September 2010 and September 2011 to Apri2281ie was a contractor with Frontier with the
position of Executive Vice President, Integratidfrom 2002 to 2008, Ms. Hedg-peth held various tims with Centrica, a competitive energy retailecluding President, U.S. Operations; ExecutiveeVi
President of Marketing, Director of Energy for Bsit Gas and Chief Operating Officer of North Amarfor its Direct Energy division. Prior to Cen&itls. Hedg-peth was President, Fixed Wireless Gipesa
for AT&T Wireless.

JOHN M. JURELLER joined Frontier in January 2013Ea®cutive Vice President and Chief Financial Qffi€lect and became Chief Financial Officer on Baby 27, 2013. Mr. Jureller was Senior Vice
President, Finance & Operations for the Resoureesisof General Atlantic LLC from April 2008 to Qdter 2012. Previously, he was Chief Financial &ffiof WestPoint International, Inc. from March 8a6
March 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Jureller was a memtif the Corporate Turnaround & Restructuring ficacof AlixPartners, LLC from April 2003 to Febmya2006. Before joining AlixPartners, LLC, Mr. &lier
was Chief Financial Officer of Trans-Resources,,|8enior Vice President, Corporate Developme@atner, Inc. and Senior Vice President, Finance@arporate Development at Caribiner Internatidnel

JENNIFER E. LEM joined Frontier in January 2014Saior Vice President and Controller. Previousle was Assistant Corporate Controller at Inteonafi Flavors & Fragrances Corporation from August
2011 to July 2012. From October 2005 to June 261id was Assistant Corporate Controller at Loewp@ation . Ms. Lem is a certified public accounita

DANIEL J. McCARTHY has been with Frontier since Betber 1990. He is currently President and Chieéréing Officer. Previously, he was Executive VReesident and Chief Operating Officer from
January 2006 to April 2012 and Senior Vice Predidéield Operations from December 2004 to Decer@B6. Prior to that, he was Senior Vice Presid@&rpadband Operations from January 2004 to Decembe
2004, President and Chief Operating Officer of Eled.ightwave from January 2002 to December 2@@4sident and Chief Operating Officer, Public SmrsiSector from November 2001 to January 2002, Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer, Public SezgiSector from March 2001 to November 2001 aneé Piesident, Citizens Arizona Energy from April 836 March 2001.
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CECILIA K. McKENNEY has been with Frontier sincelifaary 2006. She is currently Executive Vice Rtest, Human Resources and Administrative Servi€esviously, she was Executive Vice President,
Human Resources and Sales Operations from May @0d2nuary 2013, Executive Vice President, HumasoRees and Call Center Sales & Service from Fepr2@08 to May 2012 and Senior Vice President,
Human Resources from February 2006 to February .20@®r to joining Frontier, she was Group Viceesident, Headquarters Human Resources, of The Msing Group (PBG) from 2004 to
2005. Previously at PBG Ms. McKenney was Vice ierg, Headquarters Human Resources from 2000G4.20
MARY AGNES WILDEROTTER has been with Frontier sindevember 2004. She is currently Chairman of tearB and Chief Executive Officer. She was ele@eesident and Chief Executive Officer in
November 2004 and Chairman of the Board in Decerib8b. She was President of Frontier until Apfill2. Prior to joining Frontier, she was Senioré/Rresident - Worldwide Public Sector of Microsoft
Corp. from February 2003 to November 2004 and 3eviice President - Worldwide Business Strategy aérisoft Corp. from 2002 to 2004. Before that shes President and Chief Executive Officer of Wink
Communications from 1997 to 2002.

Iltem 11. _Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorpedby reference from our definitive proxy statemfenthe 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tofitezl with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A witti20
days after December 31, 2013.

Iltem 12. _Security Ownership of Certain Beneficil Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Meers

The information required by this Item is incorpeeby reference from our definitive proxy statenfenthe 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tofitel with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A withi20
days after December 31, 2013.

Item 13. _Certain Relationships and Related Trasactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorpedby reference from our definitive proxy statemfenthe 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tofitezl with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A witli20
days after December 31, 2013.

Iltem 14. _Principal Accountant Fees and Servise
The information required by this Item is incorpedby reference from our definitive proxy statenfenthe 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tofitel with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A withi20
days after December 31, 2013.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
List of Documents Filed as a Part of This Report:
(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfiing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&#13012
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeraded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomssjlfor the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2@11
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yearedrdlecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ye@ied December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

All other schedules have been omitted becauseetiigred information is included in the consolidafiedncial statements or the notes thereto, obtsapplicable or not required.
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(2) Index to Exhibits:

All documents referenced below were filed pursuarhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by the Campfile number 001-11001, unless otherwise indidat

Exhibit Description

No.

21 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decehh@013, by and between AT&T Inc. and the Comp(iied as
Exhibit 2.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on December 17, 2013

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filedExhibit 3.200.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Reporf-orm 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20*

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificatdraforporation, effective July 31, 2008 (filed ashibit 3.1 to
the Compan'’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20 °

33 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificaf Incorporation, effective June 28, 2010 (filesiExhibit 99.2 to
the Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed July 1, 2010)

3.4 By-laws, as amended February 6, 2009 (fileB>xdsbit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report omnr&-K filed
on February 6, 2009"

4.1 Indenture of Securities, dated as of August 15118@tween the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, (Bls

successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee (the “Aut@@1 Indenture”) (filed as Exhibit 4.100.1 to Bempany’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1¢

4.2 Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the August 19%femture, dated October 1, 1994, between the Comaad
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to CherBiaak), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.7 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 3, 1995

43 Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the Augustll88ienture, dated as of June 15, 1995, betwee@dnepany and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to CherBiaak), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.8 to the
Compan’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 29, 1996 (tt“March 29, 1996 -K")). "

4.4 Sixth Supplemental Indenture to the Augustll®@lenture, dated as of October 15, 1995, betweeiCompany
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to iChkeBank), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.9the
March 29, 1996 -K). *

45 Seventh Supplemental Indenture to the Augé@1 Indenture, dated as of June 1, 1996, betwee@dmpany and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to CherBiaak), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.11 te th
Compan’'s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 1996 “1996 1(-K"))."

4.6 Eighth Supplemental Indenture to the Augustlliiddenture, dated as of December 1, 1996, bettiee@ompany
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to icheBank), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.421te 1996
10-K). "

4.7 Indenture, dated as of August 16, 2001, betvike Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (a=essor to

The Chase Manhattan Bank), as Trustee (includiegfidhm of note attached thereto) (filed as Exhébit of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 22, 2001"

48 Indenture, dated as of December 22, 2006, dmtvthe Company and The Bank of New York, as Teuste
(including the form of note attached thereto) files Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current ReporfFonm 8-K
filed on December 29, 200€

49 Indenture dated as of March 23, 2007 by amaden the Company and The Bank of New York witlpees to the
6.625% Senior Notes due 2015 (including the formswéh note attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit t.Xhe
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 27, 2007 (tr“March 27, 2007 -K")).*

4.10 Indenture dated as of March 23, 2007 by atdden the Company and The Bank of New York witipeet to the
7.125% Senior Notes due 2019 (including the forrsumt note attached thereto) (filed as Exhibittd.the March
27, 2007 +K). "

411 Indenture dated as of April 9, 2009, betw#enCompany and The Bank of New York Mellon, asstea (the

“April 2009 Indenture”) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 toehCompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed oniA@r 2009
(the“April 9, 2009 ¢K"))."

412 First Supplemental Indenture to the April 20denture, dated as of April 9, 2009, betweenGbmpany and The
Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (including tfeem of note attached thereto) (filed as Exhib 4o the
April 9, 2009 ¢K). *

413 Second Supplemental Indenture to the Apii92hdenture, dated as of October 1, 2009, betwieerCompany
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (inahgdthe form of note attached thereto) (filed akiBit 4.1 to
the Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on October 1, 2009

414 Third Supplemental Indenture to the April 200Indenture, dated as of May 22, 2012, between thepaay anc
The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (filed ashibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F@#{
filed on May 22, 2012 (th“May 22, 2012 -K")).

* Incorporated by referenc
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4.15 Form of Senior Note due 2021 (filed as Exhibit th2he May 22, 2012-K). *
4.16 Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the Aprild20Indenture, dated as of August 15, 2012, betwieerCompany

and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (thelffth Supplement to April 2010 Indenture”) (filesl Bxhibit
4.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 15, 2012 (tH“August 15, 2012-K")). "

4.17 Form of Senior Note due 2023 (filed as Exhibit th 2he August 15, 2012-K). *

4.18 First Amendment to the Fourth Supplement poil20 09 Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2@E2ween the
Company and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trugféed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Bemn
Form &K filed on October 1, 2012°

4.19 Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the April 20@denture, dated as of April 10, 2013, between@ompany and
The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (filed ashibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F@+K
filed on April 10, 2013 (th¢April 10, 2013 -K")."

4.20 Form of Senior Note due 2024 (filed as Exhibit th2he April 10, 2013 -K).

4.21 Indenture, dated as of April 12, 2010 (*April 2010 Indentur”), as amended, between Spinco and The Bai
New York Mellon, as Trustee (including the formsraftes attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.225pinco’s
Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on April 2010 (File No. 0C-53950) (the* Spinco Form 1")). "

4.22 First Supplemental Indenture to the April 2010 imuee, dated as of July 1, 2010, between the Coynpad The
Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (filed as Exhib2 to the Company’s Registration Statement om¥S-4
filed on July 2, 2010 (File No. 3-167962)).

4.23 Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1994, letweontier North Inc. (formerly GTE North Incorpeed) and Bank
of New York Mellon (as successor to The First NagioBank of Chicago), as Trustee (the “Frontier tNor
Indenture”) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Compan@sarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaetieded June
30, 2010)"

4.24 First Supplemental Indenture to the Froritierth Indenture, dated as of May 1, 1996, betweentfer North Inc.
(formerly GTE North Incorporated) and Bank of Newrk Mellon (as successor to The First National Bahk
Chicago), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to tlemPany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thedisguarter
ended June 30, 201(

4.25 Form of Debenture under the Frontier North Indemiffited as Exhibit 4.24 to the Comp#¢s Annual Report o
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 “2011 1(-K")). "
10.1 Credit Agreement, dated as of October 141 2athong the Company, as the Borrower, and CoBa@B, as the

Administrative Agent, the Lead Arranger and a Lended the other Lenders referred to therein (fdsdExhibit
10.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on October 17, 2011°

10.2 Credit Agreement, dated asMay 3, 201Z, between the Company, the Lenders party thereta)&Morgan Chas
Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (filed as Exiib0. 1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on FA®Q for
the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2(). "

10.3 Bridge Loan Agreement, dated as of January 29, 28a¥ng the Company, the Lenders party theretoJ&
Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Ageiiedf as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Reor
Form ¢K filed on January 30, 2014

104 Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of May 13, 200§rz/among Verizon Communications Ir“Verizor”), New
Communications Holdings Inc. (“Spinco”) and the Gummy, (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Cotre
Report orForm &K filed on May 15, 2009}

105 Agreement Regarding Intellectual Property Matteeged as of March 23, 2010, among the Company c8ind
Verizon (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Spinco Fat6)."

10.6 Non-Employee Directors' Deferred Fee EquignPas amended and restated December 29, 2088 & Exhibit
10.7 to the Compar's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 “2008 1(-K")."

10.7 Non-Employee Directors’ Equity Incentive Rlas amended and restated December 29, 2008 &gl&ckhibit 10.8
to the 2008 1-K). *

10.8 Separation Agreement between the Company and Ledraw effective July 10, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 2@ of
the Compan's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20°

10.9 .1996 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended astdtexl December 29, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.1th€2008 10-K).

10.10 2013 Frontier Bonus Plan (filed as Appendix A te Bompan’s Proxy Statement dated March 25, 2013
“2013 Proxy Stateme”)). "

10.11 Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentiar, Rs amended and restated December 29, 2088 & Exhibit
10.13 to the 2008 -K).

10.12 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix Attte Compan’'s Proxy Statement dated April 6, 20C

10.13 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix Bhe 2013 Proxy Statemen’

10.14 Offer of Employment Letter, dated January 20, 2di€tween the Company and Kathleen Abernathy (fie
Exhibit 10.35 to the Spinco Form 1

10.15 Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to Offer of Emplogtrieetter, dated January 20, 2010, between the @oy

and Kathleen Q. Abernathy (filed as Exhibit 10.%te Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fer filkcal
quarter ended June 30, 2012 (“June 30, 2012 -Q"))."
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10.16 Offer of Employment Letter, dated May 24, 2012 wzstn the Company and Andrew Crain (filed as ExHibi2
to the June 30, 2012 -Q)."

10.17 Offer of Employment Letter, dated April 12, between the Company and Lois Hedg-Peth (&ike&xhibit 10.4
to the June 30, 2012 -Q)."

10.18 Offer of Employment Letter, dated Decemb@r 2012, between the Co mpany and John M. Jurgfiled as
Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Annual Report onrfrdr0-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 (tigd.22
16-K"))."

10.19 Offer of Employment Letter, dated Decemb@r 2013, between the Company and Jennifer E. Léled (s
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 6, 2014

10.20 Change in Control Letter Agreement, dated April 20712, between the Company and Daniel J. McCafileyl @s
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 20”

10.21 Offer of Employment Letter, dated January 13, 20B6tween the Company and Cecilia K. McKen

(“McKenney Offer Letter”) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 ttne Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fer fiscal
quarter ended March 31, 200"

10.22 Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to Offer of Emplogirieetter, dated January 13, 2006, between the @oy
and Cecilia K. McKenne (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the June 30, 201:-Q)."

10.23 Amended and Restated Employment Agreematedcas of March 8 , 201 3, between the CompadyMary
Agnes Wilderotter (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Quany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2813 ).

10.24 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for CHI®d as Exhibit 10.32 to Company’s Annual Repartform  10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2009 “2009 1-K") ."

10.25 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for named exeeufficers other than CEO (filed as Exhibit 10.@8the
2009 1(K).

10.26 Form of LTIP Agreenent for CEO (filed as Exhibit 10.32 to the 201:-K). *

10.27 Form of LTIP Agreement for named ecutive officers other than CEO (filed as exhil@it3B to the 201 1C-K).

10.28 Summary of No-Employee Directol Compensation Arrangements Outside of Formal F.

10.29 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement leeitviee Company and Integra Telecom Holdings, Iratedi
February 6, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Camyps Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Febru@2006).

10.30 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of JU®7, between the Company and Country Road Coriwations
LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Compg’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on July 9, 2007)

12.1 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed rgfess (this item is included herein for the solepmse of incorporation
by reference)

211 Subsidiaries of the Registre.

23.1 Auditors' Consent

311 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao Rule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1
(the“1934 Ac”).

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuato Rule 13-14(a) under the 1934 Ac

321 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtio8e906 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002“SOXA") .

322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer puemt to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursag®ection 906 of
SOXA.

101.INS XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum:

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docume

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhe

Exhibits 10.6 through 10.28 are managencontracts or compensatory plans or arrangem
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1df(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be signedsopeihalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.
ERONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATIO!

(Registrant;

By: /s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

February27, 2014
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of the registrand in the capacities indicated on theé'27  day
of February 2014.

Sianature Title
/sl Leroy T. Barnes, J Director
(Leroy T. Barnes, Jr
/sl Peter C. B. Byno Director
(Peter C. B. Bynoe
/sl Jeri B. Finar( Director
(Jeri B. Finard
/sl Edward Fraiol Director
(Edward Fraioli,
/sl John M. Jurelle Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(John M. Jureller (PrincipalFinancial Officer)
/sl James Kaha Director
(James Kahar
/sl Jennifer E. Ler Senior Vice President and Control
(Jennifer E. Lem (Principal Accounting Officer
/sl Pamela D.A. Ree\ Director
(Pamela D.A. Reeve
/sl Virginia P. Ruesterho Director
(Virginia P. Ruesterholz
/sl Howard L. Schrot Director
(Howard L. Schrott
/sl Larraine D. Seg Director
(Larraine D. Segil
/s/ Mark Shapirc Director
(Mark Shapiro’
/sl Myron A. Wick IlI Director
(Myron A. Wick I11)
/s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotte Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

(Mary Agnes Wilderotter (Principal Executive Officer
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Managements Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

The management of Frontier Communications Corpmmaaind subsidiaries is responsible for establishimgjmaintaining adequate internal control ovearfiial reporting, as such term is defined in ExgleaAct
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f).

Under the supervision and with the participatioroaf management, we conducted an evaluation oéffleetiveness of our internal control over finaheporting based on the framework in Internal Golt
Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cassion (COSO). Based on our evaluation, our manageroncluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of DecemberZ13.

Our independent registered public accounting fiBMG LLP, has audited the consolidated financiatesnents included in this report and, as part eif taudit, has issued their report, included heremthe
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting.

Stamford, Connecticut
February 27, 2014



Report Of Independent Reaistered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated belsheets of Frontier Communications Corporatiahsarbsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 20XRttenrelated consolidated statements of operations
comprehensive income (loss), equity and cash flfawsach of the years in the three-year period éridecember 31, 2013. These consolidated finanta@tments are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaflo(United States). Those standards require teaplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatses of material misstatement. An audit inclueeamining, on a test basis, evidence supportinguheunts and disclosures in the financial statesnéut audit
also includes assessing the accounting principdes! wnd significant estimates made by managementell as evaluating the overall financial statetgmesentation. We believe that our audits provade
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaesferred to above present fairly, in all mater@apects, the financial position of Frontier Coumitations Corporation and subsidiaries as of Déegrl, 2013
and 2012, and the results of their operationstiaeid cash flows for each of the years in the thyrear period ended December 31, 2013, in conformitly U.S. generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdzf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@nited States), Frontier Communications Corponaand subsidiaries’ internal control over finaici

reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on @iestablished in Internal Control—Integrated Fraomw(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@izations of the Treadway Commission (COSO),
and our report dated February 27, 2014 expressedgumlified opinion on the effectiveness of thexany'’s internal control over financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 27, 201



Report Of Independent Reaistered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We have audited Frontier Communications Corporagiod subsidiaries’ internal control over finanaigporting as of December 31, 2013, based on a@itsiablished in Internal Control—Integrated Fraoméw
(1992 ) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Qregaions of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Resrfommunications Corporation’s management isarsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessmerhefeffectiveness of internal control over finahoggoorting, included in the accompanying Managet’se@Report on Internal Control Over Financial Rejpay. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Canys internal control over financial reporting beon our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statslof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lBo@nited States). Those standards require thaplae and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal comwel financial reporting was maintained in all miterespects. Our audit included obtaining an usidading of internal control over financial repog;, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, anchgestind evaluating the design and operating effexéss of internal control based on the assesdedXis audit also included performing such othexcpdures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We&¢hat our audit provides a reasonable basisdo opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the reliability of financial repogt and the preparation of financial statementsefdernal
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduaticg principles. A company’s internal control o¥imancial reporting includes those policies amdgedures that (1) pertain to the maintenanceaxfrds that,

in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refliet transactions and dispositions of the assetiseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurancdrtratactions are recorded as necessary to perepiagation of
financial statements in accordance with generatlyepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of the company are being made enbccordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabbkurance regarding prevention or timely detectfaunauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiéthe company’s assets that could have a matffiedt on

the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuabf effectiveness to future periods are subjethe risk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Frontier Communications Corporatamd subsidiaries maintained, in all material regpeeffective internal control over financial refiog as of December 31, 2013, based on critet@béished in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992) éssby the Committee of Sponsoring OrganizatiorthefTreadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bloédnited States), the consolidated balance shefefontier Communications Corporation and

subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 ttendelated consolidated statements of operatimorprehensive income (loss), equity and cash fifawsach of the years in the three-year period énde
December 31, 2013, and our report dated Februarg®# expressed an unqualified opinion on thossal@ated financial statements.

Isl KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connectict
February 27, 2014



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012
($ in thousands)

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 880,039 $ 1,326,532
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $71,36283267, respective 479,210 533,704
Restricted cas 11,411 15,408
Prepaid expens¢ 68,573 66,972
Income taxes and other current as 179,606 144,587
Total current asse 1,618,83¢ 2,087,202
Restricted cas 2,000 27,252
Property, plant and equipment, | 7,255,762 7,504,89¢
Goodwill 6,337,71¢ 6,337,71¢
Other intangibles, ne 1,214,932 1,542,73¢
Other asset 206,232 233,822
Total asset $ 16,63548¢ $ 17,733,631
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Long-term debt due within one ye $ 257,916 $ 560,55C
Accounts payabl 327,256 338,14¢
Advanced billings 137,319 146,317
Accrued other taxe 66,276 66,342
Accrued interes 188,639 209,327
Other current liabilitie: 324,181 232,83€
Total current liabilities 1,301,587 1,553,52(
Deferred income taxe 2,417,10¢ 2,357,21C
Pension and other postretirement ben: 725,333 1,055,05¢
Other liabilities 262,308 266,625
Long-term deb 7,873,667 8,381,947
Equity:
Shareholders' equity of Frontie
Common stock, $0.25 par value (1,750,000,000 aizibshares
999,462,000 and 998,410,000 outstanding, respégtaed
1,027,986,000 issued, at December 31, 2013 and): 256,997 256,997
Additional paic-in capital 4,321,05€ 4,639,562
Retained earning 76,108 63,205
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o (260,530 (483,576
Treasury stocl (338,150 (368,593
Total shareholders' equity of Front 4,055,481 4,107,59€
Noncontrolling interest in a partnerst - 11,675
Total equity 4,055,481 4,119,271
Total liabilities and equit' $ 16,635,48¢ $ 17,733,631

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oktl@@nsolidated Financial Statements.
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Revenue

Operating expense
Network access expens
Other operating expens
Depreciation and amortizatic
Pension settlement co:
Acquisition and integration cos
Total operating expens:

Gain on sale of Mohave partnership inte
Operating incom:

Investment incom

Losses on early extinguishment of d

Other income, ne
Interest expens

Income before income tax

Income tax expens

Net income

Less: Income attributable to the noncontroll
interest in a partnersh

Net income attributable to common sharehol:
of Frontier

Basic net income per common share attribut
to common shareholders of Front

Diluted net income per common share attributi
to common shareholders of Front

Net income

Pension settlement costs, net of tax (see Notesd4.7)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax ksate 14)
Comprehensive incor

Less: Income attributable to t
noncontrolling interest in a partners|

Comprehensive income (loss) attributabli
the common shareholders of Fron

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 201
($ in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 201

($ in thousands)

2013 2012 2011

$ 4,76157€  $ 5,011,85¢ 5,243,04¢

431,073 441,588 518,682

2,141,06¢ 2,234,55¢ 2,278,41¢

1,169,50¢ 1,266,807 1,403,17¢

44,163 - -

9,652 81,737 143,146

3,795,45€ 4,024,68E 4,343,42;

14,601 - -

980,721 987,168 899,621

3,808 13,011 2,391

159,780 90,363 -

5,369 7,121 9,135

667,398 687,985 665,196

162,720 228,952 245,951

47,242 75,638 88,343

115,478 153,314 157,608

2,643 16,678 7,994

$ 112835  $ 136,636 149,614

$ 011 $ 0.14 0.15

$ 011 $ 0.3 0.15
2013 2012 2011

$ 115,47¢ $ 153,314 157,60€

27,381 - -

195,665 (96,613 (157,414

338,524 56,701 194

(2,643 (16,678 (7,994

$ 335,881 $ 40,023 (7,800

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oeti@msolidated Financial Statements.



Balance December 31, 20
Stock plan
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Other comprehensive loss, |
of tax

Distributions
Balance December 31, 20
Stock plans
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Other comprehensive loss, |
of tax
Distributions
Balance December 31, 20
Stock plan:
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Pension settlement costs, net of
Other comprehensive income, |
of tax
Distributions
Sale of Mohave partnership inter
Balance December 31, 20

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 201
($ and shares in thousands)

Shareholders’ Equity of Fronti

Accumulatec

Additional
Common Stoc! Paic-In Retainec Treasury Stoc Total
Sharer Amount Capital Earnings Sharet Amount Interest Equity
1,027,98¢ $ 256,997 ¢ 5,525,471 $ 77,107 (229,549 (34,131 § (433,286 ¢ 13,003 ¢ 5,209,742
- - (5,701 - - 1,273 18,285 - 12,584
- - (746,387 - - - - - (746,387
- - - 149,614 - - - 7,994 157,60€
- - - - (157,414 - - - (157,414
- - - - - - - (7,000 (7,000
1,027,98¢ 256,997 4,773,38% 226,721 (386,963 (32,858 (415,001 13,997 4,469,13¢
- - (34,582 - - 3,282 46,408 - 11,826
- - (99,238 (300,152 - - - - (399,390
- - - 136,63€ - - - 16,678 153,314
- - - - (96,613 - - - (96,613
- - - - - - - (19,000 (19,000
1,027,98¢ 256,997 4,639,56° 63,205 (483,576 (29,576 (368,593 11,675 4,119,271
- - (18,671 - - 1,052 30,443 - 11,772
- - (299,836 (99,932 - - - - (399,768
- - - 112,83¢ - - - 2,643 115,47¢
- - - - 27,381 - - - 27,381
- - - - 195,665 - - - 195,665
- - - - - - - (6,400, (6,400
- - - - - - - (7,918 7,918
1,027,98¢ $ 256,997 & 4,321,05¢€ $ 76,108 (260,530 (28,524 $ (338,150 ¢ - § 4,055,481

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oeti@@mnsolidated Financial Statements.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 201

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating actsti
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashideal by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense
Losses on early extinguishment of d
Pension settlement costs
Pension/OPEB cos
Stock based compensation expense
Gain on sale of Mohave partnership inte
Other nor-cash adjustmen
Deferred income taxe
Change in accounts receival
Change in accounts payable and other liabil
Change in prepaid expenses, income taxes and athrent asset
Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) investing atig:
Capital expenditure- Business operatior
Capital expenditure- Integration activitie:
Network expansion funded by Connect America F
Grant funds received for network expansion from @ America Fun:
Proceeds on sale of Mohave partnership inte
Cash transferred from escrc
Other assets purchased and distributions recemnet
Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) financing adigs:

Long-term debt borrowing

Financing costs pai

Long-term debt paymen

Premium paid to retire debt

Dividends paic

Repayment of customer advances for construction,

distributions to noncontrolling interests and ot

Net cash provided from (used by) financing actag

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Janua

Cash and cash equivalents at Decembe

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid (received) during the period
Interest
Income taxes (refunds), r

Non-cash investing and financing activiti¢
Capital lease obligatior
Financing obligation for contributions of real pesty to pension pla
Reduction of pension obligatic
Increase in capital expenditures due to changasdounts payabl

($ in thousands)

2013 2012 2011
$ 115,478 $ 153,314 $ 157,608
1,169,50C 1,266,807 1,403,17¢

159,780 90,363 -

44,163 - -

37,243 28,087 23,897

16,932 16,775 14,209

(14,601 - -

11,065 10,319 (28,036

(7,510 80,501 87,411

50,487 43,813 (72,600

(6,507 (148,906 (84,689

(80,403 11,400 71,706

1,495,627 1,552,47% 1,572,681

(634,685 (748,407 (748,361

- (54,097 (76,478

(32,748 (4,830 -

63,636 65,981 -

17,755 - -

31,249 102,020 43,012

12,300 4,394 19,155

(542,493 (634,939 (762,672

750,000 1,360,62¢ 575,000

(19,360 (27,852 (5,444

(1,563,022 (756,953 (552,394

(159,429 (72,290 -

(399,768 (399,390 (746,387

(8,048 (21,236 (5,953

(1,399,627 82,904 (735,178

(446,493 1,000,43¢ 74,831

1,326,532 326,094 251,263

$ 880,039 $ 1,32653: $ 326,094
$ 667,753 $ 636,485 $ 653,500
$ 94,161 $ 4715 $ (33,072
$ 25082 $ 26,59 $ -
$ 23,422 $ -8 58,100
$ (23,422 $ -8 (58,100
$ 39,847 $ 9,802 $ 1,338

The accompanying Notes are an integral part okti@msolidated Financial Statements



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Description of Business and Summary of Sigaift Accounting Policies
(a) Description of Business
Frontier Communications Corporation (Frontier) isemmunications company providing services predamtiy to rural areas and small and medium-sizechsoand cities as an incumbent local exc
hange carrier ( ILEC ) . Frontier was incorporaited 935, originally under the name of Citizenslitiéis Company and was known as Citizens CommuisicatCompany until July 31, 2008. Frontier
and its subsidiaries are referred to as “we,” “tsyir,” “Frontier,” or the “Company” in this reportOn July 1, 2010, Frontier completed the 201naation for the acquisition of the 2010 Acquired
Business, as described further in Note 3 — Theskretion s .

(b) Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates
Our consolidated financial statements have beepepeel in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States of America (GBAP). All significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consaidat

Frontier had a 33% controlling general partner interest in a pathigr entity, the Mohave Cellular Limited Partneps{i¥iohave). Mohave's results of operations ancihe sheet were included in our
consolidated financial statements through its datdisposal on April 1, 2013. The minority intere$ the limited partners was reflected in the adigsted balance sheet as “Noncontrolling intenest
partnership” and in the consolidated statementpefations as “Income attributable to the noncdimpinterest in a partnership.” On April 1, 201Be Company sold its partnership interest in Meha
and received proceeds of $17.8 million . The Camgpacognized a gain on sale of approximately $idlon before taxes in 2013.

For our financial statements as of and for thequeeinded December 31, 2013, we evaluated subseeuemtis and transactions for potential recognitiodisclosure through the date that we filed this
annual report on Form 10-K with the Securities BRdhange Commission (SEC).

The preparation of our financial statements in oomfty with U.S. GAAP requires management to mastingates and assumptions that affect (i) the repgoamounts of assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, (ii) the disclosureoftingent assets and liabilities, and (jii) teparted amounts of revenue and expenses duringpleeting period. Actual results may differ frohose
estimates. Estimates and judgments are used vdeenrating for revenue recognition including thélowance for doubtful accounts, impairment of Idivgd assets, intangible assets, depreciation and
amortization, income taxes, contingencies, andiperand other postretirement benefits, among others

(c) Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with amginal maturity of three months or less to be ceghivalents.

(d) Revenue Recognitian
Revenue is recognized when services are providedhen products are delivered to customers. Revémateis billed in advance includes: monthly remgmetwork access services (including data
services), special access services and monthlyriegwoice, video and related charges. The ureghportion of these fees is initially deferred ammponent of “Advanced billings” on our consolieldt
balance sheet and recognized as revenue over fiioel ieat the services are provided. Revenueishiaitled in arrears includes: non-recurring netivaccess services (including data services), seitch
access services, non-recurring voice and videdcgrv The earned but unbilled portion of theses fiserecognized as revenue in our consolidateérseaits of operations and accrued in accounts
receivable in the period that the services areifesk Excise taxes are recognized as a liabilinenvbilled. Installation fees and their relatetedi and incremental costs are initially deferred a
recognized as revenue and expense over the averagef a customer relationship. We recognizeuaseat period expense the portion of installatiosts that exceeds installation fee revenue.



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As required by law, the Company collects variousesafrom its customers and subsequently remitsetkeeees to governmental authorities. Substantglllyof these taxes are recorded through the
consolidated balance sheet and presented on asistib our consolidated statements of operatitis.also collect Universal Service Fund (USF) sarghs from customers (primarily federal USF) that
we have recorded on a gross basis in our consetidaiitements of operations and included within/&Ree” and “Other operating expenses” of $117.8liam, $119.7 million and $104.5 million for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 28ddeatively .

(e

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at ofligiost, including capitalized interest, or fair iair value as of the date of acquisition for acqliipeoperties. Maintenance and repairs are chaed
operating expenses as incurred. The gross book edltoutine property, plant and equipment retisecharged against accumulated depreciation.

(f) Goodwill and Other Intangibles
Goodwill represent s the excess of purchase priee the fair value of identifiable tangible andaingible net assets acquired. We undertake stunlidstermine the fair values of assets and liagditi
acquired and allocate purchase prices to assetdiabilities, including property, plant and equipmegoodwill and other identifiable intangibles.eVénnually (during the fourth quarter) or more
frequently, if appropriate, examine the carryindueaof our goodwill and trade name to determine tiveethere are any impairment losses. We testdodgill impairment at the “operating segment”
level, as that term is defined in U.S. GAAP. Durihg first quarter of 2013, the Company reorganirea four regional operating segments. Our opegasiegments consist of the following regions:
Central, East, National and West. Our regionakajigy segments are aggregated into one reporsggiement. In conjunction with the reorganizatioroof operating segments effective with the first
quarter of 2013, we reassigned goodwill to our répg units using a relative fair value allocati@pproach.

The Company amortizes finite-lived intangible assmier their estimated useful lives and reviewshsatangible assets at least annually (during theth quarter) to assess whether any potential
impairment exists and whether factors exist thatldmecessitate a change in useful life and armdiffeamortization period.

(g9) Impairment of Lond.ived Assets and Lontived Assets to Be Disposed Of
We review long-lived assets to be held and usesudiing customer lists, and long-lived assets talisposed of for impairment whenever events or gharin circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Reatuility of assets to be held and used is measqwedmparing the carrying amount of the asseliédfture undiscounted net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. Recoverability of absédsfor sale is measured by comparing the cagrgimount of the assets to their estimated fair etar&lue. If any assets are considered to be irgair
the impairment is measured by the amount by whiehcarrying amount of the assets exceeds the ¢strfeir value. Also, we periodically reassessuseful lives of our tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether any changes are required.

(h) Investments_

Investments in entities that we do not control,where we have the ability to exercise signifidafitience over operating and financial policie® accounted for using the equity method of accagnti

(i) Income Taxes and Deferred Income Taxes
We file a consolidated federal income tax returre wMtlize the asset and liability method of accingfor income taxes. Under the asset and liabitigthod, deferred income taxes are recorded for the
tax effect of temporary differences between tharirial statement basis and the tax basis of agsdtfiabilities using tax rates expected to befiact when the temporary differences are expeated t
reverse.

(i) Stock Plans
We have various stock-based compensation plansrdsaander these plans are granted to eligible efficmanagement employees, non-management emplaydason-employee directors. Awards
may be made in the form of incentive stock optiamm-qualified stock options, stock appreciatioghts, restricted stock, restricted stock units thieo stock-based awards, including awards with
performance, market and time-vesting conditions. @aneral policy is to issue shares from treaspnuthe grant of restricted shares , earning dbpmance shares and the exercise of options.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The compensation cost recognized is based on awkittsitely expected to vest. U.S. GAAP requireseitures to be estimated and revised, if necessaigubsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffe
from those estimates.

(K

Net Income Per Common Share Attributable ton@wn Shareholders

Basic net income per common share is computed ub&gveighted average number of common sharesaodlisg during the period being reported on, exdgdinvested restricted stock awards. The
impact of dividends paid on unvested restrictedkstwards have been deducted in the determinafibagic and diluted net income per common shariatable to common shareholders of Frontier.
Except when the effect would be antidilutive, ddlditnet income per common share reflects the dduwiffect of certain common stock equivalents, adeed further in Note 13 — Net Income Per
Common Share.

Recent Accounting Literature

Presentation of Comprehensive Income

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Stansd@dard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update2013-02 (ASU 2013-02), “Comprehensive Incomepdring of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income,” ( Accowpttandards Codification (ASC) Topic 220). ASU 2@R requires disclosing the effect of reclassifaras out of accumulated other comprehensive
income on the respective line items in the comptmefinet income in circumstances when U.S. GAAquires the item to be reclassified in its entirtynet income. This new guidance is to be applied
prospectively. The Company adopted ASU 2013-02nduttie fourth quarter of 2012 with no impact on fimancial position, results of operations or céetvs.

Internal Control—Integrated Framework

On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Ozgtiuns of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issuedptated Internal Control — Integrated Framewtt& 013 Framework) and related illustrative
documents. COSO will continue to make availableitginal Framework during the transition periodemxding to December 15, 2014 . The Company cuyrenilizes COSO's original Framework , which
was published in 1992 and is recognized as thdrlgaglidance for designing, implementing and cotidgcinternal controls over external financial reffmy and assessing its effectiveness. The 201 3
Framework is expected to help organizations deaighimplement internal control in light of many obas in business and operating environments siecessuance of the original Framework, broaden the
application of internal control in addressing ojierss and reporting objectives, and clarify theuiegments for determining what constitutes effexiivternal control. We plan to adopt the 201 3 Fraork

in 2014 and do not expect that it will have a digant impact on the Company.

TheTransactions

The 2010 Transagbn

On July 1, 2010, the Company acquired the defirestta and liabilities of the local exchange busireesl related landline activities of Verizon Comiations Inc. (Verizon) in 14 states (the Acquired
Territories), including Internet access and lorgtatice services and broadband video provided igrased customers in the Acquired Territories @0&0 Acquired Business). Frontier was considened t
acquirer of the 2010 Acquired Business for accagnfiurposes.

The Company accounted for its acquisition of th&®acquired Business (the 2010 Transaction) udiegguidance included in ASC Topic 805. We incuediL.7 million and $ 143.1 million of integration
related costs in connection with the 2010 Transadtiuring the years ended December 31, 2012 antl, 284pectively. Such costs are required to beresgd as incurred and are reflected in “ Acquisitio
and i ntegration costs” in our consolidated statemef operations. All integration activities fine 2010 Transaction were completed as of theoé@012.

The AT&TTransaction

On December 17, 2013, the Company announced thatdted into an agreement to acquire the wirgloperties of AT&T Inc. (AT&T) in Connecticut (th&T&T Transaction) for a purchase price of $2.0
billion in cash, with adjustments for working cabit Upon completion of the AT&T Transaction, Frientwill operate AT&T's wireline business and fibeptic network that provides services to residéntia
commercial and wholesale customers in Connectithe Company will also acquire AT&T's U-verse® vadand satellite TV customers in Connecticut. Weiired $9.7 million of acquisition related costs
in connection with the AT&T Transaction during theairth quarter of 2013.
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(4) Accounts Receivable
The components of accounts receivable, net at Dieee1, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

($in thousands 2013 2012
Retail and Wholesale $ 498,717 $ 581,152
Other 51,855 45,819
Less: Allowance for doubtful accour (71,362 (93,267
Accounts receivable, net $ 479,21C $ 533,704

An analysis of the activity in the allowance forutitful accounts for the years ended December 3113,22012 and 2011 is as follows:

Charged (Credited) to Switched and
Nonswitched Revenue and Other

($.in thousand) Balance at beginning of Peri _Charged to Other Reven Accounts Write-offs and Recoverie Balance at end of Peric
2011 $ 73571 $ 93,721 $ 16,403 $ (76,647 $ 107,048
2012 107,048 74,332 14,396 (102,509 93,267
2013 93,267 68,965 (3,203 (87,667 71,362

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts Base our estimate of our ability to collect accaurgceivable. The provision for uncollectible amisurwas $ 65.8 million , $88.7 million and $ 110.1
million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 281®2011, respectively.

G

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net at Decembe2@®13 and 2012 are as follows:

(8 in thousands Estimated Useful Live 2013 2012
Land N/A $ 126,483 $ 126,483
Buildings and leasehold improveme 41 years 1,061,097 1,052,65(
General support 5to 17 years 977,941 988,707
Central office/electronic circuit equipment 5to 11 years 5,222,92¢ 4,965,09¢
Poles 49 years 549,322 507,922
Cable and wirt 15 to 30 year 6,259,292 6,038,83¢
Conduit 60 years 359,974 354,777
Other 12 to 30 years 43,144 44,802
Construction work in progre: 250,516 274,488
Property, plant and equipme 14,850,691 14,353,761
Less: Accumulated depreciation (7,594,93¢ (6,848,867
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 7,255,762 $ 7,504,89€

Depreciation expense is principally based on thepmsite group method. Depreciation expense wad.$8aillion, $844.6 million and $881.5 million fahe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively. As a result of an independamy of the estimated remaining useful lives of plant assets, we adopted new estimated remairsafyl lives for certain plant assets as of Octdber
2013, with an immaterial impact to depreciationenge.
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(6) Goodwill andOther Intangibles
The components of goodwill by the reporting uniteffect as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

(8 in thousands)

Central $ 1,815,49¢
East 2,003,57¢
National 1,218,11¢
West 1,300,534

Total Goodwill $ 6,337,71¢

The components of other intangibles at Decembe2@13 and 2012 are as follows:

($in thousands 2013 2012
Gross Carrying Amour Accumulated Amortizatiol Net Carrying Amoun Gross Carrying Amour Accumulated Amortizatio Net Carrying Amoun
Other Intangibles:
Customer base $ 2,427,648 $ (1,336,852 $ 1,090,79¢ $ 2,427,648 $ (1,009,045 $ 1,418,60¢
Software license - - - 105,01¢ (105,019 -
Trade name and licen 124,136 - 124,136 124,41¢ (283 124,13€
Total other intangibles $ 2,551,784 $ (1,336,852 $ 1,214,93z $ 2,657,08¢ $ (1,114,347 $ 1,542,73¢

Amortization expense was $328.0 million , $42&iftion and $521.7 million for the years ended Dmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Amatitn expense for 2013, 2012 and 2011 of $328.0
million , $410.8 million and $465.4 million, resgtively, mainly represents the amortization oangible assets (primarily customer base) that wegeiired in the 2010 Transaction based on a ubkfuf

nine years for the residential customer base anglea®s for the business customer base, amortizeshaaccelerated method. Amortization expense @d22and 2011 included $38.3 million and $49.1
million, respectively, for amortization associateih certain software licenses that were acquirethe 2010 Transaction and are no longer requivedperations as a result of the completed systems
conversions and $11.4 million and $56.3 milliorspectively, for amortization associated with certpioperties, each of which were fully amortized20.2. Amortization expense, based on our current
estimate of useful lives, is estimated to be apprately $285 million in 2014, $240 million in 2015195 million in 2016, $150 million in 2017 and &lMillion in 2018.
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(7) LongTerm Debt
The activity in our long-term debt from December 3212 to December 31, 2013 is summarized as fetlow

Year Endec
December 31, 2013 Interest
Rate at
December 31, Payments New December 31, December 31,
(8 in thousands 2012 and Retirement Borrowings 2013 2013 *
Senior Unsecured De $ 8,919,69¢ $ (1,562,63C ¢ 750,00C ¢ 8,107,06€ 7.95%
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds 13,550 - - 13,550 6.33%
Rural Utilities Service Loan Contracts 9,322 (392 - 8,930 6.15%
Total Lon¢-Term Debt $ 8,942,56¢ & (1,563,022 § 750,00C $ 8,129,54¢ 7.95%
Less: Debt (Discount)/Premium (71) 2,037
Less: Current Portion (560,550 (257,916
$ 8,381,947 $ 7,873,667

* Interest rate includes amortization of debt issce costs and debt premiums or discounts. TheeBtteates at December 31, 2013 represent a weigierage of multiple issuances.

F-14
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Additional information regarding our Senior UnsemiDebt at December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows

(8 in thousands 2013 2012

Principal Interest Principal Interest
Outstanding Rate Outstanding Rate

Senior Notes and Debentures Due:

1/15/2013 $ - - $ 502,658 6.250%
5/1/2014 200,000 8.250% 200,00C 8.250%
3/15/201& 105,026 6.625% 300,00C 6.625%
4/15/2015 96,872 7.875% 374,802 7.875%
10/14/2016 * 460,000 3.045% (Variable) 517,50C 3.095% (Variable)
4/15/2017 606,874 8.250% 1,040,68t 8.250%
10/1/201€ 582,738 8.125% 600,00C 8.125%
3/15/2019 434,000 7.125% 434,00C 7.125%
4/15/2020 1,021,50¢ 8.500% 1,100,00¢ 8.500%
7/1/2021 500,000 9.250% 500,00C 9.250%
4/15/2022 500,000 8.750% 500,00C 8.750%
1/15/2023 850,000 7.125% 850,00C 7.125%
4/15/2024 750,000 7.625% - -
11/1/2028 138,000 7.000% 138,00C 7.000%
8/15/2026 1,739 6.800% 1,739 6.800%
1/15/2027 345,858 7.875% 345,858 7.875%
8/15/2031 945,325 9.000% 945,32¢ 9.000%
10/1/2034 628 7.680% 628 7.680%
7/1/2035 125,000 7.450% 125,00C 7.450%
10/1/2046 193,500 7.050% 193,50C 7.050%
7,857,06€ 8,669,69¢
Subsidiary Senior Notes and Debentures [
2/15/2028 200,000 6.730% 200,00C 6.730%
10/15/2029 50,000 8.400% 50,000 8.400%
Total € 7.78% ** 9€ 7.69% **

*  Represents borrowings under the Credit Agrerst with CoBank.
** |nterest rate represents a weighted averdgleostated interest rates of multiple issuances.

The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, f€8Badministrative agent, lead arranger and afeadid the other lenders party thereto, for a $bi#fillion senior unsecured term loan facility with
final maturity of October 14, 2016 (the Credit Agneent). The entire facility was drawn upon exenutf the Credit Agreement in October 2011. Repayof the outstanding principal balance is made in
quarterly installments in the amount of $14.4 miili which commenced on March 31, 2012, with theaieing outstanding principal balance to be repaidhe final maturity date. Borrowings under the
Credit Agreement bear interest based on the manyiesthe Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Agese) or LIBOR, at the election of the Companytetast rate margins under the facility (rangingrfro
0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 28#53.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject tjuatments based on the Total Leverage Ratio o€tmapany, as such term is defined in the Credit
Agreement. The current pricing on this facilityLiBBOR plus 2.875% . Proceeds of the facility wased to repay in full the remaining outstandiniggipal on three debt facilities (Frontier's $20@limn
Rural Telephone Financing Cooperative term loaruneg October 24, 2011, its $143 million CoBanlkndoan maturing December 31, 2012, and its $13BamiCoBank term loan maturing December 31,
2013) and the remaining proceeds were used forglec@rporate purposes.
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On May 3, 2013, the Company entered into a new $76fllion revolving credit facility (the Revolvin@redit Facility) and terminated the Company’s jwasly existing revolving credit facility. As of
December 31, 2013, no borrowings had been mader tineRevolving Credit Facility. The terms of thewlving Credit Facility are set forth in the credgreement, dated as of May 3, 2013, among the
Company, the Lenders party thereto, JPMorgan CBasé&, N.A., as Administrative Agent and the othartigs named therein (the Revolving Credit AgreefneAssociated commitment fees under the
Revolving Credit Facility will vary from time tortie depending on the Company’s debt rating (as eefin the Revolving Credit Agreement) and were 0%40p er annum as of December 31, 2013. The
Revolving Credit Facility is scheduled to terminate November 3, 2016 . During the term of the Rewgl Credit Facility, the Company may borrow, read reborrow funds, and may obtain letters of
credit, subject to customary borrowing conditidnsans under the Revolving Credit Facility will beéaterest based on the alternate base rate odjhsted LIBO R ate (each as determined in the Réawypl
Credit Agreement), at the Company'’s election, @lusargin based on the Company’s debt rating (rgnfyom 0.50% to 1.50% for alternate base rate bdmgs and 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIBO R
ate borrowings). The current pricing on this fagilvould have been 1.0% or 2.0% , respectivelyofa@ecember 31, 2013. Letters of credit issued utite Revolving Credit Facility will also be subjeo
fees that vary depending on the Company’s debitgafihe Revolving Credit Facility is available fpeneral corporate purposes but may not be useshtbdividend payments. The maximum permitted
leverage ratio is 4.5 times.

On September 8, 2010, the Company entered i fetiex of credit facility, the terms of which aretgorth in the Credit Agreement with the Lendeasty thereto and Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch
(the Bank), as Administrative Agent and Issuing Béhe Letter of Credit Agreement). An initial lettof credit for $190.0 million was issued to the#V/Virginia Public Service Commission to guarantee
certain of our capital investment commitments instéirginia in connection with the 2010 TransactioFhe initial commitments under the Letter of Grédjreement expired in September 2011 , with the
Bank exercising its option to extend $100.0 mill@ithe commitments to September 2012 . In Septerib12, the Company entered into an amendmetietaatter of Credit Agreement to extend $40
million of the commitments. Two letters of crediére issued in September 2012, one for $20 mitha expired in March 2013 , and the other for 82ion that expired in September 2013 . The Letter
Credit Agreement expired on September 20, 2013.

On April 10, 2013 , the Company completed a reggstelebt offering of $750.0 million aggregate pifiat amount of 7.625% senior unsecured notes dad 2@ssued at a price of 100% of their principal
amount. We received net proceeds of $736.9 mifiiom the offering after deducting underwriting fe@he Company used the net proceeds from the §#he motes, together with cash on hand, to finance
the cash tender offers discussed below.

On April 10, 2013, the Company accepted for puretf71.3 million aggregate principal amount ofsésior notes tendered for total consideration &% million, consisting of $194.2 million aggregat
principal amount of the Company’s 6.625% senioesatue 2015 (the March 2015 Notes), tendered faf ¢onsideration of $216.0 million, and $277.1limil aggregate principal amount of the Company’s
7.875% senior notes due 2015 (the April 2015 Notesi)dered for total consideration of $316.4 milli®n April 24, 2013, the Company accepted for pase $0.7 million aggregate principal amount of the
March 2015 Notes, tendered for total consideratib$0.8 million, $0.8 million of the April 2015 Nes, tendered for total consideration of $0.9 milliand $225.0 million aggregate principal amourthef
Company'’s 8.250% senior notes due 2017 (the 201éd)otendered for total consideration of $267.Wieni The repurchases in the debt tender offersttie senior notes resulted in a loss on the early
extinguishment of debt of $104.9 million, ($ 64.8lion or $0.06 per share after tax), which wasogmized in the second quarter of 2013.

Additionally, during the second quarter of 2013 @ompany repurchased $208.8 million of the 201®%8lt a privately negotiated transaction, aloni 7.3 million of its 8.125% senior notes due 201
and $78.5 million of its 8.500% senior notes du2® open market repurchases. These transactsnéted in a loss on the early extinguishment ot dé $54.9 million ($ 34.0 million or $0.04 peraske
after tax), which was recognized in the secondtguarf 2013.

On May 17, 2012, the Company completed a registeffeding of $500 million aggregate principal amowofi9.250% senior unsecured notes due 2021 ,dsatia price of 100% of their principal amount.
We received net proceeds of $489.6 million from dffering after deducting underwriting fees andedfig expenses. The Company also commenced arteffdeto purchase the maximum aggregate
principal amount of its 8.250% Senior Notes due42@he 2014 Notes) and the April 2015 Notes (amgktioer with the 2014 Notes, the Notes) that it dguirchase for up to $500 million in cash (the 2012
Debt Tender Offer).
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Pursuant to the 2012 Debt Tender Offer, the Compamegpted for purchase $400 million aggregate jp@m@mount of 2014 Notes, tendered for total ctexsition of $446.0 million, and $49.5 million
aggregate principal amount of April 2015 Notesgdted for total consideration of $54.0 million. eT@ompany used proceeds from the sale of its Mag 2ffering of $500 million of 9.250% Senior Notes
due 2021, plus cash on hand, to purchase the Notes.

In connection with the 2012 Debt Tender Offer aepurchase of the Notes, the Company recognizessaov$69.0 million for the premium paid on thelgaxtinguishment of debt during 2012. We also
recognized losses of $2.1 million during 2012 f@84 million in total open market repurchases af@@5% Senior Notes due 2013.

On August 15, 2012, the Company completed a regiteffering of $600 million aggregate principal@mt of 7.125% senior unsecured notes due 20232(#8 Notes), issued at a price of 100% of their
principal amount. We received net proceeds of $8&éllion from the offering after deducting undeitng fees and offering expenses. The Companyl tise net proceeds from the sale of the notes to
repurchase or retire existing indebtedness in 2013.

On October 1, 2012, the Company completed a regibdebt offering of $250 million aggregate prirtipmount of the 2023 Notes, issued at a pricéddf260% of their principal amount. We received net
proceeds of $255.9 million from the offering aftisducting underwriting fees and offering expen$ée. notes are an additional issuance of, are futigible with and form a single series voting tdgetas
one class with the $600 million aggregate princgrabunt of the 2023 Notes issued by the Comparmugust 15, 2012. The Company used the net prodeeatsthe sale of the notes to repurchase or retire
existing indebtedness in 2013.

On October 1, 2012, the Company accepted for paech#5.7 million and $59.3 million aggregate ppatiamount of the April 2015 Notes and the 2017eNptespectively, in open market repurchases for
total consideration of $154.7 million. The repursimresulted in a loss on the early retiremenebf df $19.3 million.

In 2011, we retired an aggregate principal amoti$662.4 million of debt, consisting of $551.4 riaili of senior unsecured debt and $1.0 million eétutilities service loan contracts.
As of December 31, 2013, we were in compliance waitlof our debt and credit facility financial cawnts.

On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment Ifgte bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facilityhd recognized interest expense of $1.3 millionteeldo this commitment during 2013. On January 29,
2014, we entered into a bridge loan agreement Btfdge Loan Agreement ) with the Lenders pahnigréto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as adndtiisragent, pursuant to which the Lenders have
agreed at closing of the AT&T Transaction to previg us an unsecured bridge loan facility for ugh1o9 billion for the purposes of funding (i) substally all of the purchase price for the AT&T
Transaction and (i) the fees and expenses incumrednnection with the transactions contemplatgdhle s tock p urchase a greement for the AT&T $aafion . Pursuant to the Bridge Loan Agreement, if
and to the extent we do not, or are unable togisibt securities yielding up to $1.9 billion irgs cash proceeds on or prior to the closing oAf&T Transaction, we shall draw down up to $1.Bidm,

less the amount of the debt securities, if anyiddsby us on or prior to the closing of the AT&Talsaction, in aggregate principal amount of loardeuthe Bridge Facility to fund the purchase pdtéhe
AT&T Transaction .

Our principal payments for the next five yearsasdollows as of December 31, 2013:

Principal
(8 in thousands Payment
2014 $257,916
2015 $259,84C
2016 $345,466
2017 $607,375
2018 $583,273
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Other Obligations

During 20 13, the Company contributed four reabtsproperties to its qualified defined benefit gen plan. The pension plan obtained independeptaigals of the properties and, based on these
appraisals, the pension plan recorded the coniisiat their fair value of $23.4 million. The Coamy has entered into leases for the contributedepties for 15 years at a combined aggregate amengl

of approximately $2.1 million. The properties aramaged on behalf of the pension plan by an indegrrfitiuciary, and the terms of the leases weretisgd with the fiduciary on an arm’s-length basis

The contribution and leaseback of the properties tneated as a financing transaction and, accdsditie Company continue s to depreciate the aagryalue of the properties in its financial statetseand
no gain or loss was recognized. An obligation d3.42million was recorded in our consolidated batasleet within “Other liabilities” for $23.3 millioand within “Other current liabilities” for $0.1ition
and these liabilities will be reduced by a portidrihe lease payments made to the pension plan.

During 2012, the Company entered into a sale aaskleack arrangement for a facility in Everett, ifagton and entered into a capital lease for theafiiber in the state of Minnesota. These agregme
have lease terms of 12 and 23 years, respectiTélgse capital lease obligations as of December2812 are included in our consolidated balance shébin “Other liabilities” and “Other current
liabilities.”

During 2011, the Company contributed four real tesggoperties to its qualified defined benefit penslan. The pension plan recorded the contrilmstiat their fair value of $58.1 million and the Guany
entered into a financing lease for the contribyteaperties for 15 years at a combined aggregateament of approximately $5.8 million.

Future minimum payments for finance lease obligetiand capital lease obligations as of Decembe2(@l3 are as follows:

(8 in thousands Finance Lease Obligatior _Capital Lease Obligatior
Year ending December 3

2014 $ 6,891 $ 3,107
2015 7,043 3,162
2016 7,225 3,216
2017 7,418 3,273
2018 7,633 3,331
Thereaftel 70,892 18,976
Total future payment 107,102 35,065
Less: Amounts representing inter (63,174 (9,983
Present value of minimum lease payme $ 43,928 $ 25,082

(8) Investment Income
The components of investment income for the yelatie@ December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as fllow

($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
Interest and dividend incon $ 2,401 % 3,753 $ 2,184
Investment gail 1,407 9,780 1,071
Equity earnings (lost - (522 (864)
Total investment incom $ 3,808 § 13,011 $ 2,391

During 2013, 2012 and 2011, we recognized investrgains of $1.4 million , $9.8 million and $1.1 tiwh, respectively, associated with cash receiveaddnnection with our previously written-off
investment in Adelphia.
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Other Income, Net
The components of other income, net for the yeadee December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follow

($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
Gain on expiration/settlement of customer adval $ 3,345 $ 7,798 $ 7,605
Litigation settlement proceet - 854 1,495
Split-dollar life insurance procee: 2,263 - -
All other, net (239 (1,531 35
Total other income, ni $ 5369 $ 7121 $ 9,135

During 2013 we recognized proceeds of $2.3 milliothe settlement of a split-dollar life insurammicy for a former senior executive.

During 2013, 2012 and 2011, we recognized incom®3a® million, $7.8 million and $7.6 million, resgively, in connection with certain retained liafids that have terminated, associated with custome
advances for construction from our disposed watepgrties.

During 2 012 and 2011, we recognized $0.9 millind 1.5 million, respectively, in settlement prageeelated to litigation arising from businessex the Company exited several years ago.

(10) Capital Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 1,750,000,00@starcommon stock. The amount and timing of dimils payable on common stock are, subject to @yiéidaw, within the sole discretion of our Boafd o
Directors.

(11) Stock Plans

At December 31, 2013, we had six stock-based cosgtiem plans under which grants were made and awardained outstanding. No further awards mayrbatgd under four of the plans: the 1996
Equity Incentive Plan (the 1996 EIP), the Amended Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the 200®)Bhe 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 EIf) the Non-Employee Directors’ Deferred Fee
Equity Plan (the Deferred Fee Plan). At Decemiigr2®13, there were 22,540,761 shares authorizegrémt and 18,432,664 shares av ailable for grader the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2013 EIP
and together with the 1996 EIP, the 2000 EIP aed2009 EIP, the EIPs) and the Non-Employee Dirsttquity Incentive Plan (the Directors’ Equity RJaand together with the Deferred Fee Plan, the
Director Plans). Our general policy is to issuerehdrom treasury upon the grant of restrictedeshand the exercise of options.

1996, 2000, 2009 and 2013 Equity Incentive Plans
Since the expiration dates of the 1996 EIP, th&@ZB® and the 2009 EIP on May 22, 2006, May 14928d May 8, 2013, respectively, no awards have beenay be granted under the 1996 EIP, the 2000

EIP and the 2009 EIP. Under the 2013 EIP, awardsiotommon stock may be granted to eligible oficenanagement employees and non-management ereploythe form of incentive stock options,
non-qualified stock options, SARs, restricted sfqmrformance shares or other stock-based awasddistussed under the Non-Employee Directors’ Cosestéon Plans below, prior to May 25, 2006 non-
employee directors received an award of stock optimder the 2000 EIP upon commencement of service.

At December 31, 2013, there were 20,000,000 stearwrized for grant under the 2013 EIP and 17(B®ishares available for grant. No awards mayraetegd more than 10 years after the effective date
(May 8, 2013) of the 2013 EIP plan. The exerciseepof stock options and SARs under the EIPs géipeaee equal to or greater than the fair markéteaf the underlying common stock on the date of
grant. Stock options are not ordinarily exercisabiethe date of grant but vest over a period oétjgenerally four years). Under the terms of thRsEbubsequent stock dividends and stock splits trey
effect of increasing the option shares outstandirich correspondingly decrease the average exepeise of outstanding options.
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Performance Shares

On February 15, 2012, the Company’s Compensatianriltiee, in consultation with the other non-managentirectors of the Company’s Board of Directansl he Committee’s independent executive
compensation consultant, adopted the Frontier LBergn Incentive Plan (the LTIP ). LTIP awards ararged in the form of performance shares. The Li$lurrently offered under the Company’'s 2009
EIP and 2013 EIP, and participants consist of sernée presidents and above. The LTIP awards haviepnance, market and time-vesting conditions.

Beginning in 2012, during the first 90 days of aeth-year performance period (a Measurement Perotirget number of performance shares are awdadedch LTIP participant with respect to the
Measurement Period. The performance metrics uheeTIP are (1) annual targets for operating dish based on a goal set during the first 90 ddysagh year in the three-year Measurement Peridd an
(2) an overall performance “modifier” set duringetfirst 90 days of the Measurement Period, basetherCompany’s total return to stockholders (iTegtal Shareholder Return or TSR) relative to the
Integrated Telecommunications Services Group (QI08e 50101020) for the three-year Measurement ®ef@perating cash flow performance is determirteti@end of each year and the annual results
will be averaged at the end of the three-year Memsent Period to determine the preliminary numbieshares earned under the LTIP award. The TSPopesnce measure is then applied to decrease or
increase payouts based on the Company’s threergiedive TSR performance. LTIP awards, to the exézmned, will be paid out in the form of commoacst shortly following the end of the three-year
Measurement Period.

On February 15, 2012, the Compensation Committaetgd 930,020 performance shares under the LTIthé2012-2014 Measurement Period and set the tapgeash flow performance goal for the first
year in that Measurement Period and the TSR modiiethe three-year Measurement Period. On Febr2d, 2013, the Compensation Committee approvéd31966 target performance shares under the
LTIP for the 2013-2015 Measurement Period andreebperating cash flow performance goal for 201t#ctvapplies to the first year of the 2013-2015 Meament Period and the second year of the 2012-
2014 Measurement Period. The performance shanelawapproved in February 2013 were granted upaikisedder approval of the Company’s 2013 EIP at&haual Meeting of Stockholders held on May
8, 2013. The number of shares of common stockeelaah the end of each three-year Measurement Pesdggcbe more or less than the number of targebpaence shares granted as a result of operating
cash flow and TSR performance. An executive nmaintain a satisfactory performance rating durihng Measurement Period and must be employed by tmepény at the end of the three-year
Measurement Period in order for the award to vésie Compensation Committee will determine the nemaf shares earned for each three year Measurd®eeiod in February of the year following the end
of the Measurement Period.
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The following summary presents information regagdifTIP target performance shares as of Decembe2@®13 and changes with regard to LTIP shares awardder the 2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP :

Number o
Shares

Balance at January 1, 20 -
LTIP target performance shares granted 979,00C
LTIP target performance shares forfei -
Balance at December 31, 20 979,000
LTIP target performance shares granted 1,124,00C
LTIP target performance shares forfei (354,000
Balance at December 31, 20 1,749,00C

The Company recognized an expense of $1.1 millimh$0.4 million during 2013 and 2012, respectivédy the LT IP .

Restricted Stock
The following summary presents information regagdimvested restricted stock as of December 31, a@@i3hanges with regard to restricted stock utide2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP:

Weightec
Average
Number of Grant Date Aggregate
Shares Fair Value Fair Value
Balance at January 1, 20 4,440,00C $ 8.29 $  43,199,00C
Restricted stock granted 1,734,00C $ 9.38 $  8,930,00C
Restricted stock veste (1,146,00 $ 9.562 $  5,899,00C
Restricted stock forfeited (181,000 $ 7.99
Balance at December 31, 2C 4,847,000 $ 8.40 $ 24,962,000
Restricted stock granted 3,976,00C $ 4.18 $ 17,017,00C
Restricted stock veste (1,387,00C $ 8.78 $  5,937,00C
Restricted stock forfeited (387,000 $ 5.99
Balance at December 31, 2012 7,049,00C $ 6.08 $ 30,169,00C
Restricted stock granted 3,360,000 $ 4.10 $ 15,626,00(
Restricted stock veste (3,097,00C $ 6.78 $  14,403,00(
Restricted stock forfeited (1,078,00C $ 5.26
Balance at December 31, 2013 6,234,000 $ 4.80 $ 28,988,000

For purposes of determining compensation expehsdatr value of each restricted stock grant igvested based on the average of the high and lowenarice of a share of our common stock on the dat
grant. Total remaining unrecognized compensaticst associated with unvested restricted stock awardecember 31, 2013 was $19.5 million and theghted average period over which this cost is
expected to be recognized is approximately 1.5syear

We have granted restricted stock awards to empfoyeehe form of our common stock. None of therietd stock awards may be sold, assigned, pledgeatherwise transferred, voluntarily or

involuntarily, by the employees until the restucts lapse, subject to limited exceptions. The ict&ins are time-based. Compensation expense, nemadjin “Other operating expenses”, of $14.9 liamil
$15.9 million and $14.8 million, for the years edd@ecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivalybken recorded in connection with these grants.
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Stock Options
The following summary presents information regagdiutstanding stock options as of December 31, 20tichanges with regard to options under the EIPs:

Weightec Weightec
Shares Average Average Aggregate
Subject tc Option Price Remaining Intrinsic
Option Per Share Life in Years Value
Balance at January 1, 2011 1,507,000 $ 10.50 17 $ 603,000
Options grante: -$ -
Options exercised (10,000 $ 8.19 $ 12,000
Options canceled, forfeited or laps (602,000 $ 10.86
Balance at December 31, 2011 895,000 $ 9.94 13 8 -
Options grante: -$ -
Options exercised -$ -
Options canceled, forfeited or laps (355,000 $ 8.35
Balance at December 31, 2012 540,000 $ 10.99 09 $ -
Options grante: -$ -
Options exercised -$ -
Options canceled, forfeited or laps (457,000 $ 10.59
Balance at December 31, 2013 83,000 $ 13.23 18 $ -

The number of options exercisable at December @13,22012 and 2011 were 83,000, 540,000 and805,with a weighted average exercise price of 83 $10.99 and $9.94 , respectively.

There were no stock options exercised during 20H32012. Cash received upon the exercise of optlariag 2011 was $0.1 million. There were no stopkons granted during 2013, 2012 and 2011. There
is no remaining unrecognized compensation costaged with unvested stock options at Decembe813.

Non-Employee DirectorsCompensation Plans
Prior to October 1, 2010, non-employee directocgired stock options upon joining the Board of Bioes. These options were awarded under the Dir€dEquity Plan commencing May 25, 2006. Prior
thereto, these options were awarded under the EI®0 Options awarded to directors under the 2000Ee included in the above tables.

Prior to October 1, 201 3, e ach non-employeecthr was entitled to receive an annual retaifi€f p$75,000 in cash, which he or she had thet iglelect to receive in the form of stock unitsdg?2)
$75,000 in the form of stock units. In additione t_ead Director, the chair of the Audit Committel the chair of the Compensation Committee eamive d an annual stipend of $20,000 , the chainef
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee veagian annual stipend of $10,000 and the chdalteRetirement Plan Committee receive d an annipeirel of $7,500 .

Beginning October 1, 2013, we revised our non-egg#odirector compensation program in accordande bést practices. Each non-employee director v ewtitled to receive an annual retainer of (1)
$90,000 in cash, which he or she has the righteot o receive in the form of stock units, as diéstl below, and (2) $90,000 in the form of stoclts) in each case payable in advance in quarterly
installments on the first business day of each tquaitn addition, the Lead Director and the ctafithe Audit Committee each receives an additiamaual cash stipend of $25,000 , the chair of the
Compensation Committee receives an additional droash stipend of $20,000 , the chair of the Nonimgeand Corporate Governance Committee receivesditional annual cash stipend of $15,000 and
the chair of the Retirement Plan Committee receareadditional annual cash stipend of $10,000 clviti each case he or she may elect to receiveeiform of stock units. The annual stipend paith&®
Lead Director and each of the committee chairsjsple in arrears in equal quarterly installmemtshe last business day of each quarter. Eachtdirés required to irrevocably elect by Decembko8the
prior year whether to receive the cash portioni®fh her retainer and/or his or her stipend iclstnits.
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As of October 1, 2013, s tock units are creditetheodirector’s account in an amount that is deitleeshas follows: the total cash value of the femgaple to the director is divided by the closinges of
Frontier common stock on the grant date of thesunfrior to October 1, 2013, stock units were iceeldto the director's account in an amount thas watermined as follows: the total cash value effées
payable to the director divided by 85% of the aigsprices of Frontier common stock on the grang @dithe units. Units are credited to the diréstaccount quarterly. Directors must also eleatdovert
the units to either common stock (convertible @ma -to-one basis) or cash upon retirement or death

Dividends are paid on stock units held by direcairthe same rate and at the same time as we piguiis on shares of our common stock. Dividendstock units are paid in the form of additionalcit
units.

The number of shares of common stock authorizedsgarance under the Directors’ Equity Plan is 2,880 , which includes 540,761 shares that werdableifor grant under the Deferred Fee Plan on the
effective date of the Directors’ Equity Plan. Indétbn, if and to the extent that any “plan unititstanding on May 25, 2006 under the Deferredfaa are forfeited or if any option granted under t
Deferred Fee Plan terminates, expires, or is chattel forfeited, without having been fully exeris shares of common stock subject to such “plats™uor options cancelled shall become availabldarmn
the Directors’ Equity Plan. At December 31, 20}&re were 1,048,609 shares available for gramerérwere 11 directors participating in the Direst®lans during all or part of 2013. In 2013, theal
plan units earned were 374,383 . In 2012, the fi&al units earned were 306,634 . In 2011, thel fan units earned were 197,600 . Options graptied to the adoption of the Directors’ Equity Rlaere
granted under the 2000 EIP. At December 31, 2018,6B0 options were outstanding and exercisablenthe Director Plans at a weighted average exeprise of $11.95 .

For purposes of determining compensation expehgefair value of each option grant is estimatedttendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidoipg model which requires the use of various
assumptions including expected life of the optiexpected dividend rate, expected volatility, arsit-free interest rate. The expected life (estimatedod of time outstanding) of stock options geahivas
estimated using the historical exercise behavicernployees. The risk free interest rate is basetherl.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at theetiof the grant. Expected volatility is based ortdrisal
volatility for a period equal to the stock optiospected life, calculated on a monthly basis.

To the extent directors elect to receive the distion of their stock unit account in cash, theg eonsidered liability-based awards. To the extiéneictors elect to receive the distribution of thetbck unit
accounts in common stock, they are consideredyehated awards. Compensation expense for stock @it are considered equity-based awards is laséue market value of our common stock at the
date of grant. Compensation expense for stock thntsare considered liability-based awards is thasethe market value of our common stock at thieafreach period.

In connection with the Director Plans, compensatiosts associated with the issuance of stock wete $2.1 million , $0.8 million and $(0.6)lifon in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Cash
compensation associated with the Director Plans$@as million in 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respedyivel hese costs are recognized in “Other operagimenses”.



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(12) Income Taxes
The following is a reconciliation of the provisifor income taxes computed at federal statutorysraiehe effective rates for the years ended Deee®ib, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
Consolidated tax provision at federal statutorg 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax provisions, net of federal inct
tax benefit 2.7) 24 4.0
Noncontrolling interes (0.6) (2.5) (1.1)
Tax reserve adjustme (1.1) (5.4) (4.0)
Changes in certain deferred tax balar (4.0 3.1 .7
IRS audit adjustmen 3.2 - -
Federal research and development ci (3.2) - -
Reversal of tax credi - - 4.4
Non-deductible transaction cos 2.0 - -
All other, net 0.4 0.4 0.3
29.0% 33.0% 35.9%

Effective tax rate

Income taxes for 2013 include the impact of a $6ilion net benefit resulting from the adjustmefteferred tax balances, a $5.2 million berfeditn federal research and development creditssa$itl8
million benefit from the net reversal of reserves tincertain tax positions, partially offset by fhepact of a charge of $5.2 million resulting frahe settlement of the 2010 IRS audit, and a chef3.3

million resulting from non-deductible transactiowsts.

Income taxes for 2012 and 2011 include the netrsevef reserves for uncertain tax positions fa2.8Imillion and $9.9 million, respectively. Defedrtax balances were increased in 2012 to reftenges
in estimates and changes in state effective ratgdiling methods.

Income taxes for 2011 include the reduction of defittax balances based on the application of edastate tax statutes for $6.8 million, partialfiset by the impact of a $10.8 million charge résgl from
the enactment on May 25, 2011 of the Michigan Cafgolncome Tax that eliminated certain futuredeguctions.
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The components of the net deferred income taxliipifasset) at December 31 are as follows:

($.in thousand) 2013 2012
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Property, plant and equipment basis differer $ 1,950,72C $ 1,959,02¢
Intangibles 885,661 929,748
Other, ne 25,954 29,564

$ 2,862,33t § 2,918,341

Deferred income tax asse

Pension liability 216,89 306,421
Tax operating loss carryforwa 130,732 154,892
Employee benefit 161,492 177,464
State tax liability (642, 7,422
Accrued expense 26,223 43,162
Allowance for doubtful accoun 11,957 35,181
Other, ne 42,915 14,025
589,56¢ 738,567
Less: Valuation allowanc (112,671 (78,784
Net deferred income tax as: 476,89¢ 659,783
Net deferred income tax liabilit $ 2385437 $§ 225855¢
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflectetihé following
captions on the consolidated balance st
Deferred income taxe $ 2417,10¢ $ 2,357,21C
Income taxes and other current as (31,671 (98,652
Net deferred income tax liabili $ 2385437 $§ 2,258,55¢

O ur state tax operating loss carryforward as ot@mber 31, 2013 is estimated at $2.5 billiomoftion of our state loss carryforward begins tpiexin 2014 through 2032.
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The provision (benefit) for federal and state ineotaxes, as well as the taxes charged or creditstidreholders’ equity of Frontier, includes ameusath payable currently and deferred for payment i

future periods as indicated below:

($.in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
Income taxes charged to the consolidated stateofi@perations
Current:
Federa $ 54,915 $ (3824 $ (13,320
State (163, (1,039 14,252
Total Curren 54,752 (4,863 932
Deferred:
Federa 12,699 53,642 77,750
State (20,209 26,859 9,661
Total Deferrec (7,510 80,501 87,411
Total income taxes charged to the consolidateérsiant of operatior 47,242 75,638 88,343
Income taxes charged (credited) to shareholdeustyeof Frontier:
Utilization of the benefits arising from restrictetbck 1,910 2,937 -
Deferred income taxes (benefits) arising from geognition
of additional pension/OPEB liabilit 132,432 (58,551 (97,409
Total income taxes charged (credited) to sharehslequity
of Frontier 134,342 (55,614 (97,409
Total income taxe $ 181584 $ 20,024 $ (9,066

In 2011, we received refunds of $53.9 million gexed in part by the 2009 retroactive change in @aeting method for repairs and maintenance costseelto tax years 2008 and prior.

U.S. GAAP requires applying a “more likely than hibireshold to the recognition and derecognitiorun€ertain tax positions either taken or expeoteblet taken in the Company’s income tax returns. The
total amount of our gross tax liability for tax s that may not be sustained under a “mordyikean not” threshold amounts to $9.3 million dDecember 31, 2013 including interest of $0.6 iwill
The amount of our uncertain tax positions for whioh statutes of limitations are expected to exginéng the next twelve months and which would etffeur effective tax rate is $2.4 million as of Batber

31, 2013.

The Company’s policy regarding the classificatidrinterest and penalties is to include these ansasta component of income tax expense. This tegatof interest and penalties is consistent witbrpr
periods. We have recognized in our consolidatetkistent of operations for the year ended DecembeP@11, a net reduction in interest in the amodr$21 million. We are subject to income tax
examinations generally for the years 2012 forwarddéderal and 2005 forward for state filing juitdibns. We also maintain uncertain tax positiansarious state jurisdictions.

The following table sets forth the changes in tieenPany’s balance of unrecognized tax benefitsHeryears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

(8 in thousands 2013 2012

Unrecognized tax benefits - beginning of year $ 11,487 $ 33,928
Gross increases - current year tax positions 4,554 3,381
Gross decreases - expired statute of limitations (7,282 (25,822
Unrecognized tax benefi- end of yea $ 8,759 $ 11,487
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The amounts above exclude $0.6 million and $2.lianibf accrued interest as of December 31, 20182012, respectively, that we have recorded anddumel payable should the Company’s tax positions
not be sustained.

(13) Net Income Per Common Share
The reconciliation of the net income per commonsiealculation for the years ended December 31322012 and 2011 is as follows:

($ and shares in thousands, except per share am)

2013 2012 2011

Net income used for basic and diluted earn

per common shart
Net income attributable to common shareholdersrofifier $ 112,835 $ 136,636 $ 149,614
Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricted sévedrds (2,531 (2,901 (3,743
Total basic and diluted net income attributabledmmon

shareholders of Frontit $ 110304 $ 133,735 $ 145,871
Basic earnings per common she
Total weighted average shares and unvested restistock

awards outstandin- basic 999,126 997,665 994,753
Less: Weighted average unvested restricted stwakds (6,467 (7,128 (4,901
Total weighted average shares outstan- basic 992,658 990,537 989,852
Basic net income per share attributable to com

shareholders of Fronti $ 0.11 $ 0.14 $ 0.15
Diluted earnings per common she
Total weighted average shares outstan- basic 992,659 990,537 989,852
Effect of dilutive share 1,338 1,263 1,415
Effect of dilutive stock unit: - - 557
Total weighted average shares outstan- diluted 993,997 991,80C 991,824
Diluted net income per share attributable to com

shareholders of Fronti $ 011 % 013 § 0.15

Stock Options

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ant] 2ptions to purchase 83,000 shares (at exercisespranging from $ 12.50 to $14.15 ), 540,008rss (at exercise prices ranging from $10.44 to
$14.15 ) and 895,000 shares (at exercise pricegngufrom $8.19 to $14.15 ), respectively, issuabieer employee compensation plans were excluded fne computation of diluted earnings per share
(EPS) for those periods because the exercise priees greater than the average market price otommon stock and, therefore, the effect would h@liutive. In calculating diluted EPS, we apphet
treasury stock method and include future unearpetpensation as part of the assumed proceeds.

Stock Units
At December 31, 201 3, 2012 and 2011, we had 15228 864,114 and 557,480 stock units, respelgtiissued under the Director Plans. These &&sihave not been included in the diluted incqrae
share of common stock calculation for 2013 and 2@Ecuse their inclusion would have an antidiluéffect.
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(14) Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income aref ghins and losses affecting shareholders’ investand pension/postretirement benefit (OPEB) Iligs that, under U.S. GAAP, are excluded from net
income.

The components of accumulated other comprehenssge het of tax at December 31, 2013, 2012 and af s follows:

Deferred taxes on pension i

($ in thousands Pension Cost OPEB Cost: OPEB cost: All other Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $ (349,264 $ (13,369 $ 132,752 $ 332 $ (229,549
Other comprehensive income before reclassificar (241,064 (22,668 100,978 (482 (163,236
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmslive los: 15,165 (5,774 (3,569 - 5,822
Net currer-period other comprehensive income (Ic (225,899 (28,442 97,408 (482 (157,414
Balance at December 31, 2C (575,163 (41,811 230,161 (150; (386,963
Other comprehensive income before reclassificar (152,402 (29,922 68,871 - (113,453
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmslive los: 29,691 (2,531 (10,320 - 16,840
Net curren-period other comprehensive income (Ic (122,711 (32,453 58,551 - (96,613
Balance at December 31, 2C (697,874 (74,264 288,712 (150, (483,576
Other comprehensive income before reclassificar 205,341 67,289 (100,951 2 171,681
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmsive los: 36,938 1,745 (14,699 - 23,984
Recognition of net actuarial loss for pension eatént cost 44,163 - (16,782 - 27,381
Net curren-period other comprehensive income (Ic 286,442 69,034 (132,432 2 223,046
Balance at December 31, 2C $ (411,432 $ (5230 $ 156,28C $ (148 $ (260,530
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The significant items reclassified from each congrarof accumulated other comprehensive loss foy¢laes ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2015 &odiaws:

$ in thousands

Amount Reclassified fror
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Lo

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Quaponent: 2013 2012 2011 Affected Line Item in the Statement Where Net InedsPresente
Amortization of Pension Cost lter”
Prior-service cost $ 8 s 199§ 199
Actuarial gains/(losse (36,930 (29,890 (15,364
Pension settlement cot (44,163 - -
(81,101 (29,691 (15,165  Income before income tax
Tax impact 30,818 11,282 5,763  Income tax (expense) bene
$ 50,283 $ (18,409  $ (9.402  Net income
Amortization of Postretirement Cost Ite”
Prior-service cost $ 6,101 $ 10,068 $ 10,198
Actuarial gains/(losse: (7,846 (7,537 (4,424
(1,745 2,531 5,774 Income before income tax
Tax impact 663 (962, (2,194 Income tax (expense) bene
5 (1082 § 1569 & 3580  Net income

(a) Amounts in parentheses indicate losses.
(b) These accumulated other comprehensive loss aoemgs are included in the computation of net piigipension and postretirement benefit cost (sete D - Retirement Plans for additional details).

(15) Segment Information

We operate in one reportable segment. Frontieriges both regulated and unregulated voice, dadavateo services to residential, business and velatgecustomers and is typically the incumbent voice
services provider in its service areas.

As permitted by U.S. GAAP, we have utilized the @ggtion criteria to combine our operating segmbetsause all of our Frontier properties share ainetonomic characteristics, in that they provie t
same products and services to similar customeng usimparable technologies in all of the stateshith we operate. The regulatory structure is gahesimilar. Differences in the regulatory regirof a
particular state do not materially impact the eenitocharacteristics or operating results of a paldr property.

(16) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

$ in thousands, except per share amou

201

2013 First Quarte Second Quarte Third Quartel Fourth Quarte Total Year
Revenue $ 1,205,39% $ 1,190,53: $ 1,185,27¢€ $ 1,180,36¢ $ 4,761,57€
Operating incom: 250,824 266,15€ 206,172 257,568 980,721
Net income (loss) attributable to comm

shareholders of Frontit 48,140 (38,460 35,400 67,755 112,835
Basic net income (loss) per common st

attributable to common sharehold

of Frontier $ 0.05 $ (0.04 $ 004 $ 0.07 $ 0.11
2012 First Quarte Second Quarte Third Quartel Fourth Quarte Total Year
Revenue $ 1,268,054 $ 1,258,771 $ 1,252,46¢ $ 1,232,55: $ 5,011,858
Operating incom 208,458 267,784 275,196 235,73C 987,168
Net income attributable to comm

shareholders of Frontit 26,768 17,989 67,000 24,879 136,636
Basic net income per common sh

attributable to common sharehold

of Frontier $ 0.03 $ 0.02 $ 0.07 $ 0.02 $ 0.14
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The quarterly net income per common share amouetsanded to the nearest cent. Annual net inqueneommon share may vary depending on the effeitah rounding.

We recognized $9.7 million ( $6.1 million or $0.per share after tax ) of acquisition costsrduthe fourth quarter of 2013.

We recognized $40.3 million ( $25.0 million or $8.per share after tax) and $3.9 million ( $2.4 imnilafter tax) of pension settlement costs in thedtand fourth quarters of 2013, respectively.
We recognized $159.8 million ( $98.9 million d.$0 per share after tax ) of losses on earlyguishment of debt during the se cond quarter0df32

We recognized $35.1 million ( $21.7 million or $2.per share after tax), $28.6 million ( $18.1 roiflior $0.02 per share after tax), $4.5 million (@@iillion after tax), and $13.5 million ( $9.1 fivh or
$0.01 per shar e after tax) of integration costinguthe first, second, third and fourth quarter@@12, respectively.

We recognized $70.8 million ( $44.5 million or.88 per share after tax ), $0.2 million ( $0.2 roiil after tax) and $19.3 million ( $12.1 million $8.01 per share after tax) of losses on earlyygutshment
of debt during the se cond, third and fourth quartd 2012, respectively.

(17) Retirement Plans
We sponsor a noncontributory defined benefit penplan covering a significant number of our forraad current employees and other postretirementiib@fens that provide medical, dental, life insuce
and other benefits for covered retired employeestheir beneficiaries and covered dependents. €heflis are based on years of service and finabgeepay or career average pay. Contributions adem
in amounts sufficient to meet ERISA funding reqmients while considering tax deductibility. Planegssare invested in a diversified portfolio of eguand fixed-income securities and alternative
investments.

The accounting results for pension and other pirgneent benefit costs and obligations are dependpon various actuarial assumptions applied indéermination of such amounts. These actuarial
assumptions include the following: discount raegyected long-term rate of return on plan assetsyd compensation increases, employee turnoveithicare cost trend rates, expected retirement age,
optional form of benefit and mortality. We revielese assumptions for changes annually with ouipexagent actuaries. We consider our discount rateeapected long-term rate of return on plan agsets
be our most critical assumptions.

The discount rate is used to value, on a preséné \msis, our pension and other postretiremergftiebligations as of the balance sheet date.SEimee rate is also used in the interest cost conmparfi¢he
pension and postretirement benefit cost deterntinair the following year. The measurement dated ugethe selection of our discount rate is the hedasheet date. Our discount rate assumption is
determined annually with assistance from our indepet actuaries based on the pattern of expectetefbenefit payments and the prevailing ratesl@viai on long-term, high quality corporate bondst th
approximate the benefit obligation.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we utilized aimesion technique that is based upon a settlemmdel (Bond:Link) that permits us to more closelgtah cash flows to the expected payments to
participants . This rate can change from yearearypased on market conditions that affect corpdsand yields.

In determining the discount rate as of Decembe2B11 , we considered, among other things, thelyieh the Citigroup Above Median Pension Curve,Ttheers Watson Index, the general movement of
interest rates and the changes in those ratesdnenperiod to the next.

As a result of the change described above, Froigtietilizing a discount rate of 4.90% as of DecemB1, 201 3 for its qualified pension plan, conepato rates of 4. 0 0% and 4.50 % in 201 2 and1201
respectively. The discount rate for postretirenpdans as of December 31, 201 3 was a range 6%4t8 5.20% compared to a range of 4. 0 0% to 4620 201 2 and 4.50 % to 4.75% in 201 1 .
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The expected long-term rate of return on plan asiseapplied in the determination of periodic pensand postretirement benefit cost as a reductiché computation of the expense. In developing the
expected long-term rate of return assumption, wesickered published surveys of expected marketmstdiO and 20 year actual returns of various miajdices, and our own historical 5 year, 10 yeat 20
year investment returns. The expected long-texte of return on plan assets is based on an dksziten assumption of 35% to 55% in fixed incoseeurities, 35% to 55% in equity securities andt6%
15% in alternative investments. We review our agBetation at least annually and make changes wbasidered appropriate. Our pension asset ineggtailocation decisions are made by the Retirement
Investment & Administration Committee (RIAC), a coittee comprised of members of management, pursoantelegation of authority by the RetiremennRtmmmittee of the Board of Directors. The
RIAC is responsible for reporting its actions te fRetirement Plan Committee. Asset allocationsiecs take into account expected market returnnassons of various asset classes as well as expecte
pension benefit payment streams. When analyzirigipated benefit payments, management considetsthetabsolute amount of the payments as wellasirtling of such payments. In 201 3, 201 2 and
201 1, our expected long-term rate of return @m @lssets was 8.00 %, 7.75 % and 8.00%, respgctikel 201 4 , we will assume a rate of retur.@5% . Our pension plan assets are valued atdhie
as of the measurement date. The measurement @atécudetermine pension and other postretiremergflieneasures for the pension plan and the pasmegnt benefit plan is December 31.
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Pension Benefits

and 2012 and the components of total periodic pertsénefit cost for the years ended December 33,2012 and 2011:

($.in thousand)

Change in projected benefit obligation (PE
PBO at beginning of ye:

2013 2012

$1,944,731 $1,799,31¢

Service cos 47,651 43,688
Interest cos 75,812 78,027
Actuarial (gain)/los: (180,709 196,304
Benefits paic (54,151 (172,601
Settlement: (164,608 -

PBO at end of yez

Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \

$1,668,72¢€ $1,944,73

$1,253,66€ $ 1,257,99(

Actual return on plan asse 119,328 139,679
Employer contributions, net of transfe 62,290 28,598
Benefits paic (54,151 (172,601
Settlement: (164,608 -

Fair value of plan assets at end of y
Funded statu

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancet:
Other current liabilitie:

Pension and other postretirement ben:
Accumulated other comprehensive li

($.in thousand)

Components of total periodic pension benefit «

$1,216,52¢ $1,253,66¢€
$ (452,201 $ (691,065

$ (100,205 $ (60,386

$ (351,996 $ (630,679
$ 4114323% 697,874

Expected in
2014 2013 2012 2011

Service cos $ 47,651 $ 43,688 $ 38,879
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 75,812 78,027 84,228
Expected return on plan ass (94,695 (95,777 (100,558
Amortization of prior service cost /(cred 45 8 (199 (199,
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 19,274 36,930 29,890 15,364
Net periodic pension benefit cc 65,706 55,629 37,714
Pension settlement co: 44,163 - -
Total periodic pension benefit cc $ 109,86¢ $ 55,629 $ 37,714

Our pension plan contains provisions that providgain employees with the option of receiving lusypn payment upon retirement. The Company’s acaogiolicy is to record these payments as a
settlement only if, in the aggregate, they excémdsum of the annual service and interest cost¢hfoplan’s net periodic pension benefit cost. Byir2013, lump sum pension settlement payments to
terminated or retired individuals amounted to $6@4illion , which exceeded the settlement threslwdlfi125.4 m illion, and as a result, the Compamag required to recognize a non-cash settlemengeha
of $44.2 million during 2013. The non-cash changs required to accelerate the recognition of &igroof the previously
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unrecognized actuarial losses in the pension pldnis non-cash charge reduced our recorded nemie@nd retained earnings, with an offset to accatadlother comprehensive loss in shareholderstyequi
of Frontier.

We capitalized $19.2 million, $15.8 million and $2@nillion of pension and OPEB expense into the obsur capital expenditures during the years dridecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively,
as the costs relate to our engineering and plargtnection activities.

Based on current assumptions and plan asset vateesstimate that our 2014 pension and OPEB expeanitiebe approximately $65 million to $85 millidar our current business operations before amounts
capitalized into the cost of capital expendituned the impact of pension settlement costs, if any.

The plan’s weighted average asset allocations e¢Dber 31, 2013 and 2012 by asset category atdlasd:

2013 2012
Asset cateqgory:
Equity securities 42% 43%
Debt securitie: 44% 40%
Alternative investments 13% 14%
Cash and other 1% 3%
Total 100% 100%
The plan’s expected benefit payments over the b@xtears are as follows:
(8 in thousands Amount
2014 $ 100,839
2015 104,480
2016 110,570
2017 114,703
2018 117,055
201¢-2023 633,650
Total $1.181,297

During 2013, the Company contributed four realtesproperties to its qualified defined benefit penslan. The pension plan obtained independenteégads of the properties and, based on these iapfsra
the pension plan recorded the contributions at tfzéi value of $23.4 million. The Company has eetkinto leases for the contributed propertiesféryears at a combined aggregate annual rent of
approximately $2.1 million. The properties are ngethon behalf of the pension plan by an indeperfitintiary, and the terms of the leases were natatiwith the fiduciary on an arm’s-length basis.

We made total contributions to our pension plarindu2013 of $62.3 million, consisting of cash payitseof $38.9 million and the contribution of reabperty with a fair value of $23.4 million, as debed
above.

We made total net cash contributions to our pengian for 2012 of $28.6 million, consisting of reetsh payments of $18.3 million in the third quaged $10.3 million in the fourth quarter. Thesegien
contributions reflect the positive impact of funglirate changes contained in the Highway InvestrAehof 2012 and guidance from the IRS on August2I8,2 related to valuation rates, and on September
11, 2012 related to lump sum methodologies.

We made contributions to our pension plan of apipnately $76.7 million in 2011, consisting of casiyments of $18.6 million and, as described beltw,dontribution of real property with a fair valag
$58.1 million.

On September 8, 2011, the Company contributeddduministrative properties to its qualified defirtgehefit pension plan. The pension plan obtainddpendent appraisals of the properties and, based o
these appraisals, the pension plan
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recorded the contributions at their fair value 688 million. The Company has entered into ledseshe contributed properties for 15 years at mdoned aggregate annual rent of $5.8 million. The
properties are managed on behalf of the pensianiplan independent fiduciary, and the terms ofeéhses were negotiated with the fiduciary on am'stength basis.
The accumulated benefit obligation for the plan %A%560.0 million and $1,793.8 million at DecemB#, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Assumptions used in the computation of annual pensdsts and valuation of the year-end obligatisese as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Discount rate- used at year end to value obligat 4.90% 4.00% 4.50%
Discount rate- used to compute annual ¢ 4.00% 4.50% 5.25%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 7.75% 8.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%

Postretirement Benefits Other Than PensiehOPEB'

The following tables set forth the OPEB plan’s Hermbligations, fair values of plan assets andpbstretirement benefit liability recognized on eonsolidated balance sheets as of December 33, &G
2012 and the components of net periodic postregrgrnenefit cost for the years ended December(@®!13,2012 and 2011.

($.in thousand) 2013 2012
Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 438,550 $ 391,596
Service cos 12,533 10,812
Interest cos 17,241 17,842
Plan participants' contributiol 4,293 4,059
Actuarial (gain)/los: (67,547 30,958
Benefits paic (19,447 (15,974
Plan chang - (743,
Benefit obligation at end of ye $ 385,623 $ 438,550
Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 5055% 5101
Actual return on plan asse (122 466
Plan participants' contributiol 4,293 4,059
Employer contributior 12,528 11,403
Benefits paic (19,447 _ (15,974
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 2307$ 5055
Funded statu $(383,316 $(433,495
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancet:

Other current liabilitie: (11,508 (9,116
Pension and other postretirement ben: (371,808 $ (424,379
Accumulated other comprehensive li 5,230 74,264
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Expected in

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012 2011
Components of net periodic postretirement beneft

Service cos $ 12,533 $ 10,812 $ 8,958
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 17,241 17,842 17,722
Expected return on plan ass (136 172 (324
Amortization of prior service cost /(cred $ (3,560 (6,101 (10,068 (10,198
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 2,886 7,846 7,537 4,424
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 31,383 $ 250951 $ 20,582

Assumptions used in the computation of annual OP&s and valuation of the year-end OPEB obligatisare as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Discount rate - used at year end to value obligatio 4.90% -5.20% 4.00% -4.20% 4.50% -4.75%
Discount rate - used to compute annual cost 4.00% -4.20% 4.50% -4.75% 5.25%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 3.00%- 4.00% 3.00%- 4.00% 3.00%- 6.00%

The OPEB plan’s expected benefit payments ovenétxe 10 years are as follows:

(8$in thousands Gross Benefi Medicare Part D Subsic Total

2014 $ 16,687 $ 489 $ 16,198
2015 18,004 585 17,419
2016 19,342 691 18,651
2017 20,575 825 19,750
2018 21,785 961 20,824
201¢-2023 120,61¢ 6,994 113,625
Total $ 217,012 $ 10,545 $ 206,467

For purposes of measuring year-end benefit obtigatiwe used, depending on medical plan coveragdifferent retiree groups, a 7.50% annual ratenofease in the per-capita cost of covered medical
benefits, gradually decreasing to 5.00% in the @@€9 and remaining at that level thereafter. Tieceof a 1% increase in the assumed medicalteest rates for each future year on the aggredateso
service and interest cost components of the tatafrgtirement benefit cost would be $1.1 milliordahe effect on the accumulated postretirement fiiemigligation for health benefits would be $14.8
million . The effect of a 1% decrease in the assiimedical cost trend rates for each future yeaheraggregate of the service and interest cost onens of the total postretirement benefit costld/de
$(1.0) million and the effect on the accumulatedtptirement benefit obligation for health benefitsuld be $(13.8) million .
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The amounts in accumulated other comprehensivetiasshiave not yet been recognized as componemistgferiodic benefit cost at December 31, 20132812 are as follows:

($.in thousand) Pension Pla OPEB

2013 2012 2013 2012
Net actuarial los $ 411,07€ $ 697,511 $ 30,835 $ 105,97C
Prior service cost/(credi 356 363 (25,605 (31,706
Total $ 411,432 $ 697,874 $ 5,230 $ 74,264

The amounts recognized as a component of accurduataprehensive loss for the years ended Decenih@033 and 2012 are as follows:

($.in thousand) Pension Plai OPEB
2013 2012 2013 2012

Accumulated other comprehensive los

beginning of yea $ 697,874 $ 575,163 § 74,264 $ 41,811
Net actuarial gain (loss) recognized during y (36,930 (29,890 (7,846 (7,537
Prior service (cost) credit recognized during ) ()] 199 6,101 10,068
Net actuarial loss (gain) occurring during y (205,341 152,402 (67,289 30,665
Prior service cost (credit) occurring during y - - - (743
Settlement costs recognized during y (44,163 - - -
Net amount recognized in comprehensive inci

for the yeal (286,442 122,711 (69,034 32,453
Accumulated other comprehensive los

end of yea $ 411,432 $ 697,874 $ 5230 $ 74,264

401(k) Savings Plans

We sponsor employee retirement savings plans useleion 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Thenplcover substantially all full-time employees.dein certain plans, we provide matching
contributions. Employer contributions were $20.@lioni , $23.0 million and $22.2 million for 2012012 and 2011 , respectively.

(18) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair value is defined under U.S. GAAP as the esiitepassociated with the sale of an asset or gamsfa liability in an orderly transaction betwemarket participants at the measurement date. Vafua
techniques used to measure fair value under U.ARG#ust maximize the use of observable inputs aimihmze the use of unobservable inputs. In addjtidrS. GAAP establishes a three-tier fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in meing fair value.

The three input levels in the hierarchy of fairumeasurements are defined by the FASB genesafiyllaws:

InputLevel Descriptionf Input

Level 1 Observable inputs suslyaoted prices in active markets for identicaétss

Level 2 Inputs other than quagpeides in active markets that are either direatlyndirectly observable.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs inieh little or no market data exists.
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The following tables represent the Company’s penpian assets measured at fair value on a recurésiy as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

($.in thousand) Fair Value Measurements at December 31, :
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Cash and Cash Equivalel $ 8,503 $ 8,503 $ - $ -
U.S. Government Obligatior 26,070 - 26,070 -
Corporate and Other Obligatio 235,723 - 235,723 -
Common Stocl 120,801 120,801 - -
Commingled Fund 604,975 - 571,531 33,444
Interest in Registered Investment Compa 80,221 80,221 - -
Interest in Limited Partnerships a

Limited Liability Corporations 129,276 - - 129,276
Insurance Contrac 629 - 629 -
Other 1,660 - 1,660 -
Total investments at fair valt $ 1,207,85¢ $ 209,525 $ 835,613 $ 162,72C
Interest and Dividend Receivat 2,832
Due from Broker for Securities Sa 8,916
Receivable Associated with Insurance Cont 7,044
Due to Broker for Securities Purchas (10,125
Total Plan Assets, at Fair Val $ 1,216,52¢
($.in thousand) Fair Value Measurements at December 31, ¢

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Cash and Cash Equivalel $ 42,391 $ - $ 42,391 $ -
U.S. Government Obligatior 14,166 - 14,166 -
Corporate and Other Obligatio 246,024 - 246,024 -
Common Stocl 133,631 133,631 - -
Commingled Fund 612,707 - 572,893 39,814
Interest in Registered Investment Compa 99,161 99,161 - -
Interest in Limited Partnerships a

Limited Liability Corporations 101,678 - - 101,678
Insurance Contrac 799 - 799 -
Other 96 - 96 -
Total investments at fair valt $ 1,250,65% $ 232,792 $ 876,369 $ 141,492
Interest and Dividend Receivat 3,252
Due from Broker for Securities Sa 3,788
Receivable Associated with Insurance Cont 7,610
Due to Broker for Securities Purchas (11,637
Total Plan Assets, at Fair Val $ 1,253,66€

The Company classified $8.5 million of cash equénés as Level 1 assets at December 31, 201@se ifivestments were held in cash accounts in 20ti8re have been no reclassifications of investsnen
between Levels 1, 2 or 3 assets during the yealsdebDecember 31, 2013 or 2012.
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The table below sets forth a summary of changéseirfair value of the Plan’s Level 3 assets fonytbars ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

($.in thousand)

Balance, beginning of ye
Realized gain
Unrealized gain
Contributed asse

Sales

Balance, end of ye:

($.in thousand)

Balance, beginning of ye
Realized gain
Unrealized gain

Sales

Balance, end of yei

2013

Interest in Limited Partnerships a
Limited Liability Corporations

Commingled Fund

$ 101,678 $ 39,814
10,835 975
18,033 2,656
23,422 -
(24,692 (10,001
$ 129,276 $ 33,444
2012
Interest in Limited Partnerships and
Limited Liability Corporations Commingled Fund
$ 104,033 % 37,194
5,587 -
454 2,620
(8,396 -
$ 101,678 $ 39,814
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The following table provides further informatiorgeeding the redemption of the Plan’s Level 3 inwesits as of December 31, 2013:

($.in thousand)
Redemptior Liquidation
Fair Value Redemption Frequenc Notice Perioc Period
Commingled Fund
JPM Multi-Strat Il C-A Ser 1:-07® $ 33,444 Quarterly 65 days NA
Interest in Limited Partnerships and Limit
Liability Corporations
Morgan Stanley Institutional Cayman Fund © $ 26,188 Quarterly 60 days NA
Through liquidation o
MS IFHF SVP LP Cayma® 2,772 underlying investment None 2 years
Through liquidation of
MS IFHF SVP LP Alph® 1,504 underlying investment None 2 years
Through liquidation o
RII World Timberfund, LLC® 5,761 underlying investment None 10 years
Through liquidation of
100 Comm Drive, LLC® 8,557 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation o
100 CTE Drive, LLC® 6,922 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation of
6430 Oakbrook Parkway, LL® 24,955 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation o
8001 West Jefferson, LL@ 29,318 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation of
1500 MacCorkle Ave SE, LL(* 15,987 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation o
400 S. Pike Road West, LL® 1,079 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation of
601 N US 131, LLC@® 1,063 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation o
9260 E. Stockton Blvd., LL( 5,170 underlying investment None NA
Total Interest in Limited Partnerships and Limi
Liability Corporations $ 129,276

(a) The fund's investment objective is to genetatey-term capital appreciation with relatively lowlatility and a low correlation with traditionalquity and fixed-income markets. The fund seeks to
accomplish this objective by allocating its asgeisarily among a select group of experienced ptdfmanagers that invest in a variety of markeither through the medium of investment funds cough
discretionary managed accounts.

(b) The partnerships’ investment objective is ¢elscapital appreciation principally through invegtin investment funds managed by third party twent managers who employ a variety of alternative
investment strategies.

(c) The fund's objective is to realize substaritalg-term capital appreciation by investing inttienland properties primarily in South America, Néealand and Australia.
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(d) The entity invest s in commercial real estateperties that are leased to the Company. Theeseare triple net, whereby the Company is resplenfir all expenses, including but not limited to,
insurance, repairs and maintenance and paymemopégy taxes.

The following table represents the Plan’s Leveiharicial instruments for its interest in certaimiied partnerships and limited liability corporati the valuation techniques used to measure thealae of
those financial instruments as of December 31, 2848 the significant unobservable inputs and rang@alues for those inputs:

Significant Input

Instrument Property Fair Value Principal Valuation Technique Significant Unobservable Inputs Values
Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat: 8.50%
100 Comm Drive, LLC $ 8,557| Discountec Discount Ratt 9.50%
Cash Flon Duration (years 10
Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat! 8.50%
100 CTE Drive, LLC $ 6,922 Discountec Discount Ratt 10.00%
Cash Flon Duration (years 15
Interest in Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat! 8.50%
Limited Partnership 6430 Oakbrook Parkway, LL $ 24,955 Discountec Discount Rat¢ 10.50%
and Limited Cash Flon Duration (years 10
Liability Corporations Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat! 8.50%
8001 West Jefferson, LL $ 29,319 Discountec Discount Ratt 10.50%
Cash Flon Duration (years 10
1500 MacCorkle Ave SE, LL! $ 15,987] Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat 8.85%
400 S. Pike Road West, LL $ 1,079 Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat 10.50%
601 N US 131, LLC $ 1,063 Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat 10.00%
9260 E. Stockton Blvd., LL¢ $ 5,170 Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat 9.00%

The fair value of our OPEB plan assets, which #mmeasured using Level 1 inputs, was $2.3 milléomd $5.1 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2€dshectively.

The following table summarizes the carrying amouwantd estimated fair values for long-term debt atebeber 31, 2013 and 2012. For the other finarogtuments including cash, accounts receivable,
long-term debt due within one year, accounts payahtl other current liabilities, the carrying amsuapproximate fair value due to the relativelyrsioaturities of those instruments. Other equigtimod
investments, for which market values are not rgaaliilable, are carried at cost, which approximéér value.

$ in thousands 2013 2012

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Long-term deb $ 7,873,661 $ 8,191,74¢ $ 8,381,947 $ 9,091,41€

The fair value of our long-term debt is estimateddsl upon quoted market prices at the reportirggfdathose financial instruments.

(19) Commitments and Contingencies
We anticipate total capital expenditures for ourent business operations of approximately $578liomto $625 million for 2014 , excluding theqgenditure of funds previously received from then@ect
America Fund program . Although we from time todimake short-term purchasing commitments to vendifsrespect to these expenditures, we generallyat enter into firm, written contracts for such
activities.
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In connection with the pending AT&T Transactione tBiompany currently expects to incur operating egpe and capital expenditures of approximately $8@fon to $275 million in 2014 related to these
acquisition and integration initiatives. The Compéancurred $9. 7 million of acquisition costdated to the AT&T Transaction during the fourttager of 2013.

In connection with the 2010 Transaction, the Fdd€mmmunications Commission (FCC) and certain stagilatory commissions, in connection with gragttheir approvals of the 2010 Transaction,

specified certain capital expenditure and operatgmuirements for the Acquired Territories for sfied periods of time post-closing. These requieets focus primarily on certain capital investment

commitments to expand broadband availability tteast 85% of the households throughout the Acquiimitories with minimum download speeds of 3 niggaper second (Mbps) by the end of 2013 . We
are required to provide download speeds of 4 Mb teast 75% , 80% and 85% of the householdsiginout the Acquired Territories by the end of 204014 and 2015, respectively. As of December 31,
2013, we had expanded broadband availability ireesof 3 Mbps to 85.4% of the households throughtwmitAcquired Territories, and in excess of 4 Mbp83.5% of the households throughout the

Acquired Territories. Accordingly, we have met &€C requirement to provide 3 Mbps coverage to 85%ehouseholds and 4 Mbps coverage to 75%eohtuseholds in the Acquired Territories by the

end of 2013. We have also met our FCC requireneeptovide 4 Mbps coverage to 80% of the househividhe Acquired Territories by the end of 2014.

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investrhenmmitments to three state regulatory commissiasplaced an aggregate amount of $115.0 milliooaish into escrow accounts and obtained a Iefiter o
credit for $190 million in 2010. Another $72.4 rioh of cash in an escrow account was acquired imection with the 2010 Transaction to be used éovise quality initiatives in the state of West
Virginia. As of December 31, 2013, $176.3 roiflihad been released from the escrow accountshanddmpany had a restricted cash balance in thaimérg escrow account in the aggregate amount of

$11.4 million, including interest earned. The@mate amount of the escrow account will contitougecrease over time as Frontier makes the refjoapital expenditures in West Virginia .  In Sspber
2013, the le tter of credit for the remaining $2illion expir ed.

We are party to various legal proceedings (inclgditividual, class and putative class actionsjiagiin the normal course of our business coveaimgde range of matters and types of claims incggbut

not limited to, general contracts, billing dispyteights of access, taxes and surcharges, consproggction, trademark and patent infringement, eyrplent, regulatory, tort, claims of competitors and
disputes with other carriers.

We accrue an expense for pending litigation whendetermine that an unfavorable outcome is probaht® the amount of the loss can be reasonably estindegal defense costs are expensed as
incurred. None of our existing accruals , aftensidering insurance coverage, for pending mattersaterial. We constantly monitor our pendinggéition for the purpose of adjusting our accruald an
revising our disclosures accordingly, when requirkiigation is, however, subject to uncertainand the outcome of any particular matter is notistable. We will vigorously defend our interefis
pending litigation, and as of this date, we beliévat the ultimate resolution of all such matterfser considering insurance coverage or other imit®s to which we are entitled, will not have ateral
adverse effect on our consolidated financial posjtresults of operations, or our cash flows.

We conduct certain of our operations in leased fmesnand also lease certain equipment and othetsgssrsuant to operating leases. The lease amamge have terms ranging from 1 to 99 years and
several contain rent escalation clauses providingntreases in monthly rent at specific intervéihen rent escalation clauses exist, we recordamental expense based on the total expectegagmients
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. @el¢ases also have renewal options. Renewal aptiat are reasonably assured are included inndieieg the lease term.
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Future minimum rental commitments for all long-temomcancelable operating leases as of Decemb&@033,are as follows:

(8 in thousands Operating Least
Year ending December 3

2014 $ 61,880
2015 10,452
2016 8,804
2017 7,708
2018 7,393
Thereafte 49,091
Total minimum lease paymer $ 145328

Total rental expense included in our consolidatatements of operations for the years ended Deae@ih@013, 2012 and 2011 was $84.4 million, $78ilBon and $70.2 million, respectively.

In our normal course of business, we have obligationder certain non-cancelable arrangements fuices. During 2012, we entered into a “take oy”parangement for the purchase of future long
distance and carrier services. Our remaining cometits under the arrangement are $145.5 million$dd@.8 million for the years ending December 311£28nd 2015, respectively. As of December 31,
2013, we expect to utilize the services includethinithe arrangement and no liability for the “takepay” provision has been recorded.

We are party to contracts with several unrelateg ldistance carriers. The contracts provide feeedan traffic they carry for us subject to minimomonthly fees.

At December 31, 201 3, the estimated future paysnfem obligations under our noncancelable longegiise contracts and service agreements are aa$ollo

($ in thousands Amount
Year ending December 2

2014 $ 28,653
2015 20,796
2016 9,694
2017 4,295
2018 1,204
Thereaftel 6,000
Total $ 70,642

We sold all of our utility businesses as of April2D04. However, we have retained a potential gaytrobligation associated with our previous eleaitility activities in the State of Vermont. Thermont
Joint Owners (VJO), a consortium of 14 Vermontitig#, including us, entered into a purchase poaggeement with Hydro-Quebec in 1987. The agreem@miains “step-up” provisions that state if any
VJO member defaults on its purchase obligation it contract to purchase power from Hydro-Queties the other VJO participants will assume resjility for the defaulting party’s share on a pro-
rata basis. Our pro-rata share of the purchasepobligation is 10% . If any member of the VJQadkéts on its obligations under the Hydro-Quebereament, then the remaining members of the VJO,
including us, may be required to pay for a sub&#yntarger share of the VJO's total purchase poualgigation for the remainder of the agreementi¢whuns through 2015). ASC Topic 840 requireat th
we disclose “the maximum potential amount of futpeyments (undiscounted) that the guarantor coeldeluired to make under the guarantee.” ASC T8pIt also state s that we must make such
disclosure “... even if the likelihood of the guamrs having to make any payments under the guagdsteemote...” As noted above, our obligation aaiges as a result of default by another VJO member
such as upon bankruptcy. Therefore, to satisfytreximum potential amount” disclosure requiremeetmust assume that all members
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of the VJO simultaneously default, an unlikely smém given that all VJO members are regulatedtytgiroviders with regulated cost recovery. Desfiite remote chance that such an event could oacur,
that the State of Vermont could or would allow sachevent, assuming that all the members of the d&faulted on January 1, 2014 and remained in ddtatthe duration of the contract (another 2 ygar
we estimate that our undiscounted purchase ohigdtir 2014 through 2015 would be approximately%28nillion. In such a scenario, the Company wdhkh own the power and could seek to recover its
costs. We would do this by seeking to recoveramsts from the defaulting members and/or resetliregpower to other utility providers or the nortsiepower grid. There is an active market for thie ®f
power. We could potentially lose money if we wenable to sell the power at cost. We cautionweatannot predict with any degree of certainty potential outcome.

At December 31, 2013, we have outstanding perfocméetters of credit as follows:

(8 in thousands Amount
CNA Financial Corporation (CNA $ 45,659
All other 1,186
Total $ 46,845

CNA serves as our agent with respect to genetailitiaclaims (auto, workers compensation and othsured perils of the Company). As our agent, théminister all claims and make payments for claims
on our behalf. We reimburse CNA for such servigesnupresentation of their invoice. To serve asagent and make payments on our behalf, CNA reqtliaswe establish a letter of credit in their favo
CNA could potentially draw against this letter odit if we failed to reimburse CNA in accordanci¢wihe terms of our agreement. The amount ofékter of credit is reviewed annually and adjustasill

on claims history.

None of the above letters of credit restrict owshchalances.



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CO RPORATION

NON -EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS' COMPENSATION SUMMARY

(Effective October 1, 201 3)

QUARTERLY RETAINER FEE

Each non-employee director will receive an annatliner consisting of the following:

(1)  $90,000 in cash, which the n-employee directcmay elect to receivin the form of stock units; ar

(2)  $90,000 in the form of stock unit

in each case payable in quarterly installments #éisedfirst business day of eacbalendar quarter.

QUARTERLY STIPENDS

Each Committee Chair and the Lead Director wilbaksceive quarterly stipends as follows:

Non-Employee Director Stipends Quarte
rly

Lead Directol $6,250

Audit Committee Chai $6,250

Compensation Committee Ch $5,000

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee C $3,750

Retirement Plan Committee Ch $2,500

Annualized

$25,000
$25,000
$20,000
$15,000
$10,000

S tipends are paid on the last business day afatemdar quarter in which they were earned.

Each non-employee director may elect to receiyeestls, when applicable, in cash or stock units.

Exhibit 10.2 8



VALUATION OF STOCK UNITS

Retainer/Stipends The number of units to be awarded to a direistdetermined as follows:

The cash value of the retainer and/or stipendsipaya the director are divided by the Fair Maratue (the closing price) of the Company’s common stockie
date the retainer or stipends were earned.

Dividends: As of the date of any payment of a stock divilenstock split by the Company, a director’s Stbickt Account will be credited with Stock Units eajuo the
number of shares of Common Stock (including fratishare entitlements) which are payable by thegmy with respect to the number of shares (inolydiactional
share entitlements) equal to the number of Stodkslénedited to the director’s Stock Unit Accoumtthe record date for such stock dividend or sgpik. As of the date of
any dividend in cash or property or other distribtpayable to holders of Common Stock, the direstdtock Unit Account shall be credited with adatial Stock Units
equal to the number of shares of Common Stockudiey fractional share entitlements) that couldenbgen purchased at the Fair Market Value as &f gagment date with
the amount which would have been received as defid or distribution on the number of shares (idiclg fractional share entitlements) equal to theclSUnits credited to
the director’s Stock Unit Account as of the recdade.

ELECTION RULES AND PROCEDURES

Each director must elect by December 31 of theqatieg year (or within 30 days after the individbatomes a director , in which case the electiott haffective only
with respect to amounts that are earned for ses\peeformed after the date the election is deliv@nehether he or she will receive the cash portibhis or her annual
retainer and stipends in cash or stock unit$.el&ttions made are irrevocable.

DISTRIBUTION UPON TERMINATION OF SERVICE

Upon termination of service as a director, a doeststock unit account shall be paid out in therf@f cash (valuing each stock unit at the Fairkéaivalue (the closing
price ) of a share of the Company’s common stocthertermination date) or Company common stockyeaelection of the director (one share of comntonksshall be
distributed for each stock unit in the directotsck unit account). Absent a valid election, staois shall be paid out in common stock.



Exhibit 12 .1

Frontier Communications Corporation
Statements of the Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charge
(Dollars in Thousands)

(Unaudited)
Years Ended December I
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Pre-tax income from continuing operatio $ 162,72C $ 228,952 $ 245951 $ 270,71€ $ 193,109
(Income) or loss from equity investe - 522 864 (367, (994)
Pre-tax income from continuing operations bef

(income) or loss from equity investe 162,72C 229,474 246,81¢ 270,349 192,115
Fixed charge 698,251 716,61¢ 697,00€ 541,75C 388,554
Distributed income of equity investe - - - 780 1,532
Interest capitalize (2,723 (2,203 (8,414 (3,749 1,714
Income attributable to the noncontrolling inter

in a partnershi| (2,643 (16,678 (7,994 (3,044 (2,398
Total earnings $ 855,605 $ 927,212 $ 927,413 $ 806,086 $ 578,088
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 1.23 1.29 1.33 1.49 1.49

NOTE: The above calculation was performed in adance with Regulation S-K 229.503(d) Ratio of eagsito fixed charges.




Entity Name

C-DON Partnership

Citizens Capital Ventures Corp.

Citizens Directory Services Company L.L.C.

Citizens Louisiana Accounting Company

Citizens Newcom Company

Citizens Newtel, LLC

Citizens Pennsylvania Company LLC

Citizens SERP Administration Company

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of California Inc.
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Idaho

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of lllinois

Citizens Telecommunications Company of Minnesota, LLC
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Montana
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Nebraska
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Nebraska LLC
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Nevada
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of New York, Inc.
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Oregon
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Tennessee L.L.C.
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of The Volunteer State LLC

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of The White Mountains, Inc.

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Utah
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of West Virginia
Citizens Telecom Services Company L.L.C.

Citizens Utilities Capital L.P.

Citizens Utilities Rural Company, Inc.

Commonwealth Communication, LLC

Commonwealth Telephone Company LLC
Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises LLC
Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises LLC
Commonwealth Telephone Management Services, Inc.
CTE Holdings, Inc.

CTE Services, Inc.

CTE Telecom, LLC

CTSI, LLC

CU Capital LLC

CU Wireless Company LLC

Electric Lightwave NY, LLC

Evans Telephone Holdings, Inc.

Fairmount Cellular LLC

Exhibit 21 .1

Domestic Jurisdiction
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
lllinois
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Nevada

New York
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
West Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Georgia




Frontier Communications Corporate Services Inc.
Frontier Communications Corporation

Frontier Communications ILEC Holdings LLC
Frontier Communications - Midland, Inc.

Frontier Communications Northwest Inc.
Frontier Communications of Alabama, LLC
Frontier Communications Of America, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Ausable Valley, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Breezewood, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Canton, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Depue, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Fairmount LLC
Frontier Communications Of Georgia LLC
Frontier Communications Of lllinois, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Indiana, LLC
Frontier Communications Of lowa, LLC

Frontier Communications Of Lakeside, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Lakewood, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Lamar County, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Michigan, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Minnesota, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Mississippi LLC
Frontier Communications Of Mondovi, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Mt. Pulaski, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of New York, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Orion, Inc.

Frontier Communications Of Oswayo River LLC
Frontier Communications Of Pennsylvania, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Rochester, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Seneca-Gorham, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Sylvan Lake, Inc.
Frontier Communications of the Carolinas LLC
Frontier Communications Of The South, LLC
Frontier Communications Of The Southwest Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Thorntown, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Virginia, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Virogua, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Wisconsin LLC

Frontier Communications Online And Long Distance Inc.

Frontier Communications - Prairie, Inc.
Frontier Communications - Schuyler, Inc.
Frontier Communications Services Inc.
Frontier Communications - St. Croix LLC

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
lllinois
Washington
Alabama
Delaware
New York
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
lllinois
Georgia
Georgia
lllinois
Indiana

lowa

lllinois
Pennsylvania
Alabama
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Wisconsin
lllinois

New York
lllinois
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Delaware
New York
New York
Delaware
Alabama
Delaware
Indiana
Virginia
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Delaware
lllinois

lllinois
Arizona
Wisconsin




Frontier Directory Services Company, LLC
Frontier Infoservices Inc.

Frontier Midstates Inc.

Frontier Mobile LLC

Frontier North Inc.

Frontier Security Company

Frontier Services Corp.

Frontier Subsidiary Telco LLC

Frontier Techserv, Inc.

Frontier Telephone Of Rochester, Inc.
Frontier West Virginia Inc.

GVN Services

Navajo Communications Co., Inc.

N C C Systems, Inc.

Ogden Telephone Company

Phone Trends, Inc.

Rhinelander Telecommunications, LLC
Rhinelander Telephone LLC

Rib Lake Cellular For Wisconsin RSA #3, Inc.

Rib Lake Telecom, Inc.
Tele-Tec Contractors, Inc.

Delaware
Delaware
Georgia
Delaware
Wisconsin
Delaware
Connecticut
Delaware
Delaware
New York
West Virginia
California
New Mexico
Texas

New York
New York
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
New York




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Dir ectors and Share holders
Frontier Communications Corporation :

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRlegistration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-190833-181299, 333-158391 and 333-58044), andosm F5-8 (Nos. 333-
188440, 333-167932, 333-159508, 333-151248, 3324(,1333-151245, 333-142636, 333-91054, 333-71823,71597, 333-71029, 333-61432, 33-48683 and 332 of Frontier

Communications Corporation and subsidiaries ofreports da ted February 27 , 2014 , with respethécconsolidated balance sheets of Frontier Conwations Corporation as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related coaseti statements of operations, comprehensive ia¢toss), equity and cash flows for each of theyéathe three-year period

ended December 31, 2013, and the effectivenesserhal control over financial reporting as of Dater 31, 2013, which reports appear in the Decer@beP013 annual report on
Form 10-K of Frontier Communications Corporation.

/sl KPMG

Stamford, Connecticut
February 27 , 2014



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
1, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report Form 10- K of Frontier Communications Corpamat;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescoatain any untrue statement of a material éaamit to state a material fact necessarynake the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under whiathsstatements were made, not misleading witheasp the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets, and other financial information included this report, fairly present in all material pests the
financial condition, results of operations andtcliows of the registrant as of, and for, theqas presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying offi@nd | are responsible for establishing andntaaiing disclosure controls and procedures &med in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer financial reporting (as defined in ExcbarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thegistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure contralpatedures to be designed under our supervigiognsure that
material information relating to the registramgcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is m&dewn to us by others within those entitiesrtipalarly during
the period in which this report is being prepiare

b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cordwer financial reporting to be designed under aupervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the nélfabi  of financial reporting and the preparati@f financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thestegnt's disclosure controls and procedures @edented in this report our conclusions ableteffectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as oérideof the period covered by this report basedumh evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changthim registrant's internal control over financggborting that occurred during the registrant'stmecent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the sea of an annual report) that has materially afficler is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internantol over financial reporting; and



5. The registrant's other certifying officeddrhave disclosed, based our most recent evaluation of internal control deaincial reporting, to th
registrant's auditors and the audit committé¢éhe registrant's board of directors (or passperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and maakweaknesses in the design or operation oériral control over financial reporting whicteaeasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability toarl, process, summarize and report financial médion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, ttiravolves management or other employees who hasigréficant role in the registrant's internal aohtover
financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 201 /sl Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
1, John M. Jureller , certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report Form 10- K of Frontier Communications Corpamat;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescoatain any untrue statement of a material éaadmit to state a material fact necessarynake the statements
made, in light of the ¢ ircumstances under whigthsstatements were made, not misleading witego the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets, and other financial information included this report, fairly present in all material pests the
financial condition, results of operations andtcliows of the registrant as of, and for, theqas presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying offi@nd | are responsible for establishing andntaaiing disclosure controls and procedures &med in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer financial reporting (as defined in ExcbarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thegistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure corrmlprocedures to be designed under our superyisi@msure that
material information relating to the registramgcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is m&dewn to us by others within those entitiesrtipalarly during
the period in which this report is being prepiare

b) Designed such internal control oveafiaial reporting, or caused such internal cordgw@r financial reporting to be designed undersupervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the nélfabi  of financial reporting and the preparatiaf financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thestegnt's disclosure controls and procedures @edented in this report our conclusions ableteffectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as oérideof the period covered by this report basedumh evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changdhia registrant's internal control over finahaieporting that occurred during the registrantsst recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarten the case of an annual report) that has materiadfjected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internantol over financial reporting; and



5. The registrant's other certifying officeddrhave disclosed, based our most recent evaluation of internal control deaincial reporting, to th
registrant's auditors and the audit committé¢éhe registrant's board of directors (or passperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and maakweaknesses in the design or operation oériral control over financial reporting whicteaeasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability toarl, process, summarize and report financial médion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, ttiravolves management or other employees who hasigréficant role in the registrant's internal aohtover
financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 201 /s/ John M. Jurelle
John M. Jurelle
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Fronti€ommunications Corporation (the "Company") onnrdi0- K for the year ended December 31 , 2013led fiith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéthe "Report"), I, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, &man and Chief Executive Officer of the Compacsrtify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopteslipat to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcD6P2that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S ecuriirshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respectse financial condition and results of operatiohthe Company.

[s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 27 , 201 4

This certification is made solely for purpose ofl&.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedsrd contained therein, and not for any othepqae.

A signed original of this written statement rgqd by Section 906, or other document authetitigaacknowledging, or otherwise adopting the atgre that appears
in typed form within the electronic version ofsthwritten statement required by Section 906, een provided to Frontier Communications Cafion and will be
retained by Frontier Communications Corporatind durnished to the Securities and Exchange i@ission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Fronti€ommunications Corporation (the "Company") onnrdi0- K for the year ended December 31 , 2013led fiith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateohdthe "Report’), I, John M. Jureller , Chiein&ncial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuaot 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to $e@€6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiesiange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respectse financial condition and results of operatiafdhe Company.
[s/ JohnM. Jureller
John M. Jureller

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 27 , 2014

This certification is made solely for purpose ofll&.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedstahcontained therein, and not for any other pgepo

A signed original of this written statement riggqd by Section 906, or other document authentigaticknowledging, or otherwise adopting the sigreathat appears in
typed form within the electronic version of thigitten statement required by Section 906, has)be®vided to Frontier Communications Corporatand will be
retained by Frontier Communications Corporatind durnished to the Securities and Exchange Casion or its staff upon request.



